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A bi l l  for an Act to provide for the creation of a central aircraft management system for 
state-owned or state-leased aircraft and to create a central aircraft management fund ;  and 
to provide for the transfer of aircraft to the central aircraft management system.  

Minutes: 

Chairman Ruby opened the hearing on H B  1 033. 

Representative Jeff Delzer, District 8, introduced the bi l l .  He stated that the Government 
Services Committee studied this issue and looked at the airplane situation in  North Dakota. 
There were many questions that came up about efficiencies, the age of the airplanes, and 
how much has been spent on the upkeep of airplanes. The issue that is being brought 
forward is a plan to create a pool ,  similar to the Motor Pool for cars in the Department of 
Transportation .  It was decided to bring it before the Legislature, so it can be looked at. . 

Representative Delzer: I th ink it wil l be an efficient plan . A lot of time was spent on this 
issue. I know that there wil l  be some questions on the exemption on certain agencies and 
planes. We brought it forward with the exemption for planes that have a specific use within 
some of the agencies. We d id not touch the H igher Education because of the Aerospace at 
UNO .  The issue of NDSU airplane d id come up. The cost of the NDSU plane was also 
discussed and could be looked at. The Bi l l  deals with the planes that the governor fl ies, the 
Game and Fish planes, the Attorney General's plane, and the H ighway Patrol's planes. 
Representative Delzer supports this b i l l .  

Representative Delmore: Looking at the fiscal note, it seems l ike there is an increase i n  
cost for agencies that were already questioning what they are spend ing for a plane. Is that 
the question? 

Representative Delzer: I haven't seen the fiscal note. From what we looked at, if you 
would combine the maintenance, the hanger fees, and things l ike that, you may be able to 
create some efficiency. I can't tell you how the fiscal note was created . (5:00 minutes) 
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Brady Larson, Legislative Council Staff, presented information on H B1033. He neither 
supports nor opposes the bi l l .  A report was submitted from the Government Services 
Committee. Brady highl ighted information included in the report. (See attachment #1. )  

Brady Larson reviewed H B  1033. (7:27 m inutes) At the end he  noted that there is  a newly 
created special fund in this b i l l .  There would be user charges deposited in that fund . 
However, in order to use those funds, an appropriation would need to be provided to the 
Department of Transportation from The Central Aircraft Management Fund . If the Bi l l  does 
go forward there would have to be an appropriation either to this Bi l l  or to the agency's 
executive budget b i l l .  

Chairman Ruby: Some of the agencies already have a l ine item on their budgets to use 
their own planes. On that last point, d id you mean that those funds, that they pay into the 
pool, would be used for that? Why would they need a separate appropriation in  Department 
of Transportation? 

Brady Larson: Department of Transportation would need a separate appropriation 
because as the agencies pay the fees to the Department they would get deposited into this 
fund to be used for the operation for the aircraft, includ ing salaries, operating expenses, 
replacement of aircraft, etc. In order to pay those expenses out of this fund,  the 
Department of Transportation would need an appropriation . 

Chairman Ruby: Okay. 

Brady Larson: However, the other agencies that are using aircraft, instead of paying 
expenses for that aircraft, they would pay a user fee to the Department of Transportation. 
So, there might be some adjustments for the outside agencies that are uti l izing the aircraft, 
but they would be minor compared to the Department of Transportation's appropriation .  

Chairman Ruby: D o  you know how much the recommended amount would b e  in itially? 

Brady Larson: On the fiscal note, it says it would be approximately $1.75 mi l l ion .  

Representative Gruchalla: In  the past didn't we exempt some agencies out of th is? Now 
it looks l ike they are added into this pool .  I thought we voted to exempt a few of the 
agencies. How d id that get switched? 

Brady Larson: The only agencies that were specifically exempt were the Adjutant General 
and the entities under the control of the State Board of H igher Education .  There were other 
agencies added to the special use agreements, but the motion on those was to only 
change the Bi l l  to require the d i rector of the Department of Transportation to enter into 
special use agreements with those agencies. The motion was not to exempt them entirely 
from this B i l l .  

Representative Gruchella: I thought we voted to exempt Game and Fish because their 
specific use is out of the pool .  
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Brady Larson: This bi l l  is modeled after the State Fleet Services Motor Pool language. In 
the State Fleet Services Pool the H ighway Patrol have their own vehicles, and the Game 
and Fish wardens have their special vehicles. It is a similar situation; those vehicles are 
managed by State Fleet Services. However, only the H ighway Patrol can uti l ize their 
vehicles, and Game and Fish their own vehicles. Any state official can't check out a 
H ighway Patrol veh icle. 

Representative Fransvog: I would l ike to reference the appropriation , $ 1 .75 mi l l ion . Is 
that a start-up? I am assuming that this wi l l  operate similar to an enterprise fund .  The 
payments that are paid for the use, go into the account, and the operational expenses 
come out of the account. 

Brady Larson: I wouldn't say that it is just a start-up cost. The expenses would match the 
revenues. The Department of Transportation would need the appropriation authority to 
spend any revenues that they get. They would essentially be getting authority to spend any 
revenue that they receive. 

Representative Delmore: You were with the committee, and you looked at the Bi l l .  What 
problem does this real ly solve by add ing another level of bureaucracy? It is another 
commission with in another agency to go back to al l  the other agencies. We are d iscussing 
efficiency. I don't see efficiency in the way that this Bil l works. 

Brady Larson: I think that the committee wanted to create this Bi l l  to try to create 
efficiency on the use of aircraft. You notice that some agencies were only uti l izing their 
a i rcraft for 20 or 50 hours a year. In those cases the per flight hour operating cost was 
elevated because there are certain fixed costs that you have to pay, l ike insurance, 
hangers, and inspections. Those have to be paid regardless of the number of fl ight hours 
that the airplane is used . By creating a pool ,  and having more flight hour use, it would 
reduce the per fl ight hour operating cost of the aircraft. 

Representative Delmore: Then the aircraft could be used , no matter who owned them 
original ly ,  to pool hours to use them al l  equally? Is that where the efficiency would be 
gained? 

Brady Larson: That is correct. Any agency would be able to utilize the aircraft. It is s imi lar  
to State Fleet Services. Prior to that, each agency might have their own vehicle and only 
use it four or five times per month . Another agency might have the same situation .  Once 
the resources are pooled together and al located out, it can cut the cost, based on a l l  the 
overhead items, such as insurance and maintenance. 

Representative Kreun: As the aircraft ages each ind ividual department doesn't have the 
abi l ity to replace the aircraft. Putting them in the pool to util ize them more, gives more 
credence to replacing the aircraft. We have two or three, especial ly in the Attorney 
General's office, that have to have parts made for them. So, if we could get by with fewer 
aircraft and util ize them more, it would be more efficient. Aircraft can be very expensive to 
repair ,  and they don't have it in  their budgets to replace the planes. 
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Representative Delmore: Then if we need to replace one of the planes, does it become a 
general fund problem to replace the funds and make sure that the planes are new enough 
to do what they need to do? 

Chairman Ruby: We are going to work through this bil l and let Appropriations figure out 
that part. 

There was no supporting testimony for HB 1033. 

Larry Taborsky, Director, North Dakota Aeronautics Commission, testified in  
opposition to H B  1033. (22:30 min . )  He provided written testimony. (See attachment #2 . )  
(Ended 26:35 minutes) 

Representative Gruchella: You stated that insurance costs would go up, when putting the 
planes in a pool. Is that because pilots would be expected to fly a d ifferent plane every day 
and need more train ing? 

Larry Taborsky: I talked to the North Star Agency in Fargo, North Dakota, and it is not so 
much the train ing, even though that is an issue, but the age of the aircraft. An older aircraft 
is more prone to fai lure, and that drives the rates up. We were able to purchase a plane 
that is worth a lot more, and our rates went down. 

Representative Kreun: In the Bil l it says that the director shall enter agreements with the 
H ighway Patrol ,  Aeronautics Commission, and Game and Fish regard ing exclusive use of 
special ized aircraft. Have you looked at that yet, as far as exclusive use of that particular  
aircraft? 

Larry Taborsky: I bel ieve that we are excluded in that way, but I am wondering, how that 
helps the system . At this point we are running it, the people who are flying it are keeping 
track of the maintenance, we are taking care of the bi l l ing, and there is no add itional 
staffing. 

Representative Kreun: That is what I am asking, have you visited with any of the 
ind ividuals from the Department of Transportation as to how that could be hand led? 

Larry Taborsky: I have just visited with them informally. They don't have an interest in  
using i t  for a people mover. So, i t  would be our plane only. 

Representative Kreun: Some of the conversations were about housing aircraft in  a more 
efficient manner, rather than having them scattered throughout the state. 

Larry Taborsky: That has been addressed by our agencies as a collaborative effort. The 
real ity to that is that there is no one single place to house all of our aircraft. So, they do 
need to be scattered around just to physically fit them in around Bismarck. 

Representative Kreun: That was one of the questions, if we could do that. 
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Larry Taborsky: A concern with having al l  the p lanes housed in one place is that all of our 
schedu les are al l so d ifferent, there is a concern about the heat loss in  the winter. 

Chairman Ruby: Do you just have one plane? 

Larry Taborsky: Yes, and it is housed at Bismarck Aerocenter. 

James Prochniak, North Dakota Highway Patrol, testified in opposition to H B  1 033. He 
provided written testimony. (See attachment #3. )  (31 :00 minutes) 

James Prochniak: I would l ike to conclude with a comment about efficiency. The 
efficiency of any publ ic piece of safety equipment, a fire truck for example, is best 
measured when it is not used sometimes. When you don't have a fire or don't have to 
respond to an emergency. If we don't use our aircraft, yet the one time that we need it, we 
find a missing chi ld , the obvious operating costs per hour wi l l  go through the roof. Just to 
say the efficiency is increased in that case is not the best example. 

Chairman Ruby: Can you tel l  us about the special ized equipment? 

James Prochniak: Look at some of the photos that I have included in your packet. There 
is picture of our aircraft, you see a wing depicting ice removal equipment that is needed for 
search and rescue. There is ball that is hanging below the numbers on the plane. That is a 
Forward Imagin ing .Infrared System (FUR) . You can see people at n ight. It works wel l  
when you are looking for a criminal ,  or someone lost in a cold field . The glass cockpit 
ind icates the instrument panel in the front and the computer for the pi lot. Page two shows 
a computer, a joystick, and a monitor in the backseat for the FUR operator. The last page 
shows a deicing tank, the seats have been removed , and the other necessary containers 
and equipment that we use for search and rescue missions. The point that we are trying to 
make is not only the technology that is involved , but the investment that is there for law 
enforcement purposes. Last but not least, seats are not there for transport of passengers. 

Chairman Ruby: Exclusive use solves that, but is it the transfer of the title that is a big 
issue? 

James Prochniak: That is correct. 

Tom Trenbeth, Chief Deputy Attorney General for North Dakota: I agree with 
everything that the Colonel Prochniak said . I have a couple of qual ifiers that apply to our 
a ircraft. We don't have the specialized equipment, although we do use it for some of the 
same purposes. We used our aircraft, obtained through the Federal Government as a 
grant, for drug enforcement for the first five years, and it has since been limited to crime 
related activities. It is funded entirely out of our Asset Forfeiture Fund , which are funds that 
are received as a result of sel l ing tangible objects that are seized as a resu lt of criminal 
activity. It is avai lable when we need it. That is a very important factor for us .  For 
instance ,  if I have a multiple homicide in a part of the state where I only have one BCI 
agent, and I need four, I can have the other three up there in  a hurry. If I would have to get 
into the cue to wait for a plane, I may be better off to just put people in a car and get there 
late. My Senior Prosecutor spends most of h is time prosecuting high profi le crimes in 



House Transportation Committee 
HB 1033 
01/ 1 0/ 1 3 
Page 6 

outlying areas. He might spend two weeks on a rape trial in  Carrington or a murder trial in  
Wahpeton.  If he is gone for that long on a trial ,  we send him in his car. Two months later 
though, he has to go back for a half an hour sentencing. I can waste one and one-half 
days of h is time driving him there, or I can fly him there and back. What should I do? 

We are in  l ine for a replacement aircraft from the Federal Government. I don't know how 
long that wi l l  be. The Colonel made an excel lent point on the value of the asset, whether it 
is used for five hours or one hundred hours. 

Tom Trenbeth passed out testimony that was given by Dallas Carlson in the I nterim 
Committee. It is dated by a year, but the information is sti l l  current. (See attachment #4.) 
Chairman Ruby: Are al l  the costs, including the pi lot and the hanger, funded through the 
Asset Forfeiture Fund? 

Tom Trenbeth: They are. The fund is used also used for other law enforcement needs.  
Representative Delzer used the analogy of the Motor Pool .  The Attorney General's Office 
is exempt from the Motor Pool .  The reason might not be obvious unti l  you put a plain 
clothes officer in  a veh icle that says the State of North Dakota on the door. The exemption 
is obvious. It is my experience that you rarely realize any economies from adding a layer of 
management. This is what we are attempting to do here. 

Tom Trenbeth presented a draft of an amendment to this bi l l  which exempts the Office of 
Attorney General with the respect to aircraft received either by federal grant of surplus 
property or by civil forfeiture as a result of criminal activity. (See attachment #5) 

Representative Fransvog: Does the Attorney General's office have a pi lot? 

Tom Trenbeth: We have memorandum of understand ing with the Department of 
Transportation with respect to pi lots. They have access to our plane when we are not using 
it, and we have access to their p i lots when they are not using them. 

Representative Fransvog: Is it your interpretation , or is it what the Bill provides, if these 
p lanes are in a pool ,  someone from another department can come in and check out your 
a irplane, and you would be left waiting? 

Tom Trenbeth: It is that, and also the fact that I have a sweet l ittle Beachcraft Baron that I 
can fly for so many "wet hours". But if that Baron doesn't happen to be here, I might have 
to take off out of here with a King Air with two people in it. That would be inord inately 
expensive for that type of use. 

Kim Molesworth, Chief of Administrative Services for the North Dakota Game and 
Fish Department, testified in opposition to HB 1033 and provided written testimony. (43: 13 
minutes) (See attachment #6 . )  

Maurice Cook, a member of the North Dakota Aeronautics Commission, testified i n  
opposition to HB 1033. He  provided testimony written by Jay B .  Lindquist. (See 
attachment #7 . )  
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There was no further opposition. 

Chairman Ruby closed the hearing on H B  1033. The Bi l l  was not acted on. 



Minutes: 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

House Transportation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

HB 1033 
0 1 -24-13 

Job # 1 7720 

D Conference Committee 

Attachment #1 

Chairman Ruby brought HB 1033 back for the consideration of the committee and 
provided an amendment. See attachment #1 . 

Chairman Ruby: This amendment is a hoghouse, and it completely replaces the bi l l  that 
created the a ircraft pool .  It dictates to the agencies the direction of what they must do. It 
also creates some efficiency in our air fleet. (Chairman Ruby discussed the amendment 
part by part . )  

Representative Delmore: Do the Department of Transportation, the Attorney Genera l's 
Office, and al l  these places know that you are tel l ing them to sell their planes? Are they a l l  
on  board with these amendments? 

Chairman Ruby: Probably not. They haven't seen them yet, since they have just been 
introduced . Once they get the use of newer planes with this, and the extra funds that they 
weren't expecting with the first proposal, I think that a lot of them wi l l  be happy having 
newer planes to use. Basical ly UNO is exempt, a lso Game and Fish, and the Aeronautics 
Commission . 

Representative Kreun: The $4 .5 mi l lion in Section 6 ,  are we going to require them to buy 
new enough planes to el iminate the problem with getting parts? Who wil l  oversee that? 

Chairman Ruby: They wi l l  buy the best planes that they can with the money available. 

Representative Vigesaa: Being that the purchase has to be approved by the legislative 
body, I th ink the purchase wil l  be well scrutinized . 

Vice Chairman Owens: If there is sti l l  an agency out there that has an airplane and is not 
one of these agencies listed , are they sti l l  able to use it, but not replace it? 

Chairman Ruby: That is correct. 

Representative Weisz discussed the language "trained versus certified". 
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Representative Gruchella: Go over the exemptions, please. 

Chairman Ruby: Aeronautics' Commission, Game and Fish, H ighway Patrol, U N O, and 
the Adjutant General .  

Representative Gruchella: I th ink the UNO plane is owned by the Foundation .  

Representative Weisz moved the amendment. 
Representative Vigesaa seconded the motion.  

Representative Vigesaa recapped the amendment. ( 1 5:45) 
A voice vote was taken. All aye. The motion carried. 

Representative Gruchella: Doesn't Section 5 say that NDSU cannot have a plane? Every 
tier one university has an airplane. They have a lot of uses for a plane. They made a good 
case for having a plane in the interim meetings that we had . If they have to charter a plane 
every time they need it, it might be inconvenient. I think that we are real ly tying their hands 
by doing this . 

Chairman Ruby: They sti l l  could use the Department of Transportation plane, and they 
would save a lot of money. I fu l ly expect that they wil l  fly from place to place. I agree that 
they need to do that. 

Representative Oversen: Currently where does the Department of Transportation keep 
their a i rplanes? 

Chairman Ruby: In Bismarck. 

Representative Oversen: Since the Attorney General's plane was purchased with federal 
funds, do we have the authority to tell them to sell that and let them retain the funds? 

Chairman Ruby: Yes, as long as the money goes back into some sort of d rug law 
enforcement project. 

Representative Oversen: Was the intention of this to al low them to purchase another 
plane, or would they have to use on of the Department of Transportation planes now? 

Chairman Ruby: They wi l l  have to use the Department of Transportation planes, but wi l l  
have preference for law enforcement purposes. 

Representative Delmore: Who became so important at the Department of Transportation 
to make all of these determinations? I th ink we are creating another layer of bureaucracy 
even with this amendment. I bel ieve there are a lot of variables that we don't have 
answered . Who determines in the Department of Transportation, who gets the planes, how 
they get the planes, etc. ?  I see a lot of room in th is bi l l  for some real issues . 

Representative Weisz: Reading from the interim report, in  real ity the Department of 
Transportation is already doing this. So, from the Department of Transportation's 
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perspective we are not adding anything that they are not already doing with their current 
aircraft. You could argue that it may be inconvenient for some of the agencies. 

Chairman Ruby: They have the option to come to us to ask to buy a plane. The 
legislature can expand and reduce as needed . 

Representative Becker moved a DO PASS as amended on HB 1033 and re-referred to 
Appropriations. 
Representative Drovdal seconded the motion. 
A roll call vote was taken. Aye 10 Nay 3 Absent 1 
The motion carried. 

Representative Weisz will carry HB 1033. 



Amendment to: HB 1 033 

FISCAL NOT E 

Requested by Legislative Council 
01/25/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d ·r f '  t d  d t l  eve s an appropna 1ons an JCJpa e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $475,000 

Expenditures $5,300,000 

Appropriations $4,500,000 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill requires sale of certain aircraft, authorizes acquisition of replacement aircraft, bars acquisition of aircraft 
without approval, bans future use of state funds for certain aircraft, provides for operation of state aircraft by 
qualified pilots, & provides requirements for use of aircraft. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 2 provides that NO DOT shall provide air transportation services to other state agencies upon request and be 
reimbursed on a cost based user charge. These provisions reflect current NDDOT practice, so they should have no 
additional significant f iscal impact. Section 3 directs NDDOT to sell the 1 977 Piper Cheyenne and 1975 Cessna 
Skymaster airplanes and use the proceeds for replacement airplane purchases. It is estimated that the resale value 
of these two airplanes will be $400,000 and $35,000 respectively, for a total resale of $435,000. This section also 
provides that, after June 30, 2014, NDDOT may not use any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to 
maintain or operate these two airplanes. Section 4 directs the Attorney General's office to sell their 1 965 Beechcraft 
Baron airplane and retain the use the proceeds in accordance with the agreement entered into by the office when 
the airplane was obtained. It is estimated the resale value of this airplane will be approximately $40,000. This 
section also provides that, after June 30, 2014, the Attorney General's Office may not use any funds appropriated by 
the legislative assembly to maintain or operate this airplane. Section 5 provides that, after June 30, 2014, North 
Dakota State University may not use any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to lease an airplane. 
Section 6 provides an appropriation from the state's general fund to NO DOT in the amount of $4.5 mill ion less any 
realized proceeds from the sale or disposal of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes for the purpose of purchasing 
replacement airplanes. 



3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Under this bill, NO DOT and the Attorney General's Office may realize revenue from the sale of the airplanes 
identified in Part 2B of this fiscal note. This revenue is estimated at $435,000 for NDDOT and $40,000 for the 
Attorney General's Office. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The primary expenditures that would be realized under this bill would be incurred by NDDOT for replacement of the 
Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. NDDOT will try to replace the airplanes with recent model ,  used airplanes. To 
replace the Cheyenne,  NDDOT would consider a used King Air B200. It is estimated this airplane would cost 
approximately $3.5 million dollars. To replace the Skymaster, NDDOT would consider a used Cessna Caravan; the 
estimated cost for this airplane would be about $1.8 million dollars. Total replacement cost for both airplanes is 
estimated at about $5.3 million dollars. The Attorney General's office should see a reduction in operating expenses 
as a result of discontinuing operation of their Beechcraft Baron airplane. However, they may incur additional costs to 
re imburse NDDOT for costs incurred to obtain flights on NDDOT aircraft. This impact has not been included in 
section 1 A of this fiscal note as we do not know to what extent the Attorney General's office may utilize NO DOT 
aircraft. Likewise, North Dakota State University should see a reduction in their expenditures as a result of the 
provisions of section 5 of the bill, but this may be somewhat offset by costs to obtain transportation through other 
means. Again, this impact has not been included in section 1 A of this fiscal note as we do not know what the costs 
may be for NDSU to obtain any necessary flights to replace those resulting from use of their current aircraft. It 
should be noted that any agencies that w ill use their own p ilots to fly NDDOT aircraft pursuant to section 2 of the bill 
will incur annual training costs to comply with FAA and insurance requirements. It is estimated that the tuition and 
travel costs associated with this training will cost approximately $16,000 per p ilot per airplane each biennium. This 
impact has not been included in section 1 A of this fiscal note as we don't know to what extent, if any, other agencies 
might choose to utilize their own pilots to operate NDDOT aircraft. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Section 6 provides an appropriation to NDDOT from the general fund in the amount of $4.5 million dollars less any 
proceeds realized on the sale or disposal of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. Since it is estimated that 
NO DOT will realize approximately $435,000 on the resale of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes, this leaves a 
net amount to be charged against the appropriation of $4.065 million. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 02/04/201 3  



Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1033 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

12/19/2012 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I levels and appropriations anticipated under current aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-201 5  Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $2,000,000 $2,000,000 

Expenditures $1,750,000 $1,750,000 

Appropriations $1,750,000 $1,750,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-201 5 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill would create a central aircraft management system under the NO Department of Transportation . 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Under this bill, the central aircraft management system would be operated on an actual cost basis whereby users 
would be billed at a rate based on the actual operating and pilot costs, as well as depreciation and estimated aircraft 
replacement costs. Accordingly, NO DOT would need additional appropriation sufficient to cover the related costs. 
The excess of revenue over expenditures represents depreciation and reserves for high cost repairs/replacements. 
This excess would be spent in later years as the aircraft pool incurs costs to replace aircraft and make major, high 
cost repairs to the aircraft. Note: The revenue and expenditure figures represent only the central aircraft pool. They 
do not represent the impact on agencies using the pool . The agencies using the pool should see an increase in 
expend itures for the fees they pay to the aircraft pool and a decrease in expenditures for aircraft operating costs that 
will now be covered by the pool. This fiscal note is based on the assumption that the aircraft currently used by the 
affected agencies would continue to be operated by the aircraft pool. The assumptions do not include near term 
replacement of any aircraft. If it becomes necessary to replace aircraft in the near term, the costs would be 
significantly greater than presented in this fiscal note. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

It is very difficult to accurately estimate the in itial biennium revenues associated with a central aircraft management 
system until we have accumulated actual operating data for a biennium. Nonetheless, we estimate the additional 
first biennium revenues to operate the pool of aircraft to be approximately $2 mill ion greater than the NDDOT 
currently recognizes on its current aircraft. This revenue would be intended to cover the actual operating costs of the 
additional aircraft as well as depreciation and reserves for high cost repair/replacement. The DOT would not initially 
have a revenue source to cover major repairs/replacements. Funds for this purpose would be accumulated over 
time through the charging of reserves for major repairs/replacements and depreciation charges. Therefore , for the 



first biennium, NDDOT would need an additional revenue source to cover the estimated major repairs/replacements 
of $500,000 that might occur in the 1 st biennium. Such revenue source is not covered in the revenue identified in 
Part 1 A above. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

It is very difficult to accurately estimate the initial biennium expenditures associated with a central aircraft 
management system until we have accumulated actual operating data for a bie nnium. Nonetheless, we estimate the 
additional, "out of pocket" expenditures to operate the additional aircraft not currently operated by NO DOT to be 
approximately $1.75 million as shown on the attached schedule. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

The NDDOT will require an addition to its existing appropriation in the amount of $1 .75 million to cover the additional 
costs of operating the aircraft pool 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 01 /09/2013 



HB1033 
Estimated Additional 1st Biennium Costs to Operate Aircraft Pool 

January 9, 2013 

Salaries- Temporary salaries and additional overtime 

Additional travel costs 

Additional training costs 

Software, charts, manuals 

Fuel 

Insurance 

Repairs 

Licenses and miscellaneous fees 

Hangar Rental 

1st biennium initial startup major repairs/replacements 

Total 

Prepared by NDOOT Financial Management Divsion 
January 9, 2013 

$ 300,000 

43,000 

50,000 

7,000 

200,000 

60,000 

500,000 

20,000 

70,000 

500,000 

$ 1,750,000 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Ruby 

January 1 81 201 3 

PROPOSED AM ENDMENTS TO HOUSE B ILL NO. 1 033 

Page 1 I line 1 I after "A B ILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to req uire 
authorization of the purchase or lease of aircraft; to provide for the use of department 
of transportation airplanes; to provide for the sale of airplanes; and to provide an 
appropriation. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGI SLATIVE ASS E M B LY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1 .  

Authorization to p urchase or lease aircraft - Legislative assem bly or 
budget section approval.  

A state agency or other entity of state government may not purchase or lease 
an aircraft without specific authorization from the legislative assem bly or the budget 
section of the legislative management if the legislative assembly is not in session. This 
section does not apply to aircraft purchased or leased by the office of the adjutant 
general or the university of North Dakota school of aviation. 

SECTION 2. 

Use of department of transportation airplanes. 

Upon request, the department of transportation shall provide air transportation 
services to other state agencies. Each agency using air transportation services from 
the department shall pay a user charge determined by the department of transportation 
which must be based upon the actual cost of operating the aircraft. The department 
shall give priority to requests for air transportation services from the attorney general's 
office when the request is for law enforcement purposes. The director of the 
department of transportation shall allow employees of other state agencies to operate 
the department's airplanes for official purposes if the employee is properly licensed and 
has the proper rating and type endorsement to operate the requested airplane. 

SECTION 3. SALE OR DISPOSAL OF DEPARTMENT O F  
TRANS PORTATION AI RPLANES. The director of the department of transportation 
shall sell or dispose of the department's 1 977 piper cheyenne airplane and the 
department's 1 975 cessna skymaster airplane. The proceeds fro m  the sale or disposal 
of the airplanes must be used for replacement airplane purchases as provided in 
section 6 of this Act. After June 301 201 41 the department may not use any funds 
appropriated by the legislative assembly to maintain or operate the department's 1 977 
piper cheyenne airplane or the department's 1 975 cessna skymaster airplane. 

SECTION 4. DISPOSAL OF ATTO RNEY G EN ERAL'S O F F I C E  AIRPLAN E .  
The attorney general's office shall sell or dispose of the office's 1 965 beechcraft baron 
airplane. The proceeds from the sale of the airplane must be retained by the attorney 
general's office and used in accordance with the agreement entered into by the office 
to obtain the airplane. After June 301 20 1 41 the office may not use any funds 
appropriated by the legislative assembly to maintain or operate the airplane. 

Page No. 1 



SECTION 5. NORTH DAKOTA STATE U N IVERSITY AI RPLANE. After 
June 30, 20 1 4, North Dakota state university may not use any funds appropriated by 
the legislative assem bly, including funds from continuing appropriations authorized by 
the legislative assembly, for the purpose of leasing an airplane. 

SECTION 6. APP ROP RIATION - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION -
AI RPLANE REPLACEMENT. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general 
fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $4,500, 000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of transportation for the 
purpose of purchasing replacement airplanes for the department's airplane fleet, for the 
biennium beginning July 1 ,  201 3, and ending June 30, 201 5. The appropriation 
provided in this section must be reduced by an amount equal to the total proceeds 
received from the sale or disposal of department airplanes as provided in section 3 of 
this Act. The funding provided in this section is considered a one-time funding item ." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
January 25, 2013 12:15pm 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_14_014 
Carrier: Weisz 

Insert LC: 13.0083.05003 Title: 06000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1033: Transportation Committee (Rep. Ruby, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee ( 1  0 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 
3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1 033 was placed on the S ixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "A B ILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to require 
authorization of the purchase or lease of a ircraft; to provide for the use of department 
of transportation airplanes; to provide for the sale of airplanes; and to provide an 
appropriation. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. 

Authorization to purchase or lease aircraft - Legislative assembly or 
budget section approval. 

A state agency or other entity of state government may not purchase or 
lease an aircraft without specific authorization from the legislative assembly or the 
budget section of the legislative management if the legislative assembly is not in 
session. This section does not apply to aircraft purchased or leased by the office of 
the adjutant general or the un iversity of North Dakota school of aviation. 

SECTION 2. 

Use of department of transportation airplanes. 

Upon request, the department of transportation shall provide air 
transportation services to other state agencies. Each agency using air transportation 
services from the department shall pay a user charge determined by the department 
of transportation which must be based upon the actual cost of operating the aircraft. 
The department shall give priority to requests for air transportation services from the 
attorney general's office when the request is for law enforcement purposes. The 
director of the department of transportation shall al low employees of other state 
agencies to operate the department's airplanes for official purposes if the employee 
is properly licensed and has the proper rating and tvpe endorsement to operate the 
requested airplane. 

SECTION 3. SALE OR DISPOSAL OF DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION AIRPLANES. The director of the department of transportation 
shall sell or dispose of the department's 1 977 piper cheyenne airplane and the 
department's 1 975 cessna skymaster airplane. The proceeds from the sale or 
disposal of the airplanes must be used for replacement airplane purchases as 
provided in section 6 of this Act. After June 30, 2014, the department may not use 
any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to maintain or operate the 
department's 1 977 piper cheyenne airplane or the department's 1 975 cessna 
skymaster airplane. 

SECTION 4. DISPOSAL OF ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE AIRPLANE. 
The attorney general's office shall sel l  or dispose of the office's 1 965 beechcraft 
baron airplane. The proceeds from the sale of the airplane must be retained by the 
attorney general's office and used in accordance with the agreement entered into by 
the office to obtain the airplane. After June 30, 20 14 ,  the office may not use any 
funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to maintain or operate the airplane. 

SECTION 5. NORTH DAKOTA STATE UNIVERSITY AIRPLANE. After 
J une 30, 201 4, North Dakota state university may not use any funds appropriated by 
the legislative assembly, including funds from continu ing appropriations authorized 
by the legislative assembly, for the purpose of leasing an airplane. 

( 1 )  DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_1 4_014 



Com Standing Committee Report 
January 25, 2013 12:15pm 

Module 10: h_stcomrep_14_014 
Carrier: Weisz 

Insert LC: 13.0083.05003 Title: 06000 

SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION -
AIRPLANE REPLACEMENT. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of 
$4,500,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of 
transportation for the purpose of purchasing replacement airplanes for the 
department's a irplane fleet, for the biennium beginning July 1, 201 3, and ending 
June 30, 20 1 5 . The appropriation provided in th is section must be reduced by an 
amount equal to the total proceeds received from the sale or disposal of department 
airplanes as provided in section 3 of this Act. The funding provided in this section is 
considered a one-time funding item." 

Renumber accordingly 

( 1 )  DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_1 4_01 4  
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2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

House Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room , State Capitol 

H B  1 033 
2/6/1 3 

Job 1 8407 

0 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to require authorization of the purchase or lease of a ircraft; to provide for 
the use of department of transportation airplanes; to provide for the sale of airplanes; and 
to provide an appropriation . 

Minutes: You may make reference to "attached testimony." 

Rep. Dan Ruby, District 38: Introduced the bi l l  beginning minute 0:45. 

02 :20 
Chairman Delzer: How d id you come up with the $4.5M? 

Rep. Ruby: Rep. Porter felt comfortable that was a good number to be able to purchase 
two planes that were more efficient, more comfortable, and easier to mainta in .  This wou ld 
actually save money, compared to what they are putting into the planes now. The more 
usage a plane gets, the cheaper per hour of use it is. 

Rep. Todd Porter, District 34: As we were looking through the whole process, we were 
looking from the standpoint of late model used a ircraft. A King Air 200, which is what the 
Governor and DOT currently have as one of their platform planes, is a 1 998 model .  A late 
model King Air 200 2003 model with low engine time is about $3M. To replace the 
Skymaster, the 30-year-old in-l ine twin engine plane DOT uses to take pictures, which is 
the only thing they can use it for, with a Cessna 208 Caravan ,  which is a h igh winged 
turbine engine aircraft and al l-weather capable, that can be used for transporting people 
and have a camera mount, is about $ 1 .5M-$ 1 .8M used . These aircraft appear to be read ily 
available onl ine, and that's what I used for my pricing model . 

Chairman Delzer: In the Fiscal Note, it looks l ike you value the planes to be sold at 
$435,000; is that to be added to thei r appropriation? 

Rep. Porter: We were going to give them $4 .5M in spend ing authority total ,  subtracting 
whatever they get for the used airplanes. 

Rep. Hawken: It's in  there . 



House Appropriations Committee 
H B  1033 
2/6/13 
Page 2 

Rep. Porter: On section 3 on the sale of the department's planes, it is . On the sale of the 
attorney general's planes, it is not, because that was forfeiture money that doesn't come 
back to the state. But the other two would . 

Chairman Delzer: I'm not sure how to write this correctly. How do you know the value of 
those two planes, to potential ly take that off the $4 .5M? 

Rep. Porter: The language could be changed that the proceeds of the sale or d isposal 
must go back to the general fund.  That's what the intent was. 

Chairman Delzer: I know you have to put the top dol lar figure in the bi l l ,  but is there a way 
to incentivize them? If we put $4 .5M out there and they go shopping, they' l l  spend $4 .5M.  

Rep. Porter: Because they need to purchase two planes, they wouldn't be able to get 
someth ing brand new and sti l l  get a second plane. 

Chairman Delzer: I would guess this just rolls up. If they could get the two planes for $3M, 
what then? 

Rep. Porter: We are turn ing this over to them . When you look at market prices, there isn't a 
whole lot of leeway for them , so long as they stay focused on two. 

Chairman Delzer: We aren't tel l ing them what to buy, by model or by function .  Are we 
requ i red to have a twin for the governor? 

Rep. Porter: We are not required , but they have a standing policy that the governor on ly 
fl ies in a twin and has two pi lots. 

Rep. Skarphol: Why do we have a pol icy that causes it to be more economical for an 
agency to have state employees drive somewhere, when there are open and empty seats 
on the governor's plane going to the same place? I know of a situation where they were told 
it would cost $800 per seat to fly on that plane. 

Rep. Ruby: We d id not d iscuss that. No scenario l ike that was brought up. The original  b i l l  
requ ired each agency to pay a fee for using the planes in the pool .  As far as agency to 
agency bi l l ing, we didn't get into it. 

Chairman Delzer: We had some d iscussions about that in government services. 

Rep. Kempenich: We went over this two years ago, too. DOT eats the cost for the 
governor's transport. With other agencies, there's a prorated cost. The DOT is basically 
covering costs. If we don't want to charge other agencies, we might need to figure out a 
pool or something. 

Chairman Delzer: That's a d iscussion we can have on the DOT budget. 



House Appropriations Committee 
HB 1033 
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1 3 : 35 
Rep. Glassheim: The FN talks about the two airplanes replacement being $5.3M, not 
$4 .5M.  Can you explain? 

Chairman Delzer: It's the updated FN , dated 1 /25. 

Rep. Ruby: Rep.  Porter was talking about numbers he found search ing onl ine.  

Rep. Kempenich: There are three d ifferent entities involved on this p lane business. 
Currently, H ighway Patrol suppl ies the pi lots, DOT maintains the planes, and Aeronautics is 
in  there, too.  It's an interagency operation.  

Rep. Ruby: The main issue that came before us is that there are some planes that aren't 
being util ized much , so their cost per hour could be over $6000, and the same plane by 
another agency was probably $2000-$2400 per hour use. The main thing is, section 1 
requires legislative authority over future purchases. 

Chairman Delzer: Section 5 also tel ls NDSU to d ivest of their King Air. 

Rep. Ruby: That is correct, that is the one that cost $6000 per hour to use, because it 
wasn't used very much. It was more efficient to charter a plane or access a DOT plane. 

Chairman Delzer: The FN shows DOT estimated $3.5M for a l ike King Air, and $ 1 .8M,  to 
total $5 .3M.  Now, if we only give them the $4 .5M,  then they have to try to work within that 
amount, because that's all they would have. 

Rep. Kempenich: That worked last session for the Aeronautics Commission. They didn't 
get exactly what they wanted , but they got what they needed . 

Chairman Delzer: They wou ld always have the opportun ity to come back next session . 
This would be a two year appropriation;  if they d id not get it done before next session,  they 
would sti l l  have six months to work on that. Anything further on HB 1 033? The committee 
continued on to the next bi l l .  



2013 HOUSE STA N D I NG COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

House Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room , State Capitol 

HB 1 033 
2/1 4/1 3 

Job 1 90 1 5  

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A B ILL for an Act to require authorization of the purchase or lease of a ircraft; to provide for 
the use of department of transportation a irplanes; to provide for the sale of airplanes; and 
to provide an appropriation . 

Minutes: u may make reference to "attached testimon " 

Rep. Kempenich: I have a proposed amendment on this b i l l ,  but it's not with me. It would 
put together an advisory board . There is also an issue with the Attorney General's plane; 
we can transfer ownership ,  but it can't be sold . 

Chairman Delzer requested an amendment be drafted that includes the advisory board 
and the other issue. 

Brady Larson, Legislative Council: The current amendment for Rep. Kempenich would 
establ ish an advisory board includ ing the d i rector of the Department of Transportation or 
h is/her designee; the d i rector of OMB or h is/her designee; the d irector of the Aeronautics 
Commission ;  and two members of the legislative assembly. The committee wou ld advise 
the DOT on the purchase of the new aircraft. 

Chairman Delzer: Any problem with the idea of that? 

Rep. Skarphol: I hope we wil l  address the issue of uti l ization of these planes. 

Rep. Kempenich: Yes . We had talked about doing that in the DOT budget. That's kind of 
what this advisory board is for. 

Chairman Delzer: Let's add to the amendment that the section 3 money goes to the 
general fund money, and leave section 6 as a straight appropriation . Should we have a 
lower dol lar amount, that they could only go above that to $4 .5M with budget section 
approval? I think this is probably a smart move. If we're going to do th is, I th ink we shou ld 
put every incentive in place that we can to do it as cheaply as possible. We also need 
something in there about the Attorney General's plane, to change that word ing, from have 
to get rid of it, to could designate it to some other el igible entity. Further questions or 
comments? 
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Rep. Monson: I hesitate to put in  there that the budget section would give approval for 
more money. 

05:00 
Chairman Delzer: It's a question of trying to incentivize them to purchase for less money. 
Maybe the budget section should have to approve the purchase anyway, before it's done. 

Rep. Kempenich: That's the point of the advisory board . 

Rep. Glassheim :  DOT's estimate is $5.3M. Has anybody talked to them about this? 

Rep. Kempenich: We had the same conversation with the aeronautics commission last 
year. They found something that was used , which lowered the price s ignificantly. 

Chairman Delzer: Rep. Porter said when you look at the range, DOT took the top of the 
price range, $4 .5M was in the middle. We'l l  wait for written amendments to review. 
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House Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 
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D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to require authorization of the purchase or lease of aircraft; to provide for 
the use of department of transportation airplanes; to provide for the sale of a i rplanes; and 
to provide an appropriation . 

Minutes: 

Rep. Kempenich: I have two amendments drafted . 

Chairman Delzer: The d ifference is one goes to $4 mi l l ion and the other stays at $4.5 
m i l l ion. It's under the statement of purpose. 

Rep. Kempenich reviewed amendments .06002 and .06003. 

Rep. Kempenich moved amendment .06002. 

Rep. Thoreson seconded. 

Chairman Delzer read the amendment. 

Rep. Kempenich: It's a catch-22 with that plane. You can't get rid of it. It can only go to a 
correspond ing law enforcement agency. 

Chairman Delzer: The statement of purpose says it removes a provision in section 5 .  But 
if you read the bi l l ,  section 5 is the NDSU airplane and we d id not want to affect that. 

Rep. Kempenich: I have a marked up copy, and section 5 is sti l l  in the b i l l .  

Chairman Delzer: The change is being made to section 6 of the engrossed bi l l .  Are you 
interested in moving .06003? 

Rep. Kempenich: I th ink $4.5 mi l l ion would be what we intend to do, especially moving 
the money from the sale of those other planes into the general fund . 

Rep. Skarphol: I s  the intention to transfer the Attorney General 's airplane to this pool? 
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Rep. Kempenich: It's a surplus mi l itary plane, and their statement in  there is it has to go to 
a l ike source. They could transfer it to the highway patrol .  But you can't sel l  it. 

Chairman Delzer: It would not be able to go to the pool because DOT is not el igible for it. 

Rep. Kempenich: We cou ld just leave it in the AG. 

Chairman Delzer: If they wanted to, they could transfer it without us tel l ing them to. What 
is the timeframe on this? 

Rep. Kempenich: It ends 201 5. 

Rep. Skarphol: What does the Attorney General's office use the plane for? 

Rep. Kempenich: It was less than 1 00 hours that the plane had flown the last time we 
checked in the prior biennium. It's the Attorney General's staff that has access to it. 

Rep. Skarphol: Can we give it back to the federal  government? 

Rep. Kempenich: Yes.  

Chairman Delzer: That to me would be the smartest move 

Rep. Nelson: Weren't we thinking the $4.5 mi l l ion was too much ,  because we thought we 
could sell the plane? Was that where the efficiency was going to be, with d isposing of the 
plane? What has changed that we need the $4.5 mi l l ion? 

Chairman Delzer: The way it was orig inal ly worded , they were to sel l  those two planes 
that are avai lable to be sold and that was to be taken off of the $4.5 mi l l ion . What we are 
doing with this amendment is saying the sell ing of those two planes goes to the general 
fund.  Before it was $4.5 mi l l ion appropriation less whatever they got for those planes. 

Rep. Kempenich: The orig inal  bil l was $5. 3  mi l l ion ; $4.5 mi l l ion appropriation plus the 
proceeds from the two planes. 

Rep. Nelson: If that's the case, why d id you prepare .06003? 

Rep. Kempenich: Amendment .06002 establ ished the advisory board ;  .06003 pul led the 
$500,000 out. 

Chairman Delzer: We felt if you put $4.5 mi l l ion out there, they'l l  use it. 

Rep. Skarphol moved a substitute motion to adopt .06003. 

Rep. Kempenich seconded. 

Voice Vote: Motion carried . 
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Rep. Glassheim moved to delete from the amendment the two members of the legislative 
assembly from the advisory committee appointed by the chairman of legislative 
management. 

Rep. Guggisberg seconded . 

Rep. Kempenich: We need to resist th is motion .  

Voice Vote: Motion fai led . 

Rep. Skarphol: We should donate the plane in the AG's office to the US Fish and Wild l ife 
Services. If th is is an encumbrance to us, and was donated to us by the federal 
government, it would only seem fair that they should get it back. I move th is as an 
amendment. 

Rep. Hawken seconded . 

Rep. Nelson: This doesn't make any sense at a l l .  We don't need the US Fish and Wild l ife 
to be the recipient of this plane. Even if there was a good reason for it ,  the publ ic relations 
of this move wou ld be terrible. I resist this motion. 

Rep. Skarphol: These folks are responsible for hunting coyotes. They wou ld have use for 
the plane. 

Chairman Delzer: Would you be amenable to the idea that they consider that as an 
option? 

Rep. Skarphol: Yes. 

Voice Vote: Motion fai led to put US Fish and Wildl ife in  as an option . 

Rep. Kempenich moved a Do Pass as Amended. 

Rep. Streyle seconded . 

Roll Call Vote: 

Yes: 1 8  

No: 3 

Absent: 1 

Carried by Rep. Kempenich. 



Amendment to: H B  1 033 

FISCAL N OTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/25/2013 

1 A .  State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I r ·  t d  d t l  eve s and appropnat10ns an JCJpa e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $475,000 

Expenditures $5,300,000 

Appropriations $4,500,000 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief sumfTlary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill requires sale of certain aircraft, authorizes acquisition of replacement aircraft, bars acquisition of aircraft 
without approval, bans future use of state funds for certain aircraft, provides for operation of state aircraft by 
qualified pi lots, & p rovides requirements for use of aircraft. 

B. .Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 2 provides that NDDOT shall provide air transp,ortation services to other state agencies upon request and be 
reimbursed on a cost based user charge. These provisions reflect current N DDOT p ractice , so they should have no 
additional significant fiscal impact. Section 3 directs NDDOT to sell the 1 977 Piper Cheyenne and 1 975 Cessna 
Skymaster airplanes and use the proceeds for replacement airplane purchases. It is estimated that the resale value 
of these two airplanes w il l  be $400,000 and $35,000 respectively, for a total resale of $435,000. This section also 
provides that, after June 30, 201 4, NDDOT may not use any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to 
maintain or operate these two airplanes. Section 4 directs the Attorney General's office to sell thei r  1 965 Beechcraft 
Baron airplane and retain the use the proceeds in accordance w ith the agreement entered into by the office w hen 
the airplane was obtained.  It is estimated the resale value of this airplane will be approximately $40,000. This 
section also p rovides that, after June 30, 2014, the Attqrney General's Office may not use any funds appropriated by 
the legislative assembly to maintain or  operate this airplane. Section 5 provides that, after June 30, 2014, North 
Dakota State University may not use any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to lease an airplane. 
Section 6 provides an appropriation from the state's general fund to NDDOT in the amount of $4.5 million less any 
realized p roceeds from the sale or d isposal of the Cheyenne and Skymaster  airplanes for the purpose of purchasing 
replacement airplanes. 



3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
! ;· I 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive· budget. 

Under this bil l ,  NDDOT and the Attorney General's Office may realize revenue from the sale of the airplanes 
identified in Part 2B of this fiscal note. This revenue is estimated at $435,000 for NO DOT and $40,000 for the 
Attorney General's Office. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affecteq. 

The primary expenditures that would be realized under this bill would be incurred by N O  DOT for replacement of the 
Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. NDDOT wil l  try to replace the airplanes with recent model, used airplanes. To 
replace the Cheyenne, N O  DOT would consider a used King Air 8200. It is  estimated this airplane would cost 
approximately $3.5 million dollars. To replace the Skymaster, NDDOT would consider a used Cessna Caravan; the 
estimated cost for this airplane would be about $1 .8 million dollars. Total replacement cost for both airplanes is 
estimated at about $5.3 mill ion dollars. The Attorney General's office should see a reduction in operating expenses 
as a result of discontinuing operation of their Beechcraft Baron airplane. However, they may incur additional costs to 
reimburse N O  DOT for costs incurred to obtain flights on NO DOT aircraft. This impact has not been included in 
section 1A of this fiscal note as we do not know to what extent the Attorney General's office may utilize NO DOT 
aircraft. Likewise, North Dakota State University should see a reduction in their expenditures as a result of the 
provisions of section 5 of the bill, but this may be somewhat offset by costs to obtain transportation through other 
means. Again, this impact has not been included in section 1 A  of this fiscal note as we do not know what the costs 
may be for NDSU to obtain any necessary flights to rep lace tnose resulting from use of their current aircraft. It 
should be noted that any agencies that w il l  use their own pilots to fly NO DOT aircraft pursuant to section 2 of the bill 
w il l  incur annual training costs to comply with FAA arid insurance req uirements. It is  estimated that the tuition and 
travel costs associated with this training will cost approximately $1 6,000 per pilot per airplane each biennium. This 
impact has not been included in  section 1 A of this fiscal note as we don't know to what extent, if any, other agencies 
might choose to utilize their own pilots to operate NDDOT aircraft. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts.; Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Section 6 provides an appropriation to NO DOT from the general fund in the amount of $4.5 million dollars less any 
proceeds realized on the sale or disposal of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. Since it is estimated that 
NO DOT wil l  realize approximately $435,000 on the resale of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes, this leaves a 
net amount to be charged against the appropriation of $4.065 million. 

Name: Shannon L .  Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 02/04/201 3 

' 
::. · · 

I ' 



Bill/Resolution No.: H B  1 033 

FISCAL NOTE 

Requested by Legislative Council 
12/1912012 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d ' t' t' ' t d  d t l  eve s an appropna 1ons an Jc/pa e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $2,000,000 

Expenditures $1 ,750,000 

Appropriations $1 ,750,000 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$2,000,000 

$1 ,750,000 

$1,750,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief surmnary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill would create a central aircraft management system under the NO Department of Transportation. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relev�nt to the analysis. 

Under this bill, the central aircraft management system would be operated on an actual cost basis whereby users 
would be billed at a rate based on the actual operating and pilot costs, as well as depreciation and estimated aircraft 
replacement costs. Accordingly, NO DOT would need additional appropriation sufficient to cover the related costs. 
The excess of revenue over expenditures represents depreciation and reserves for high cost repairs/replacements. 
This excess would be spent in later years as the aircraft pool incurs costs to replace aircraft and make major, high 
cost repairs to the aircraft. Note: The revenue and expenditure figures represent only the central aircraft pool. They 
do not represent the impact on agencies using the pool. The agencies using the pool should see an increase in 
expenditures for the fees they pay to the aircraft pool apd a decrease in expenditures for aircraft operating costs that 
will now be covered by the pool. This fiscal note is based on the assumption that the aircraft currently used by the 
affected agencies would continue to be operated by the aircraft pool. The assumptions do not include near term 
replacement of any aircraft. If it becomes necessary to replace aircraft in the near term, the costs would be 
significantly greater than presented in this fiscal note. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

It is very difficult to accurately estimate the initial biennium revenues associated with a central aircraft management 
system until we have accumulated actual operating data for a biennium. Nonetheless, we estimate the additional 
first biennium revenues to operate the pool of a ircraft to be approximately $2 m illion greater than the NDDOT 
currently recognizes on its current aircraft. This revenue would be intended to cover the actual operating costs of the 
additional a ircraft as well as depreciation and reserves :for high cost repair/replacement. The DOT would not initially 
have a revenue source to cover major repairs/replacements. Funds for this purpose would be accumulated over 
time through the charging of reserves for major repairs/replacements and depreciation charges. Therefore, for the 

I i 



first biennium, NDDOT would need an additional revenue source to cover the estimated major repairs/replacements 
of $500,000 that might occur in the 1 st biennium. Such revenue source is not covered in the revenue identified in 
Part 1 A  above. 

,. 
B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, fine item, and 

fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. . 
· 

. " 
It is very difficult to accurately estimate the initial biennium expenditures associated with a central aircraft 
management system until we have accumulated actual operating data for a biennium. Nonetheless, we estimate the 
additional, "out of pocket" expenditures to operate the additional aircraft not currently operated by NDDOT to be 
approximately $1 .75 million as shown on the attached schedule. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. · 

The NO DOT will require an addition to its existing appropriation in the amount of $1 .75 million to cover the additional 
costs of operating the aircraft pool : · 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 0 1 /09/201 3 

I i 



1 3 .0083. 06003 
Title. 07000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Kempenich 

February 1 4, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMEN DMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE B ILL N O. 1 033 

Page 1 ,  line 2 ,  after the second "airplanes" insert " ;  to provide legislative intent; to provide for 
budget section approval" 

Page 2, line 4, remove "used for replacement" 

Page 2, line 5, replace "airplane purchases as provided in section 6 of this Act" with "remitted to 
the state treasurer for deposit in the general fund" 

Page 2, line 9, after "4."  insert "LEGISLATIVE I NTENT -" 

Page 2, line 9, replace "The" with "It is the intent of the sixty-third legislative assembly that the" 

Page 2, line 1 0, remove "sell or" 

Page 2, line 1 0 , after "airplane" insert "or transfer the title of the airplane to an eligible entity in 
accordance with the agreement entered by the office to obtain the airplane" 

Page 2, line 1 0, remove "The" 

Page 2, remove lines 1 1  throug h 1 4  

Page 2 ,  line 20, after "REPLACEMENT" insert " - BUDGET SECTION AP P ROVAL -
ADVISORY C O M M ITTEE" 

Page 2 ,  line 24 , remove "The appropriation provided in this section must be reduced by an" 

Page 2, remove line 25 

Page 2 ,  line 26, replace "as provided in section 3 of this Act. " with "The department of 
transportation must receive budget section approval prior to expending any funds 
appropriated under this section in excess of $4, 000,000." 

Page 2, after line 27, insert: 

"During the biennium begin ning July 1 ,  201 3, and ending June 30, 201 5, the 
department of transportation shall establish an airplane replaceme nt advisory 
comm ittee to advise the department of transportation regarding the purchase of 
replacement airplanes authorized under this section. The members of the advisory 
committee include: 

1 .  T h e  director of the department of transportation or t h e  director's designee 
who shall serve as chairman; 

2. The director of the aeronautics commission or the director's desig nee; 

3. The director of the office of management and budget or the director's  
designee; and 

4. Two members of the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of the 
legislative management. 

Page No. 1 



The com mittee shall meet at the call of the chairman. The members of the committee 
who are members of the legislative assembly are entitled to receive compensation and 
expense reimbursement as provided under section 54-03-20 and reimbursement for 
mileage as provided by law for state officers. The legislative council shall pay the 
compensation and expense reimbursement for the legislative members." 

Renum ber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF P U RPOSE OF A M E N D M ENT: 

This amendment provides for the fol lowing: 

Adjusts Section 3 to provide that any funds received from the sale of Department of 
Transportation airplanes are deposited in the general fund. 

Adjusts Section 4 to provide leg islative intent regarding the disposal of the Attorneys General's 
office airplane. 

Removes a provision in Section 5 that reduces the general fund appropriation to the Department 
of Transportation for new ai rplane purchases by an amou nt equal to proceeds received from the 
sale of department airplanes. 

Requ i res Budget Section approval to expend more than $4 mi l l ion for the purchase of new 
airplanes. 

Creates a committee to advise the Department of Transportation regard ing the purchase of 
replacement ai rplanes for the department. 

Page No. 2 



Date: t.-{t�fls 

House Appropriations 

Roll Call Vote #: 

201 3 HOUSE STA N D I N G  COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BI LL/RESOLUTIO N  NO. /()11 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number ____ -=D�/i)......,.O'-"L-..:.._ ___________ _ 

Action Taken :  0 Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended � Adopt Amend ment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Seconded By �'¥· 71A Oftj'Ov') 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Delzer Rep. Streyle 
Vice Chairman Kempenich Rep. Thoreson 
Rep. Bel lew Rep. Wieland 
Rep. Brandenburg 
Rep. Dosch 
Rep. G rande Rep. Boe 
Rep. Hawken Rep. Glassheim 
Rep. Kreidt Rep. Guggisberg 
Rep. Martinson Rep. Holman 
Rep. Monson Rep. Wil liams 
Rep. Nelson 
Rep. Pol lert 
Rep. Sanford 
Rep. Skarphol 

Total Yes No -----------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Yes No 



Date: '& / t 1 /l3 
Roll Call Vote #: --'1.,;""----

House Appropriations 

201 3 HOUSE STA N D I N G  C O M MITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. t �33 f 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken :  D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended rzr Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By �· .$ tAqho I Seconded By f_.ep. l�i� 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes 

Chairman Delzer Rep. Streyle 
Vice Chairman Kempenich Rep. Thoreson 
Rep. Bellew Rep. Wieland 
Rep. Brandenburg 
Rep. Dosch 
Rep. G rande Rep. Boe 
Rep. Hawken Rep. Glassheim 
Rep. Kreidt Rep. Guggisberg 
Rep. Martinson Rep. Holman 
Rep. Monson Rep. Will iams 
Rep. Nelson 
Rep. Pollert 
Rep. Sanford 
Rep. Skarphol 

Total Yes No 

No 

--------------------- ----------------------------
Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate i ntent: 



Date : ��( �{13 
Rol l  Cal l  Vote #: _3_._ __ _ 

House Appropriations 

201 3 HOUSE STA N D I N G  COM MITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTI O N  NO. /033 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Counci l  Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken :  D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended � Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By Qff· ( .Jass h.QA M 

Representatives 
Chairman Delzer 
Vice Chairman Kempenich 
Rep. Bel lew 
Rep. Brandenburg 
Rep. Dosch 
Rep. Grande 
Rep. H awken 
Rep. Kreidt 
Rep. Martinson 
Rep. Monson 
Rep. Nelson 
Rep. Pol lert 
Rep. Sanford 
Rep. Skarphol 

Total Yes 

Seconded By 

Yes No Representatives 
Rep. Streyle 
Rep. Thoreson 
Rep. Wieland 

Rep. Boe 
Rep. Glassheim 
Rep. Guggisberg 
Rep. Holman 
Rep. Wil l iams 

No 

Yes No 

--------------------- -----------------------------
Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly i ndicate intent: 

��5�vt os�·to!/ 
o..}.» \ 5  Of[ fp-MYVtr'6tu 



Date: I'V{ttt / 15 
Rol l  Call Vote #: ---=cut-, __ _ 

House Appropriations 

201 3 HOUSE STA N D I N G  COM MITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BI LL/RESOLUTIO N  NO. /C3J I 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Counci l  Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken:  D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended ll:J Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Seconded By �· t-facelwJ 
Representatives Yes No Representatives 

Chairman Delzer Rep. Streyle 
Vice Chairman Kempenich Rep. Thoreson 
Rep. Bel lew Rep. Wieland 
Rep. Brandenburg 
Rep. Dosch 
Rep. Grande Rep. Boe 
Rep. Hawken Rep. Glassheim 
Rep. Kreidt Rep. Guggisberg 
Rep. Martinson Rep. Holman 
Rep. Monson Rep. Wil l iams 
Rep. Nelson 
Rep. Pol lert 
Rep. Sanford 
Rep. Skarphol 

Total Yes N o  

Yes No 

--------------------------------------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly ind icate i ntent: 



Date: '1-{f�/[3 
Rol l  Call Vote #: __.....,.£....__ __ 

House Appropriations 

201 3 HOUSE STAN D I N G  COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

B I LL/RESOLUTI O N  NO. /c,;t3 

0 Check here for Conference Comm ittee 

Legislative Counci l  Amendment Number 

Comm ittee 

Action Take n :  [g'j D o  Pass D D o  Not Pass )ZI Amended D Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By iff· '?fJMfi?JVc}-, Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Delzer \ Rep. Streyle X 
Vice Chairman Kempenich 1\ Rep. Thoreson 1( 
Rep. Bel lew )( Rep. Wieland X' 
Rep. Brandenburg X 
Rep. Dosch 
Rep. Grande ..£ Rep. Boe x 
Rep. Hawken "}(\ Rep. Glassheim X 
Rep. Kreidt J( Rep. Guggisberg '{ 
Rep. Martinson X. Rep. Holman y 
Rep. Monson � Rep. Wil l iams y 
Rep. Nelson '!.. 
Rep. Pol lert '/:. 
Rep. Sanford X 
Rep. Skarphol i:. 

Total Yes -----'-/...._g _____ N o  �"'-------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly ind icate i ntent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 20, 2013 10:46am 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_32_010 
Carrier: Kempenich 

Insert LC: 13.0083.06003 Title: 07000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1033, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS ( 1 8 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).  Engrossed HB 1 033 
was placed on the S ixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, after the second "airplanes" insert "; to provide legislative intent; to provide for 
budget section approval" 

Page 2, l ine 4, remove "used for replacement" 

Page 2, l ine 5, replace "airplane purchases as provided in section 6 of this Act" with 
"remitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the general fund" 

Page 2, line 9, after "4." insert "LEGISLATIVE INTENT -" 

Page 2 ,  l ine 9, replace "The" with " It is the intent of the sixty-third legislative assembly that 
the" 

Page 2, l ine 1 0, remove "sell or" 

Page 2, l ine 1 0, after "airplane" insert "or transfer the title of the airplane to an eligible entity 
in accordance with the agreement entered by the office to obtain the airplane" 

Page 2, line 1 0, remove "The" 

Page 2, remove l ines 1 1  through 1 4  

Page 2 ,  l ine 20, after "REPLACEMENT" insert " - BUDGET SECTION APPROVAL -
ADVISORY COMMITTEE" 

Page 2, line 24, remove "The appropriation provided in this section must be reduced by an" 

Page 2 ,  remove l ine 25 

Page 2 ,  l ine 26, replace "as provided in section 3 of this Act." with "The department of 
transportation must receive budget section approval prior to expending any funds 
appropriated under this section in excess of $4,000,000." 

Page 2, after line 27, insert: 

"During the biennium beginn ing July 1 ,  201 3, and ending June 30, 201 5 , the 
department of transportation shall establish an airplane replacement advisory 
committee to advise the department of transportation regarding the purchase of 
replacement airplanes authorized under this section. The members of the advisory 
committee include: 

1 .  The director of the department of transportation or the director's designee 
who shall serve as chairman; 

2. The director of the aeronautics commission or the di rector's designee; 

3 .  The director of  the office of management and budget or  the director's 
designee; and 

4 .  Two members of the legislative assembly appointed by  the chairman of 
the legislative management. 

The committee shall meet at the cal l  of the chairman. The members of the committee 
who are members of the legislative assembly are entitled to receive compensation 
and expense reimbursement as provided under section 54-03-20 and reimbursement 

( 1 )  DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_32_01 0 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 20, 2013 10:46am 

Module 10: h_stcomrep_32_010 
Carrier: Kempenich 

Insert LC: 13.0083.06003 Title: 07000 

for mi leage as provided by law for state officers. The leg islative council shall pay the 
compensation and expense reimbursement for the legislative members." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment provides for the following: 

Adjusts Section 3 to provide that any funds received from the sale of Department of 
Transportation airplanes are deposited in the general fund. 

Adjusts Section 4 to provide legislative intent regarding the disposal of the Attorneys 
General's office airplane. 

Removes a provision in Section 5 that reduces the general fund appropriation to the 
Department of Transportation for new airplane purchases by an amount equal to 
proceeds received from the sale of department airplanes. 

Requires Budget Section approval to expend more than $4 mil l ion for the purchase 
of new airplanes. 

• Creates a committee to advise the Department of Transportation regarding the 
purchase of replacement airplanes for the department. 

( 1 )  DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_32_01 0 



2013 SENATE GOVERNMENT AND VETERANS AFFA IRS 

HB 1033 



201 3 SENATE STA N DI NG COMM ITTEE M I N UTES 

Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
Missouri River Room , State Capitol 

HB 1 033 
03/ 1 4/20 1 3  

Job Number 1 991 8 

0 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolutio 

A B I LL for an Act to require authorization of the purchase or lease of a ircraft; to provide for the 
use of department of transportation a irplanes; to provide for the sale of a irplanes; to provide 
legislative i ntent; to provide for budget section approval; and to provide an appropriatio n .  

Minutes : 

Chairman Dever: Opened the hearing on HB 1 033. 

Representative Todd Porter, District 34: Testified as sponsor and in support of the b i l l .  

Served on interim committee and we felt that the leg islature should know what is going on 

with the a i rcraft. (Walked through the hog-house amendment and the b i l l . )  See Attachment 

#1 for i nterim report presented in testimony. 

( 1 9 :55) C hairman Dever: Asked a question on continuing appropriation and whether it 

wou ld be foundation dol lars. 

Representative Porter: That is ,  any of those funds that they have access to that are a 

continu ing appropriations, they couldn't use for this to go around the portion of section 1 -

the authorization to purchase . That was to close the loophole to make sure that we were 

clear that it is not just the appropriated funds; it is also the continuing appropriation funds 

and the foundation dol lars and anyth ing else that is in that big circle that they could not 

grab  on to . 

(20 : 55) Chairman Dever: I am not clear on how that works between the foundation and 

the university. 



Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
H B  1 033 
03/1 4/20 1 3  
Page 2 

Representative Porter: I wil l  have Larsen come up and he can expla in it and how they 

went outside the boundaries and did this. (Returned to testimony . )  

(21  :45) C hairman Dever: (Asked a question about the B-52 not perta in ing to  the b i l l .  

(24:55)Senator Marcel lais: I am hearing you say that you want to set up an a ircraft poo l  to 

share in  resources and save us some money? 

Representative Porter: I think that a pool would work; I don't th ink  that is the position of 

the H ouse, and the interim committee in the end wanted to leave the three main a i rcraft of 

the state i nside of the DOT but we also wanted to make it affordable for other agencies to 

use those planes. We wanted to make it affordable for other state employees to hop i n  and 

take a ride when there is an empty seat that they did not have to pick up the whole b i l l  for. I 

th ink we wanted to make things a l ittle more efficient with some modern izations. I do not 

th ink  that the pool ing idea is quite ready yet. I th ink it is off in  the p rocessor. We had good 

d iscussions about it. I don't know that anyone is ready to do that yet. We have a un ique 

opportun ity inside of our existing structure to modernize our fleet and increase the 

util ization of our fleet for efficiency of our state employees and thei r time spent. When there 

are empty seats why are we charg ing the h igh costs to try and get revenue back into 

another agency that is using the same dol lars. As we looked at this we changed our 

d irection for now. I think the fleet idea is in  the end the most efficient way. 

Senator Marcel lais: That goes back to my motto ; do more with less.  

(28 : 35) Representative Keith Kempenich, District 39: Testified i n  support of the b i l l  and 

member of interim committee. See Attachment #2 for information p resented in  test imony. 

Reinforced what Representative Porter had stated in  h is testimony. 

(33:50) Senator Marcellais: I there a summary of what the planes were used for; who 

used them and where d id they go? 



Senate Government and Veterans Affai rs Committee 
HB 1 033 
03/1 4/20 1 3  
Page 3 

Representative Kempenich:  We can get that. They have that. The Cheyenne is basical ly 

a backup a nd by pol icy the Governor does not fly in a single engine plane and I don't th ink  

he fl ies in the Cheyenne either. By ru le it needs to be a mu ltiple engine plane to  take the 

Governor somewhere and we do have the hours.  The heaviest used a ircraft is the Cessn a  

337. Aircraft does have a long l ife history but you have to look at what your replacement 

costs are and part avai lab i l ity . You can lose the battle on what it is worth and repair costs . 

Avionic upgrades can get to be more expensive than the plane. 

Chairman Dever: I f  the attorney General was to dispose of their a i rcraft, what would they 

get that would be the most comparable? 

Representative Kempenich:  Possibly a Seneca , but that is mostly a multi-engine tra iner 

plane. 

Chairman Dever: I am looking at the chart from the interim committee and that plane has 

variable costs of $226 and fixed costs of $4 1 3  and when I look at the three planes that the 

DOT has, they are al l  more expensive than that. 

Representative Kempenich : They are turbine jet fueled ai rcraft and they requ i re two 

p i lots . There is no value e ither way with the Attorney General's plane. It is a d ifferent deal 

on that. We cannot sel l  it. We can give it back but you have to f ind another law enforcement 

agency to take it. The Attorney General 's plane is just set to the side for this b i l l .  

Senator Cook: Section 4 says that i t  is our intent to dispose of it? 

Representative Kempenich : It is our intent because of the maintenance part of it, but it 

may not happen .  All intent language is what it is .  It is an older a ircraft and we would l ike to 

get rid of it. 

(41 :25) Brady Larson, Legislative Counci l :  Testified in neutral position on the b i l l .  

Answered a couple of  questions brought forth by committee. You had a question on how 
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many trips were made and the number of passengers transported , and on the committee 

report handed out it is on page 2 in the right-hand corner. To your question on the 

appropriations to the university system, and you are correct that any funds received by 

h ig her education institutions must receive legislative appropriations before they can be 

expended ; with the un iversity system there is a l ittle b it d ifferent type of classification of 

appropriation than most state agencies. Most state agencies receive a d i rect appropriation 

authority so the legislature says that you can spend so many dol lars from these funding 

sources,  but the un iversity system receives a d i rect appropriation from the general  fund but 

the leg islature has authorized the university system with a continu ing appropriation for any 

other funds or fees that they receive. They may include tuition reven ue, student fees, 

revenue from auxi l iary services such as d inn ing or housing, interest i ncome, ind irect cost 

recoveries from federal grants, g ifts , grants, donations - basically any  income a un iversity 

generates, they can expend under the continuing appropriation. I n  the specific case of 

N DSU ,  on page 3 of Attachment # 1 ,  there is some information regard ing the specific uses 

of those local funds that the institution used to pay for the airplane lease costs and as 

Representative Porter mentioned , there are funds from the North Dakota/ M i nnesota tuition 

reciprocity agreement as wel l  as some other local funds. 

(43 :58) Tom Trenbeath , Chief Deputy Attorney General :  Testified in neutra l  position on 

the b i l l .  We are requesting you to leave us and our aircraft out of the bi l l .  The per-hour 

cost is not the proper analysis for a publ ic safety entity. Thus it is with our ai rcraft. If we 

give up our aircraft, which has its own problems with the federal government and we go out 

to the aircraft pool someday and have to be somewhere, and the on ly th ing that is there is 

the King Air and I have to get the BCI agent to a small a i rstrip - I can not fly h im in there.  

The landing strip is too short. (Gave an example and also talked about the duck m ishap 
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with the a ircraft that resu lted in upgrades being done to the aircraft) We are on the l ist for 

a n  upgrade to that ai rcraft and if you give that ai rcraft back, where do you th ink we are 

go ing to be on that l ist? At the bottom I would guess. We do have a unique situation with 

our  ai rcraft and we would l ike to have that language out of there. 

(49 : 1 0)Dave Leftwich,  Deputy Director for Business Support, North Dakota 

Department of Transportation : See Attachment #3 for testimony i n  neutral position on the 

b i l l .  

(51  :00) Chairman Dever: I understand that d ifferent agencies budget for their expense for 

using state a ircraft. 

Dave Leftwic h :  That is correct. 

C hairman Dever: How often do the planes fly somewhere when they are not fu l l? 

Dave Leftwich:  That depends on the type of meetings or occasion . The cost per hour is 

the same n o  matter how many people are on the plane. I don't have the numbers ,  but quite 

often we a re fu l l .  

C hairman Dever: (Gave an example of a wastefu l  situation) 

Senator Cook: I am sure we have certain policies, for example the fact that the Governor 

a nd the Lt. Governor can not fly in  the same plane; is that correct? 

Dave Leftwic h :  That is correct. 

Senator Cook: How far do we go with that pol icy? What other pol icies do we have? 

Dave Leftwich :  I bel ieve they are the only ones that are not al lowed to fly together 

because they are from the same office. 

C hairman Dever: Closed the hearing on HB 1 033. 
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Minutes: 

Chairman Dever: Opened H B  1 033 for committee d iscussion .  

Committee Discussion: The committee looked at the amendments that had been 

proposed to the committee during the hearing.  They also d iscussed the fiscal note and 

what that enta i led . It was d iscussed that the bi l l  is a big pol icy decision and to make a 

determination on the short testimony that was heard in committee would be d ifficult. 

Chairman Dever felt that relying on the interim committee, which did have considerable 

d iscussion ,  was extremely important. Senator Schaible was on the interim committee and 

d iscussed h is view of the bi l l  and the fact that i t  is vastly d ifferent from the report that came 

out of the i nterim committee. The main idea that came out of the interim committee was to 

look at a plane motor pool and make sure that all bases were covered but only need a few 

planes but there were some problems with that as wel l .  The intent of the committee was 

defin itely not preserved . Trying to make it work created many problems. Then NDSU plane 

is a main concern of the committee. There is not enough need for the plane and it is costing 

too m uch to make the payments. The majority of the time it is leased to jet service and 

they are making money off of it. It is costing them less to rent than run .  There are no plans 

by any department to replace their planes when they pass their cost effective usefu lness. 

Chairman Dever: Asked the committee to th ink  about what they would l ike to do with the 

b i l l .  
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Chairman Dever: Opened H B  1 033 for committee d iscussion .  See Attachment #1  for the 

orig inal  b i l l  and attachment #2 for fiscal note that went with that b i l l .  It seems to me that the 

DOT should have a plan for replacement of a ircrafts on a long term basis. 

(3 :21 ) Senator Cook: The first question I ask myself is what is the problem and the 

sponsors of this b i l l  seem to be going after is the poor management of an a ircraft in the 

u niversity system and I can 't argue with that. Is  there a way that we can solve that problem 

and that one only? I don't know what that would be. 

Committee Discussion : The committee proceeded to d iscuss what they thought the 

problem was and d ifferent planes that are needed . Senator Schaible voiced that he wou ld 

l ike to talk to Representative Delzer (chairman of interim committee) and what his intent 

was to help determine what to do with the b i l l .  Chairman Dever reminded the committee 

that the b i l l  has to be out of committee by next Thursday so that there would need to be 

amendments d rafted by then. The committee does not necessarily want to ki l l  the b i l l ,  but 

they want to determine what they can do with the bi l l  to salvage the important sections and 

hopefu lly accomplish what the interim committee intended . Addressing the N DSU a i rplane 

was determined to be a priority and how the committee could accomplish that in  the b i l l .  

A lso a rep lacement cycle of the planes that the state owns is important as wel l  as the use 

of the a ircrafts being more equal ized for cost effectiveness. By updating and modern izing 
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the fleet it becomes more cost effective. The committee concluded that they preferred 

version 5 of the bi l l  over version 7 except for the fact that version 5 does not address the 

N DSU plane. I t  was determined that Senator Schaible needed to have a d iscussion with 

Representative Delzer as to why the NDSU plane was not in version 5. I t  was brought up  

that the fact that no one from the university came to  testify about their p lane and  what could 

be assumed from that. The committee mentioned that by amending the b i l l ,  it wou ld go to 

appropriations and the d iscussion wou ld continue there. 

Chairman Dever: Closed the committee discussion on H B  1 033. 
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Chairman Dever: Opened HB 1 033 for committee d iscussion.  The $4.5 mi l l ion was 

requested by DOT and we might consider our conversations in that l ight. 

Committee Discussion : Senator Schaible talked about the importance of the bil l and the 

need to amend the b i l l  to keep it a l ive. The committee d iscussed how to amend the bi l l  and 

what parts were necessary, and that the b i l l  needed to make sense. There is a l ittle 

confusion on where the situation is and what really needs to be done. The committee 

rel ied on Senator Schaible for information due to the fact that he was on the interim 

committee . The committee agreed that they needed to amend the bi l l  and go to conference 

committee to iron out the detai ls. The committee looked at the d ifferent versions and what 

would be the best option to work with . The amendment appl ied to version 7. The 

committee a lso discussed the amendment the DOT proposed and the amendment brought 

by the Attorney Genera l's office (basical ly to delete section 4). Senator Schaible pointed out 

that the interim d id not focus on the Governor's fl ight usage and the Attorney General's 

plane. Those were not the problem. The usage of the other planes were the issue. See 

Attachment #1 for the combined amendments of DOT and the Attorney Genera l's office. 

The idea of leaving the money in to include appropriations in the conference committee 

was important to the committee. 
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Senator Schaible: Moved the Amendments in Attachment #1. 

Senator Poolman: Seconded. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 7 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. 

Motion Carries. 

Senator Schaible: Moved a Do Pass As Amended and Rerefer to Appropriations. 

Vice Chairman Berry: Seconded 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 2 nays, 0 absent. 

Senator Schaible: Carrier. 



1 3. 0083. 07002 
Title .08000 

Adopted by the Government and Veterans 
Affairs Committee 

March 28, 201 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSE D  H OUSE BILL NO. 1 033 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2, remove the second "to provide" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 3, remove "legislative i ntent;" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 6, replace "Each" with "Un less waived by the d epartment. each" 

Page 2,  remove l ines 8 through 1 2  

Renumber  accord i ngly 

Page No. 1 1 3 .0083.07002 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1033, as reengrossed: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Sen. Dever, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee 
(5 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Reengrossed H B  1 033 was 
placed on the S ixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2, remove the second "to provide" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, remove "legislative intent;" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 6, replace "Each" with "Un less waived by the department, each" 

Page 2, remove lines 8 through 1 2  

Renumber accord ingly 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution : 

A B I LL for an Act to require authorization of the purchase or lease of a ircraft; to provide for 
the use of department of transportation airplanes; to provide for the sale of a i rp lanes. 

Minutes: 

Leg islative Council - Allen H .  Knudson 
OMB - Shei la Peterson & Laney Herauf 

Testimony attached # 1 -2 

Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on HB 1 033.  

Rep. Todd Porter, District 34 
Testimony attached # 1 - Government Services Committee Interim Report 
When the interim committee started digging into this no one wanted to turn their a i rp lane 
over to a state fleet. The g ist of the bi l l  is that we need to modern ize our fleet. We need to 
get rid of the 1 975 Skymaster that operates at about $800/hour and get someth ing more 
efficient and easily maintained . He explained the operating costs for the d ifferent a irplanes. 
In the b i l l ,  there is $4 .5M to modern ize the fleet. The DOT can trade those a i rplanes in  and 
modern ize the fleet with two used late model a ircraft. Also in  the b i l l ,  there's language that 
talks about how we use the aircraft. There is a section 2 that talks about the Attorney 
General's office having priority to cal l  out for law enforcement purposes and use the 
a i rcraft. Section 1 prohibits the purchase of aircraft without the legislature's approval .  That 
goes back to the NDSU Foundation buying the airplane and leasing it back for the exact 
amount of the lease. N DSU used tu ition dollars from students that come in from out of 
state to pay that lease. The plane is only used about 60 hours /year. I nside this bi l l  it tel ls 
N DSU to sel l  the p lane. We talked about the state purchasing it but for what they owe on 
the lease and as old as the plane is, DOT would be better off leasing one. 

Vice C hairman G rindberg : It's not unusual for the foundation to entertain this transaction. 
N DS U  owned a plane prior to th is .  At UNO,  their foundation has purchased many a i rp lanes 
and I would bet that some student tu ition at UNO goes to help offset those costs. It's 
frustrating ,  we're meddl ing in operationa l  business, we are tel l ing NDSU to sel l  an a i rp lane 
that the prior foundation owns and it  is very simi lar to what goes on at the aviation school .  
We are meddl ing in an area that has become pol itical .  The legis lature has embraced 
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flexibi l ity years ago. I understand the cost side of this but why wasn't the U niversity of NO 
factored into this equation . 

Representative Porter: When we looked at UNO the big d ifference was that it has an 
aviation school and is using p lanes to train pi lots. He explained . 

Vice Chairman Grindberg: The point is major universities across this country either lease 
or buy airplanes. NDSU has had a plane for decades. This was an upgrade to a plane that 
was fal l ing apart. This is a decision that campuses should make. 

Senator Robinson: Our President at Valley City State University and others have flown on 
NDSU's plane to Dickinson,  Minot, to Wil l iston and elsewhere to take advantage of cost 
savings and time. Many of our schools have benefited many times, to use NDSU's plane 
and facil ity. 

Representative Porter: To travel across NO, no one would argue it takes an a irplane. 
The argument is the util ization of that asset. You have a $3 M airplane that is being used 
for 70 hours/year. No reason having this airplane setting down there. 

Senator Gary Lee: I was on that Government Services committee and the times Senator 
Robinson was saying the presidents flew around , those hours were included here. 

Representative Porter: The total 69 hours included every t ime the propellers were turning 
on that a irplane. 

Vice Chairman Grindberg: The President of NDSU was skittish about using the plane 
because of political pressure. The numbers you are using are reflective of the 
environment. It's been a political footbal l .  

Representative Porter: Fin ished explaining the bi l l  ( 1 4 : 1 8) 

Senator O'Connell: Are we sti l l  find ing good deals out there to buy used planes. 

Representative Porter: Yes, there are several .  He described . 

Dave Leftwich, Department of Transportation: Testified in  favor of H B  1 033. This 
a l lows DOT to replace 2 high maintenance aircrafts. We wou ld l ike to purpose an 
amendment to make it clear that we can trade in the aircraft whether than having to sel l  
them. 

Chairman Holmberg: Has your amendment been run by the pol icy committee - GVA? 

Dave Leftwitch: We visited with Senator Dever on this. 

Jim Miller, President & CEO, NDSU Development Foundation testified in  support of 
H B  1 033.  Written testimony # 2 
He presented two options to possibly be added as amendments. 
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No opposing testimony. 

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on HB 1 033. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolu ion : 

A B I LL for an  Act to require authorization of the purchase or lease of a ircraft; to provide for 
the use of department of transportation a irplanes; to provide for the sale of a irp lanes 

Minutes: 

Leg islative Counci l - Becky J . Keller 
OMB - Lori Laschkewitsch 

Chairman Holmberg opened the d iscussion on HB 1 033. All committee members were 
p resent. 

Vice C hairman G rindberg moved to strike section 5 from HB 1 033. 

Senator Robinson seconded the motion. 

C hairman Holmberg :  The bi l l  you wish to strike section 5 out of is the 2nd engrossment, 
. 07000 . 

Vice C hairman Grindberg :  There has been a lot of d iscussion over th is a irplane 
purchased by the NDSU Development Foundation . James Mi l ler was here testifying and 
gave two options: one was asking for more time and second was the state purchasing the 
ai rplane. I am presently working in the general aviation industry and the industry is quite 
dependent on federa l  tax credits as a way to stimu late general aviation a i rcraft usage. The 
Obama admin istration has cut those credits plus we have the economic situation that 
started in  2008. I t  wi l l  be at least 4 to 5 years or more if there is ever any incentives coming 
back from the federa l  government to stimulate general aviation use in  th is country. My 
point is I don't think anyth ing wi l l  change before 201 6. I n  201 7  this a i rp lane is paid for. 
Why say you have unti l 201 6  to sell this, but we own it in 201 7.  I said in the hearing that 
we don't need to meddle here. NDSU has had an airplane since the seventies. The f irst 
one was donated . As I understand it they are using the a irplane for the un iversity but a lso 
contracting it to be avai lable to the Fargo Jet Service. I think we need to remove section 5 .  

Senator Wanzek: I s  the removal of section 5, basically the appropriation? 
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Becky J. Kel ler, Legislative Counci l :  You have to go to the first engrossment. 
We would have to amend .06000 . 

Vice Chairman Grindberg: In other words, the lease is up in 201 7 and they buy it for $ 1  

Senator Warner: Are we endangering any terms of the lease by add ing rental fees to a jet 
service and add ing hours that way? 

Vice Chairman Grindberg : I would say no. When you buy a plane, you bui ld a l l  those 
into the hourly rates. It goes by the hours .  Most aircraft used in a sign ificant way wi l l  be 
upgraded to an advanced electronic. 

Senator Robinson:  Would you happen to know the value of this plane and what has been 
paid so far. 

Vice Chairman G rindberg : It was a 1 0  year lease and the airplane value at the time was 
about $2 .3  or 2 .4M.  

Senator Robinson: This has been a pol itical footbal l .  We need to get beyond that. The 
more we use the airplane, the more the cost goes down. The plane is in very good 
condition. 

Chairman Holmberg : We have a motion to remove section 5 from the bi l l .  

Voice vote - amendment adopted. 

Vice Chairman G rindberg moved a Do Pass as Amended on H B  1 033. 

Senator O'Connell seconded the motion .  

A rol l  cal l  vote was taken. Yea: 1 3  Nay: 0 Absent: 0 

Senator Robinson wil l  carry the bi l l  on the floor. 



Amendment to: H B  1 033 

FISCAL NOTE 

Requested by legislative Council 
02/27/2013 

1 A State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I d /eve s and appropnations anticipate under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium ; 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $435,000 

Expenditures . $5,300,000 

Appropriations $4,500,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill requires sale of certain aircraft, authorizes acquisition of replacement aircraft, bars acquisition of aircraft 
without approval, bans future use of state funds for certain aircraft, provides for operation of state aircraft by 
qualified pilots, & provides requirements for use of aircraft. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 2 provides that NDDOT shall provide air transportation services to other state agencies upon request and be 
reimbursed on a cost based user charge. These provisions reflect current NDDOT practice, so they should have no 
additional significant fiscal impact. Section 3 directs NDDOT to sell the 1 977 Piper Cheyenne and 1 975 Cessna 
Skymaster airplanes and use the proceeds for replacement airplane purchases. It is estimated that the resale value 
of these two airplanes will be $400,000 and $35,000 re�pectively, for a total resale of $435,000. This section also 
provides that, after June 30, 2014, NDDOT may not use any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to 
maintain or operate these two airplanes. Section 4 directs the Attorney General's office to dispose of or transfer title 
of their 1 965 Beechcraft Baron airplane. Section 5 provides that, after June 30, 2014, North Dakota State University 
may not use any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to lease an airplane. Section 6 provides an 
appropriation from the state's general fund to NDDOT in the amount of $4.5 million for the purpose of purchasing 
replacement airplanes. This section also requires NDDOT to obtain budget section approval prior to expending any 
funds appropriated under this section in excess of $4,000,000. Additionally, this section extablishes an airplane 
replacement advisory committee to advise NDDOT on purchase of replacement airplanes . 

. ' 
3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Under this bill , NDDOT may realize revenue from the sale of the airplanes identified in Part 2B of this fiscal note. 
This revenue is estimated at $435,000. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The primary expenditures that would be realized under this bill would be incurred by NDDOT for replacement of the 
Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. NDDOT will try toJeplace the airplanes with recent model, used airplanes. To 
replace the Cheyenne, NDDOT would consider a used King Air B200. It is estimated this airplane would cost 
approximately $3.5 million dollars. To replace the Skymaster, NDDOT would consider a used Cessna Caravan; the 
estimated cost for this airplane would be about $1 .8 million dollars. Total replacement cost for both airplanes is 
estimated at about $5.3 million dollars. The Attorney General's office should see a reduction in operating expenses 
as a result of d iscontinuing operation of their Beechcraft Baron airplane. However, they may incur additional costs to 
reimburse NDDOT for costs incurred to obtain flights on NDDOT aircraft. This impact has not been included in 
section 1 A of this fiscal note as we do not know to what extent the Attorney General's office may utilize NDDOT 
aircraft. Likewise, North Dakota State University should see a reduction in their expenditures as a result of the 
provisions of section 5 of the bill, but this may be somewhat offset by costs to obtain transportation through other 
means. Again, this impact has not been included in section 1 A  of this fiscal note as we do not know what the costs 
may be for N DSU to obtain any necessary flights to replace those resulting from use of their current aircraft. It 
should be noted that any agencies that will use their own pilots to fly NDDOT aircraft pursuant to section 2 of the bill 
will incur annual training costs to comply with FAA and insurance requirements. It is estimated that the tuition and 
travel costs associated with this training will cost approximately $1 6,000 per pilot per airplane each biennium. This 
impact has not been included in section 1 A of this fiscal note as we don't know to what extent, if any, other agencies 
might choose to utilize their own pilots to operate NDDOT aircraft. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

' i 

Section 6 provides an appropriation to NDDOT from the general fund in the amount of $4.5 million dollars less any 
proceeds realized on the sale or disposal of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. Since it is estimated that 
NDDOT will realize approximately $435,000 on the resale of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes, this leaves a 
net amount to be charged against the appropriation of $4.065 million. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 02/27/201 3  
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Amendment to: HB 1 033 

FISCAL N OTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/25/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I r ·  t d  d t l  eve s and appropnat10ns an JCJpa e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $475,000 

Expenditures $5,300,000 

Appropriations $4,500,000 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief sumfTlary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill requires sale of certain aircraft, authorizes acquisition of replacement aircraft, bars acquisition of aircraft 
without approval, bans future use of state funds for certain aircraft, provides for operation of state aircraft by 
qualified pilots, & provides requirements for use of aircraft. 

B. .Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 2 provides that NDDOT shall provide air transp,ortation services to other state agencies upon request and be 
reimbursed on a cost based user charge. These provisions reflect current NDDOT practice, so they should have no 
additional significant fiscal impact. Section 3 directs NDDOT to sell the 1 977 Piper Cheyenne and 1 975 Cessna 
Skymaster airplanes and use the proceeds for replacement airplane purchases. It is estimated that the resale value 
of these two airplanes will be $400,000 and $35,000 respectively, for a total resale of $435,000. This section also 
provides that, after June 30, 201 4, NDDOT may not use any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to 
maintain or operate these two airplanes. Section 4 directs the Attorney General's office to sell their 1 965 Beechcraft 
Baron airplane and retain the use the proceeds in accordance with the agreement entered into by the office when 
the airplane was obtained. It is estimated the resale value of this airplane will be approximately $40,000. This 
section also provides that, after June 30, 2014, the Attqrney General's Office may not use any funds appropriated by 
the legislative assembly to maintain or operate this airplane. Section 5 provides that, after June 30, 2014, North 
Dakota State University may not use any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to lease an airplane. 
Section 6 provides an appropriation from the state's general fund to NDDOT in the amount of $4.5 million less any 
realized proceeds from the sale or d isposal of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes for the purpose of purchasing 
replacement airplanes. 



3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
! ;· I 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive· budget. 

Under this bill, NDDOT and the Attorney General's Office may realize revenue from the sale of the airplanes 
identified in Part 2B of this fiscal note. This revenue is estimated at $435,000 for NO DOT and $40,000 for the 
Attorney General's Office. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affecteq. 

The primary expenditures that would be realized under this bill would be incurred by NO DOT for replacement of the 
Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. NDDOT will try to replace the airplanes with recent model, used airplanes. To 
replace the Cheyenne, NO DOT would consider a used King Air 8200. It is estimated this airplane would cost 
approximately $3.5 million dollars. To replace the Skymaster, NDDOT would consider a used Cessna Caravan; the 
estimated cost for this airplane would be about $1 .8 million dollars. Total replacement cost for both airplanes is 
estimated at about $5.3 million dollars. The Attorney General's office should see a reduction in operating expenses 
as a result of discontinuing operation of their Beechcraft Baron airplane. However, they may incur additional costs to 
reimburse NO DOT for costs incurred to obtain flights on NO DOT aircraft. This impact has not been included in 
section 1 A  of this fiscal note as we do not know to what extent the Attorney General's office may utilize NO DOT 
aircraft. Likewise, North Dakota State University should see a reduction in their expenditures as a result of the 
provisions of section 5 of the bill, but this may be somewhat offset by costs to obtain transportation through other 
means. Again, this impact has not been included in section 1A of this fiscal note as we do not know what the costs 
may be for NDSU to obtain any necessary flights to replace tnose resulting from use of their current aircraft. It 
should be noted that any agencies that will use their own pilots to fly NO DOT aircraft pursuant to section 2 of the bill 
will incur annual training costs to comply with FAA arid insurance requirements. It is estimated that the tuition and 
travel costs associated with this training will cost approximately $16,000 per pilot per airplane each biennium. This 
impact has not been included in section 1 A of this fiscal note as we don't know to what extent, if any, other agencies 
might choose to utilize their own pilots to operate NDDOT aircraft. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts.; Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Section 6 provides an appropriation to NO DOT from the general fund in the amount of $4.5 million dollars less any 
proceeds realized on the sale or disposal of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. Since it is estimated that 
NO DOT will realize approximately $435,000 on the resale of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes, this leaves a 
net amount to be charged against the appropriation of $4.065 million. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 02/04/201 3  
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Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1 033 

FISCAL NOTE 

Requested by Legislative Council 
12/1912012 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d ' t' t' ' t d  d t l  eve s an appropna 1ons an Jc/pa e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $2,000,000 

Expenditures $1 ,750,000 

Appropriations $1 ,750,000 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$2,000,000 

$1,750,000 

$1,750,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief surmnary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill would create a central aircraft management system under the NO Department of Transportation. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relev�nt to the analysis. 

Under this bill, the central aircraft management system would be operated on an actual cost basis whereby users 
would be billed at a rate based on the actual operating and pilot costs, as well as depreciation and estimated aircraft 
replacement costs. Accordingly, NO DOT would need additional appropriation sufficient to cover the related costs. 
The excess of revenue over expenditures represents depreciation and reserves for high cost repairs/replacements. 
This excess would be spent in later years as the aircraft pool incurs costs to replace aircraft and make major, high 
cost repairs to the aircraft. Note: The revenue and expenditure figures represent only the central aircraft pool. They 
do not represent the impact on agencies using the pool. The agencies using the pool should see an increase in 
expenditures for the fees they pay to the aircraft pool apd a decrease in expenditures for aircraft operating costs that 
will now be covered by the pool. This fiscal note is based on the assumption that the aircraft currently used by the 
affected agencies would continue to be operated by the aircraft pool. The assumptions do not include near term 
replacement of any aircraft. If it becomes necessary to replace aircraft in the near term, the costs would be 
significantly greater than presented in this fiscal note. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

It is very difficult to accurately estimate the initial biennium revenues associated with a central aircraft management 
system until we have accumulated actual operating data for a biennium. Nonetheless, we estimate the additional 
first biennium revenues to operate the pool of aircraft to be approximately $2 million greater than the NDDOT 
currently recognizes on its current aircraft. This revenue would be intended to cover the actual operating costs of the 
additional aircraft as well as depreciation and reserves :for high cost repair/replacement. The DOT would not initially 
have a revenue source to cover major repairs/replacements. Funds for this purpose would be accumulated over 
time through the charging of reserves for major repairs/replacements and depreciation charges. Therefore, for the 

I i 



first biennium, NDDOT would need an additional revenue source to cover the estimated major repairs/replacements 
of $500,000 that might occur in the 1 st biennium. Such revenue source is not covered in the revenue identified in 
Part 1 A  above. 

,. 
B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, fine item, and 

fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. . 
· 

. " 
It is very difficult to accurately estimate the initial biennium expenditures associated with a central aircraft 
management system until we have accumulated actual operating data for a biennium. Nonetheless, we estimate the 
additional, "out of pocket" expenditures to operate the additional aircraft not currently operated by NDDOT to be 
approximately $1 .75 million as shown on the attached schedule. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. · 

The NO DOT will require an addition to its existing appropriation in the amount of $1 .75 million to cover the additional 
costs of operating the aircraft pool : · 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 0 1 /09/201 3  
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1 3 . 0083. 07003 
Title. 09000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

April 9, 20 1 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE B I LL NO. 1 033 

I n  addition to the amend ments adopted by the Senate as printed on page 946 of the Senate 
Journ al, Reengrossed House Bill No. 1 033 is further amended as follows: 

Page 2 ,  remove lines 1 3  throug h 1 6  

Renum ber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 3 . 0083. 07003 



Date: f. 9 - 13 
Roll Cal l  Vote #_�/ __ 

201 3  SE NATE STAN D I N G  COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ;trd /0 v 
Senate Appropriations 

0 Check here for Conference Committee � 
Committee 

Legislative Counci l  Amendment Number � 5 ·of 5�.1Lrj4� 
Action Taken 0 Adopt Amendment 

0 Do Pass as Amended 

Motion Made By � 
rJ,." 

Senators v Yes 
Chariman Ray Holmberg 
Co-Vice Chairman Bi l l  Bowman 
Co-Vice Chair Tony Grindberg 
Senator Ralph Ki lzer 
Senator Karen Krebsbach 
Senator Robert Erbele 
Senator Terry Wanzek 
Senator Ron Carl isle 
Senator Gary Lee 

Total 

0 Do Pass 
0 Do Not Pass 

Seconded By �� 
No Senator Yes No 

Senator Tim Mathern 
Senator David O'Connel l  
Senator Larry Robinson 
Senator John Warner 

No (Yes) -------------------------------------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

/ 



Date: Jf, 1� 19 
Roll Cal l  Vote # ___ / _ 

201 3  S ENATE STANDING COMM ITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BI LL/RESOLUTION NO. ) j f i / t:J 3 3 1 

Senate Appropriations C o m mittee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Counci l  Amendment N u m ber 

Action Taken Rkdopt Amendment 
� Do Pass as Amended 

D Do Pass 
D Do Not Pass 

Motion Made By� Seconded By a (l.-{JY01L�L 
t 

Senators Yes No Senator Yes No 
Chariman R ay Holmberg L--� Senator Tim Mathern l/ 
Co-Vice Chairman Bill Bowman // Senator David O'Connell L---

Co-Vice Chair  Tony Grindberg � Senator Larry Robinson ,__.., 
Senator Ralph Ki lzer 1---- Senator John Warner v--
Senator Karen Krebsbach J . .....-
Senator Robert E rbele v-
Senator Terry Wanzek /..,.,...-
Senator Ron Carl isle � 
Senator Gary Lee v 

Total (Yes) J3 No L) ------��-----------

Absent 0 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly i ndicate intent: 

) 



Com Standing Committee Report 
April 10, 2013 12:49pm 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_64_005 
Carrier: Robinson 

Insert LC: 13.0083.07003 Title: 09000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1033, as reengrossed and amended: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , 
recommends DO PASS ( 1 3  YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTI NG).  
Reengrossed HB 1 033, as amended, was placed on the S ixth order on the calendar. 

In addition to the amendments adopted by the Senate as printed on page 946 of the Senate 
Journal, Reengrossed House Bi l l  No. 1 033 is further amended as follows: 

Page 2, remove l ines 1 3  through 1 6  

Renumber accordingly 

(1)  DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_64_005 
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201 3 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

House Transportation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

Committee Clerk Signature 

HB 1 033 
04-1 8-1 3 

Job # 2 1 245 

� Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for tro ction of bi l l/resolution : 
A BILL for an Act to require aut · ation of the purchase or lease of aircraft; to provide for the 
use of department of transportation airplanes; to provide for the sale of airplanes; to provide for 
b��::�:�ion approval ; and to provide an appropriall

lk

io

=

n

=

. ==============::!� 

Representative Kem penich opened the conference committee on HB 1 033. The House 
would l ike to talk about the removal of the NDSU plane. 

Representative Porter: Asked for the 7003 version of the bi l l .  

Senator Schaible: Page 2 ,  Section 4 ,  l ines 1 3- 16  were taken out by the Senate 
Appropriations; it wasn't done in committee. Talking to them, the feel ing of that part was 
that it was NDSU's business, and we shouldn't be meddl ing with that. There wasn't a lot of 
d iscussion on the floor, and the bi l l  passed that version. 

Representative Kempenich : I agree to a point. Representative Porter knows more about 
this. 

Representative Porter: I was assigned to track this bi l l  out of the interim by Rep .  Delzer. 
As we looked at the use of aircraft in the state, the NDSU plane stood out as far the hours 
of use. It real ly doesn't have to do with the fact of ownership. We were brought in late in 
the game as far as the funding mechanism that they used to buy the plane and pay for the 
lease using student non-resident tu ition dol lars. It was frustrating deal ing with the fact that 
N DSU had an airplane that they were hard ly using, and on the other hand they had an 
a i rplane that they were hard ly using but they were paying for i t  with non-resident student 
tu ition dol lars .  No one had a big issue with the fact that they need to use an airplane once 
in a whi le. Our issue was that for the l im ited number of hours that they fly, 69 hours in 
201 1 ,  that they wou ld have saved tons of the tuition dollars by chartering an a i rplane at the 
local fixed base operator in Fargo. They could also have a collaborative agreement with 
U N D  to use their student pi lots to come down to Fargo to pick them up and take them 
where they need to go. In the end there were two reasons that it ended up in the b i l l .  The 
first was the low uti l ization which means higher cost per hour of operation . The other fact 
was they were using tuition dol lars to pay for this. They could save money by just 
chartering an aircraft from UND or a private operator. To spend $300,000 a year just to say 
you own an a i rplane, isn't very smart business. 



House Transportation Committee 
HB 1 033 
04/1 8/1 3 
Page 2 

Senator Schaible: I would agree, I was one of the only members on the GVA committee 
that served on the Government Services Interim committee. I was the only one who had 
some understand ing of what the premise of this bi l l  was. When it came to GVA, what had 
occurred was not really clear. We wanted to keep it al ive and get it to conference 
committee to get the ful l  d iscussion . Other than the NDSU issue, are there other areas 
that we need to discuss? 

Representative Kempenich : I passed out an amendment. Dave Leftwich will explain the 
amendment for us. See attachment #1 . 

Dave Leftwich, Deputy Director for Business Support for the North Dakota 
Department of Transportation:  (7:55 minutes) See attachment #1 . Our intent was to 
trade in the two airplanes, since the sale of airplanes isn't real good right now. We d idn 't 
want to be stuck with two additional airplanes. The way that the bi l l  is currently drafted , it is 
unclear whether we have the power to trade them in. Dave explained the amendments that 
were distributed . 

Represnetative Kempenich: This does need to be clarified because it they were sold , the 
idea was that the proceeds would go back into the d istribution or genera l  fund .  But, we 
weren't going to prohibit using them as trade-ins. These amendments wou ld take care of 
that. 

Senator Schaible: It m ight be a bad time to sell a irp lanes, but it m ight not be a bad time to 
buy airplanes. Is the timing not so good for buying or trad ing? 

Dave Leftwich:  It is a good time to buy because there are a lot of planes on the market. 
It is a poor time to try to sel l ,  as NDSU has stated that they had d ifficu lty trying to sel l  their 
a i rplane. We know we would have a hard time sel l ing both of the airplanes because they 
are very old and parts are hard to find . 

Senator Schaible: Is it a good time to trade then? Is it better to wait, or is it necessity that 
forces the issue? 

Dave Leftwich:  The thought is that it would be a good time to trade because they can 
afford to hold them longer unti l they find a market for them. 

Representative Porter: When I look at the market, I see it d ifferently. I see that what we 
would be purchasing wou ld be fairly depressed . It is a good time to be a buyer. It is not as 
good to be a sel ler. When I go to buy a new car, I always have my old car for sale, so that I 
can get an even better deal by being a cash buyer if someone buys it. It th ink that the 
best move for the department would be to l ist the two planes for sale, and try to be a cash 
buyer on the other side. No matter how you work the deal ,  the person that takes the trade
in wil l  be basically stealing the airplanes for less than wholesale because that is the on ly 
way that they can hold them. 

Dave Leftwich:  That is true. Part of th is bi l l  also has a committee that would get together 
with a g roup to decide how to propose this, by sel l ing or trad ing.  If we can't sell them, we 
would just want to have the understanding that we could trade them in as another option . 



House Transportation Committee 
H B  1 033 
04/1 8/1 3 
Page 3 

Senator Dever: I am wondering if the appropriation on the bi l l  assumes trade-in value. 

Representative Kempenich : I th ink we appropriated $4 mi l l ion that is outright, and 
another $500,000. We d idn't really talk about the trade-in .  If you could get a couple 
hundred thousand on a trade-in ,  you could probably go above the appropriation amount. It 
is the d isposal and sale of the planes. The advisory committee was put together to keep an 
eye on this .  

Senator Dever: I 'm looking at the fiscal note. The Department of Transportation i nd icated 
a va lue for one plane at $400 ,000 and the other at $35 ,000. 

Dave Leftwich:  That is what some similar planes have been l isted for on the market. That 
is how we came up with the possible trade-in value. We were concerned that if we had to 
offer the planes for sale and cou ldn't sell them, we wou ld have to house, insure ,  and 
mainta in five airplanes rather than three airplanes. 

Representative Kempenich : I don't have a problem with this amendment. I don't th ink we 
wanted to l imit the options. The idea is that trad ing in anything in right now is not the best 
idea. 

Senator Dever: The value of those planes is approximately 1 0% of the value of the new 
planes. That g ives them flexibi l ity to negotiate one way or the other. 

Representative Kempenich:  That is what the amendment is a l lowing. 

Representative Porter: Maybe it  would be good to al low the department to l ist the planes 
for sale now. If they can't sell them in the next four or five months, while the committee is 
working to get the other planes, they know that the movement needs to be more towards a 
trade in rather than a cash outright sale. That would make the most financial sense. Just 
l isting it for sale doesn't obl igate you to sell it. It just ind icates the interest in the planes. 

Representative Kempenich:  That is a good idea . Maybe we should put some leg is lative 
i ntent in on that. There is concern from House leadership that the NDSU plane is not being 
uti l ized as it should be. It is more of a perk. They need to have something that can be 
better used or work out an agreement with UNO.  Did they buy that or is it leased? 

Representative Porter: It is leased . The foundation bought the plane, and then signed an 
agreement with the University for the exact dol lar amount of the lease payment that is 
owed . Then at the end of the term of the lease payment, the Un iversity pays a dol lar  and 
becomes the owner of the airplane. The University is acting l ike a middle man in the deal .  

Dave, the language that was added by the Senate "unless waived by the department each 
agency using air transportation services from the department shal l pay a user charge 
determined by the department." Can you give me an idea of how that would work? If 
someone is hopping in from another agency, and you are waiving the charges for everyone 
else in the plane, are you going to try to get 1 /61ti of the charge from that one agency? If 
you waive for some, are you going to waive for them al l? How will that be implemented? 



Hou'se Transportation Committee 
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Dave Leftwich:  When the Department of Transportation fl ies out to meetings, occasional ly 
our staff wil l  ask someone else to come along. Since we are asking them to go for our 
benefit, we normal ly don't charge them. If we are going out jointly with other groups, then 
we just d ivvy it up per person. 

Representative Porter: So, as you are doing the math , are you taking the total number of 
seats d ivided by the actual cost of operation, to get the amount for each passenger? Or 
because they are just occupying a seat, they have to pay just for their share of the fuel ,  and 
the state of North Dakota is paying for the overal l  operation of the a ircraft? How wi l l  you 
determine the charges that they will have to pay and make it so that is an affordable option 
for the agency to occupy an empty seat? If you make it too expensive, we are better off 
wasting a whole day and a motel room because it is cheaper than sitting in your  empty 
seat. Then you are going to fly somewhere with an airplane with an empty seat that could 
have been occupied and saved the state money. How is it going to save us money? 

Dave Leftwich:  We wi l l  have a fixed cost per hour to fly the airplane. That is d ivided by 
the number of people flying in the airplane. 

Senator Porter: So, if you are waiving it for five of the six passengers, then the sixth 
person has to pay 1 /6th of the cost. If they say it is too expensive and they drive, and then 
the plane flies with an empty seat back and forth. Is that good uti l ization of our a ircraft? 

Dave Leftwich:  Basical ly, if the Department of Transportation asks others to travel with us, 
the Department of Transportation picks up the total cost of the trip .  If i t  is a project, we 
charge it back to the federal aid project. 

Representative Kempenich: Why don't you put together an explanation of your process 
of what has just been d iscussed . 

Dave Leftwich :  We can put together some examples. 

The meeting was adjourned . 



201 3 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

House Transportation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

HB 1 033 
04/1 9/1 3 

Job # 2 1 298 

[8J Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signatur 

Minutes : Attachments 1 - 2 

Representative Kempenich called the conference committee to order on HB 1 033.  

Dave Leftwich, Deputy Director for Business Support for the North Dakota 
Department of Transportation,  provided proposed amendments and explained them. 
See attachment #1 . (ended 3:23) 

Representative Kempenich : That looks correct. It makes sense to try to sel l  them and 
use the cash toward the purchase of new planes. If they don't sel l ,  then using them as 
trade-ins would be an option. 

Representative Porter: I n  Section I I  those work for me and the concerns that I had based 
on our d iscussion yesterday. Do we need to have an emergency clause on the sale 
portion, or do you feel comfortable as an agency just knowing that you cou ldn 't sel l  or 
purchase anyth ing until after Ju ly 1 st? 

Dave Leftwich :  Since we cannot really dispose of the airplanes unti l we get the 
rep lacement a ircraft anyway, we could put them up for sale with the caveat that they could 
be picked up November 1 st. We would put them on sale once the governor signed the b i l l .  

Senator Dever: A subject that I don't see in either of these amendments is the Attorney 
General's a i rplane. Since we are going back to the 7000 version we would l ike to see that 
language that we added . 

Representative Kempenich:  We would have to get that amended to the version of what 
the Senate d id .  It is Section IV. 

Representative Porter: I don't have any problem removing Section IV. Then we can 
move right into the amendment that you handed out on Section V related to the N DSU 
airp lane. 
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Representative Kempenich:  The House felt there should be some statement made on 
the N DSU airplane because of the inefficiency of its use. It is intent language. The 
language is trying to convey that it is not needed . 

Senator Schaible: The question I am going to get from the east is : What state funds have 
been used for that plane, and what business is it of the state's? 

Representative Porter: My thoughts on the a ircraft relate back to two d ifferent things. 
One is the low uti l ization which drives the cost of operations through the roof. The 
Department of Transportation's plane costs about $2000 per hour to operate compared to 
N DSU's plane at $6000 per hour. The second argument is that they are d i rectly using 
student tuition dol lars to pay that $300,000 per year payment. I th ink that tuition dol lars 
should be used for enhancements in the classroom and for teach ing kids, rather than flying 
around.  From a budgetary point of view, with UNO having an aviation program and 
students that need flying hours ,  for those 60 hours a year there is no reason that they don't 
col laborate with UNO to fly those hours. If that wasn't a workable thing , there is a private 
business in Fargo that provides charter service that wou ld save from $ 1 50 ,000 to $200,000 
a year to fly those 60 hours. That $300 ,000 is just for the payment, not all the other 
expenses. 1 2: 1 2  

Senator Schaible: I totally agree with you , I get questions about what business is it of 
ours .  They think that we are micromanag ing . 

Representative Kempenich :  It is intent language. It does not say "shall d ispose of." They 
wi l l  need better justification than what they have now, and they have four years to do that. 
For the low usage it our intent that they look at other options, since the cost is so h igh .  We 
wanted to send the message that we are not happy with the way this is playing out. It 
m ight be something for the next legislature to decide. 

Senator Dever: The previous language just said airplane, the intent language says "that" 
a i rplane. Does that suggest that it is okay for them to enter a lease with a less expensive 
a i rplane? 

Representative Kempenich:  I t  is opening up some options. This plane is not being used 
for what it is capable of, and a private firm is making more use of it than N DSU.  

Representative Porter: Section I al ludes back to your question. I t  lays out the framework 
for future leases and future purchases of aircraft inside the state of North Dakota . Your 
concerns are kind of covered in Section I. I don't know if this is the right language to push 
the issue that you are wasting money and spending tuition dol lars on things that you 
shouldn't be. 

Representative Boe: It real ly sounds more l ike a resolution than leg islation . What I hear it 
saying is, if you come back the next legislative session, and you have not flown th is p lane x 
number of hours ,  you should sell it. If that is the message that we are send ing, I am going 
to guess that they wi l l  be flying to Burger King to use some hours if they want to keep the 
plane. 
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Representative Kempenich : They have to track their usage. They weren't doing a good 
job of that before, but may be doing it a l ittle better now. We were told to get a date in 
there ,  so that was our attempt to do that. 

Representative Porter: The big question is back to the Senate. Can that language be 
worked in to get the bi l l  through the Senate, or do we need to look at other language? 

Senator Dever: I th ink we are al l  on the same page with these amendments in add ition to 
the deletion of the language about the Attorney General's plane. 

Senator Schaible: Just to summarize for the intern . We are going to take the Department 
of Transportation's amendments into the 7000 version, and then on page 2 remove Section 
IV of the b i l l ,  and then introduce the language that Rep. Kempenich presented regard ing 
the existing Section V. Is that correct? 

Senator Dever: Yes, an easy way to do that would be say remove l ines 8-1 6 .  

Representative Kempenich:  We may try to fin ish this yet today. The meeting was 
adjourned . 
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Minutes: Attachment 1 

Representative Kempenich brought the committee to order on H B  1 033. 
Representative Ruby was present in place of Representative Porter. 
A marked up copy of the bi l l  and the amendments were d istributed . See attachment #1 . 
(3 . 0083 .07005) 

Senator Dever moved that the Senate recede from the Senate amendments and 
further amend with the amendments, 1 3.0083.07005. 
Senator Schaible seconded the motion. 

A rol l  cal l  vote was taken: Aye 6 Nay 0 Absent 0 The motion carried. 

The meeting was adjourned. 



1 3.0083.1 0000 

Amendment to: HB 1 033 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/22/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding . 
t d d I levels and appropriations antic/pa e un er current aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $435,000 

Expenditures $5,000,000 

Appropriations $4,500,000 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This act requires sale of certain planes, d iscontinuance of an aircraft lease, authorizes new aircraft, bars acquisition 
of aircraft without approval, bans use of state funds for certain aircraft, provides for operation of aircraft by qualified 
pilots, & provides requirements for use of aircraft. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 2 provides that NDDOT shall provide air transportation services to other state agencies upon request and be 
reimbursed based on a user charge. These provisions reflect current NDDOT practice, so they should have no 
additional significant fiscal impact. Section 3 directs NDDOT to sell the 1 977 Piper Cheyenne and 1 975 Cessna 
Skymaster airplanes and use the proceeds for replacement airplane purchases. It is estimated that the resale or 
trade-in value of these two airplanes will be approximately $400,000 and $35,000 respectively, for a total estimated 
resale or trade-in of $435,000. This section also provides that, after June 30, 2014, NO DOT may not use any funds 
appropriated by the legislative assembly to maintain or operate these two airplanes. Section 4 directs North Dakota 
State University to discontinue the lease for their KingAir B200 airplane by June 30, 201 7. Section 5 provides an 
appropriation from the state's general fund to NDDOT in the amount of $4.5 million for the purpose of purchasing 
replacement airplanes. This section also requires NDDOT to obtain budget section approval prior to expending any 
funds appropriated under this section in excess of $4,000,000. Additionally, this section extablishes an airplane 
replacement advisory committee to advise NDDOT on purchase of replacement airplanes. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Under this bill, NDDOT may realize revenue from the sale or trade-in of the airplanes identified in Part 2B of this 
fiscal note. This revenue is estimated at $435,000. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The primary expenditures that would be realized under this bill would be incurred by NDDOT for replacement of the 
Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. NDDOT will try to replace the airplanes with recent model, used airplanes. To 
replace the Cheyenne, NDDOT would consider a used King Air 8200. It is estimated this airplane would cost 
approximately $3.1 million dollars. To replace the Skymaster, NDDOT would consider a used Cessna Caravan; the 
estimated cost for this airplane would be about $1 .9 million dollars. Total replacement cost for both airplanes is 
estimated at about $5.0 million dollars. It should be noted that any agencies that will use their own pilots to fly 
NO DOT aircraft pursuant to section 2 of the bill will incur annual training costs to comply with FAA and insurance 
requirements. It is estimated that the tuition and travel costs associated with this training will cost approximately 
$ 16,000 per pilot per airplane each biennium. This impact has not been included in section 1 A  of this fiscal note as 
we don't know to what extent, if any, other agencies might choose to utilize their own pilots to operate NDDOT 
aircraft. 

C .  Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Section 5 provides an appropriation to NDDOT from the general fund in the amount of $4.5 million dollars to replace 
the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 04/22/201 3  
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1 3.0083.09000 

Amendment to: HB 1 033 

' : 

FISCAL, NOTE 
Requested by legislative Council 

04110/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and approl2[iations anticipate d I under current aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium ! 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $435,000 

Expenditures $5,000,000 

Appropriations $4,500,000 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school d istrict and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill requires sale of certain aircraft, authorizes acq!Jisition of replacement aircraft, bars acquisition of aircraft 
without approval, bans future use of state funds for certain aircraft, provides for operation of state aircraft by 
qualified p ilots, & provides requirements for use of aircraft. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 2 provides that NDDOT shall provide air transportation services to other state agencies upon request and be 
reimbursed on a cost based user charge. These provisions reflect current NDDOT practice, so they should have no 
additional significant fiscal impact. Section 3 directs NDDOT to sell the 1 977 Piper Cheyenne and 1 975 Cessna 
Skymaster airplanes and use the proceeds for replacement airplane purchases. It is estimated that the resale or 
trade-in value of these two airplanes will be approximately $400,000 and $35,000 respectively, for a total estimated 
resale or trade-in of $435,000. This section also provides that, after June 30, 2014, NDDOT may not use any funds 
appropriated by the legislative assembly to maintain or operate these two airplanes. Section 4 provides an 
appropriation from the state's general fund to NDDOT in the amount of $4.5 million for the purpose of purchasing 
replacement airplanes. This section also requires NODOT to obtain budget section approval prior to expending any 
funds appropriated under this section in excess of $4,000,000. Additionally, this section extablishes an airplane 
replacement advisory committee to advise NDDOT on purchase of replacement airplanes. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Under this bill, NDDOT may realize revenue from the sale or trade-in of the airplanes identified in Part 2B of this 
fiscal note. This revenue is estimated at $435,000. : 1, 



' I 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The primary expenditures that would be realized under this bill would be incurred by NDDOT for replacement of the 
Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. NO DOT will try to .replace the airplanes with recent model, used airplanes. To 
replace the Cheyenne, NDDOT would consider a used ;King Air 8200. It is estimated this airplane would cost 
approximately $3. 1 million dollars. To replace the Sk}tmaster, NDDOT would consider a used Cessna Caravan; the 
estimated cost for this airplane would be about $1 .9  million dollars. Total replacement cost for both airplanes is 
estimated at about $5.0 million dollars. It should be noted that any agencies that will use their own pilots to fly 
NO DOT aircraft pursuant to section 2 of the bill will incur annual training costs to comply with FAA and insurance 
requirements. It is estimated that the tuition and travel costs associated with this training will cost approximately 
$16,000 per pilot per airplane each biennium. This impact has not been included in section 1 A  of this fiscal note as 
we don't know to what extent, if any, other agencies might choose to utilize their own pilots to operate NDDOT 
aircraft. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts.: Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts.shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Section 4 provides an appropriation to NO DOT from the general fund in the amount of $4.5 million dollars to replace 
the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: N DDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 04/1 1 /201 3  
l ! 



Amendment to: H B  1 033 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by legislative Council 

02/27/2013 

1 A State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I d /eve s and appropnations anticipate under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium ; 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $435,000 

Expenditures . $5,300,000 

Appropriations $4,500,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill requires sale of certain aircraft, authorizes acquisition of replacement aircraft, bars acquisition of aircraft 
without approval, bans future use of state funds for certain aircraft, provides for operation of state aircraft by 
qualified pilots, & provides requirements for use of aircraft. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 2 provides that NDDOT shall provide air transportation services to other state agencies upon request and be 
reimbursed on a cost based user charge. These provisions reflect current NDDOT practice, so they should have no 
additional significant fiscal impact. Section 3 directs NDDOT to sell the 1 977 Piper Cheyenne and 1 975 Cessna 
Skymaster airplanes and use the proceeds for replacement airplane purchases. It is estimated that the resale value 
of these two airplanes will be $400,000 and $35,000 re�pectively, for a total resale of $435,000. This section also 
provides that, after June 30, 2014, NDDOT may not use any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to 
maintain or operate these two airplanes. Section 4 directs the Attorney General's office to dispose of or transfer title 
of their 1 965 Beechcraft Baron airplane. Section 5 provides that, after June 30, 2014, North Dakota State University 
may not use any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to lease an airplane. Section 6 provides an 
appropriation from the state's general fund to NDDOT in the amount of $4.5 million for the purpose of purchasing 
replacement airplanes. This section also requires NDDOT to obtain budget section approval prior to expending any 
funds appropriated under this section in excess of $4,000,000. Additionally, this section extablishes an airplane 
replacement advisory committee to advise NDDOT on purchase of replacement airplanes . 

. ' 
3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Under this bill, NDDOT may realize revenue from the sale of the airplanes identified in Part 2B of this fiscal note. 
This revenue is estimated at $435,000. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The primary expenditures that would be realized under this bill would be incurred by NDDOT for replacement of the 
Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. NDDOT will try toJeplace the airplanes with recent model, used airplanes. To 
replace the Cheyenne, NDDOT would consider a used King Air B200. It is estimated this airplane would cost 
approximately $3.5 million dollars. To replace the Skymaster, NDDOT would consider a used Cessna Caravan; the 
estimated cost for this airplane would be about $1 .8 million dollars. Total replacement cost for both airplanes is 
estimated at about $5.3 million dollars. The Attorney General's office should see a reduction in operating expenses 
as a result of d iscontinuing operation of their Beechcraft Baron airplane. However, they may incur additional costs to 
reimburse NDDOT for costs incurred to obtain flights on NDDOT aircraft. This impact has not been included in 
section 1 A of this fiscal note as we do not know to what extent the Attorney General's office may utilize NDDOT 
aircraft. Likewise, North Dakota State University should see a reduction in their expenditures as a result of the 
provisions of section 5 of the bill, but this may be somewhat offset by costs to obtain transportation through other 
means. Again, this impact has not been included in section 1 A  of this fiscal note as we do not know what the costs 
may be for N DSU to obtain any necessary flights to replace those resulting from use of their current aircraft. It 
should be noted that any agencies that will use their own pilots to fly NDDOT aircraft pursuant to section 2 of the bill 
will incur annual training costs to comply with FAA and insurance requirements. It is estimated that the tuition and 
travel costs associated with this training will cost approximately $1 6,000 per pilot per airplane each biennium. This 
impact has not been included in section 1 A of this fiscal note as we don't know to what extent, if any, other agencies 
might choose to utilize their own pilots to operate NDDOT aircraft. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

' i 

Section 6 provides an appropriation to NDDOT from the general fund in the amount of $4.5 million dollars less any 
proceeds realized on the sale or disposal of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. Since it is estimated that 
NDDOT will realize approximately $435,000 on the resale of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes, this leaves a 
net amount to be charged against the appropriation of $4.065 million. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 02/27/201 3  
l i 
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Amendment to: HB 1 033 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/25/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I r ·  t d  d t l  eve s and appropnat10ns an JCJpa e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $475,000 

Expenditures $5,300,000 

Appropriations $4,500,000 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·201 5 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief sumfTlary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill requires sale of certain aircraft, authorizes acquisition of replacement aircraft, bars acquisition of aircraft 
without approval, bans future use of state funds for certain aircraft, provides for operation of state aircraft by 
qualified pilots, & provides requirements for use of aircraft. 

B. .Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 2 provides that NDDOT shall provide air transp,ortation services to other state agencies upon request and be 
reimbursed on a cost based user charge. These provisions reflect current NDDOT practice, so they should have no 
additional significant fiscal impact. Section 3 directs NDDOT to sell the 1 977 Piper Cheyenne and 1 975 Cessna 
Skymaster airplanes and use the proceeds for replacement airplane purchases. It is estimated that the resale value 
of these two airplanes will be $400,000 and $35,000 respectively, for a total resale of $435,000. This section also 
provides that, after June 30, 201 4, NDDOT may not use any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to 
maintain or operate these two airplanes. Section 4 directs the Attorney General's office to sell their 1 965 Beechcraft 
Baron airplane and retain the use the proceeds in accordance with the agreement entered into by the office when 
the airplane was obtained. It is estimated the resale value of this airplane will be approximately $40,000. This 
section also provides that, after June 30, 2014, the Attqrney General's Office may not use any funds appropriated by 
the legislative assembly to maintain or operate this airplane. Section 5 provides that, after June 30, 2014, North 
Dakota State University may not use any funds appropriated by the legislative assembly to lease an airplane. 
Section 6 provides an appropriation from the state's general fund to NDDOT in the amount of $4.5 million less any 
realized proceeds from the sale or d isposal of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes for the purpose of purchasing 
replacement airplanes. 



3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
! ;· I 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive· budget. 

Under this bill, NDDOT and the Attorney General's Office may realize revenue from the sale of the airplanes 
identified in Part 2B of this fiscal note. This revenue is estimated at $435,000 for NO DOT and $40,000 for the 
Attorney General's Office. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affecteq. 

The primary expenditures that would be realized under this bill would be incurred by NO DOT for replacement of the 
Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. NDDOT will try to replace the airplanes with recent model, used airplanes. To 
replace the Cheyenne, NO DOT would consider a used King Air 8200. It is estimated this airplane would cost 
approximately $3.5 million dollars. To replace the Skymaster, NDDOT would consider a used Cessna Caravan; the 
estimated cost for this airplane would be about $1 .8 million dollars. Total replacement cost for both airplanes is 
estimated at about $5.3 million dollars. The Attorney General's office should see a reduction in operating expenses 
as a result of discontinuing operation of their Beechcraft Baron airplane. However, they may incur additional costs to 
reimburse NO DOT for costs incurred to obtain flights on NO DOT aircraft. This impact has not been included in 
section 1 A  of this fiscal note as we do not know to what extent the Attorney General's office may utilize NO DOT 
aircraft. Likewise, North Dakota State University should see a reduction in their expenditures as a result of the 
provisions of section 5 of the bill, but this may be somewhat offset by costs to obtain transportation through other 
means. Again, this impact has not been included in section 1A of this fiscal note as we do not know what the costs 
may be for NDSU to obtain any necessary flights to replace tnose resulting from use of their current aircraft. It 
should be noted that any agencies that will use their own pilots to fly NO DOT aircraft pursuant to section 2 of the bill 
will incur annual training costs to comply with FAA arid insurance requirements. It is estimated that the tuition and 
travel costs associated with this training will cost approximately $16,000 per pilot per airplane each biennium. This 
impact has not been included in section 1 A of this fiscal note as we don't know to what extent, if any, other agencies 
might choose to utilize their own pilots to operate NDDOT aircraft. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts.; Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Section 6 provides an appropriation to NO DOT from the general fund in the amount of $4.5 million dollars less any 
proceeds realized on the sale or disposal of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes. Since it is estimated that 
NO DOT will realize approximately $435,000 on the resale of the Cheyenne and Skymaster airplanes, this leaves a 
net amount to be charged against the appropriation of $4.065 million. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 02/04/201 3  
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Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1 033 

FISCAL N OTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

12/1912012 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d ' t' t' ' t d  d t l  eve s an appropna 1ons an Jc/pa e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $2,000,000 

Expenditures $1 ,750,000 

Appropriations $1 ,750,000 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$2,000,000 

$1,750,000 

$1,750,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief surmnary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill would create a central aircraft management system under the NO Department of Transportation. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relev�nt to the analysis. 

Under this bill, the central aircraft management system would be operated on an actual cost basis whereby users 
would be billed at a rate based on the actual operating and pilot costs, as well as depreciation and estimated aircraft 
replacement costs. Accordingly, NO DOT would need additional appropriation sufficient to cover the related costs. 
The excess of revenue over expenditures represents depreciation and reserves for high cost repairs/replacements. 
This excess would be spent in later years as the aircraft pool incurs costs to replace aircraft and make major, high 
cost repairs to the aircraft. Note: The revenue and expenditure figures represent only the central aircraft pool. They 
do not represent the impact on agencies using the pool. The agencies using the pool should see an increase in 
expenditures for the fees they pay to the aircraft pool apd a decrease in expenditures for aircraft operating costs that 
will now be covered by the pool. This fiscal note is based on the assumption that the aircraft currently used by the 
affected agencies would continue to be operated by the aircraft pool. The assumptions do not include near term 
replacement of any aircraft. If it becomes necessary to replace aircraft in the near term, the costs would be 
significantly greater than presented in this fiscal note. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

It is very difficult to accurately estimate the initial biennium revenues associated with a central aircraft management 
system until we have accumulated actual operating data for a biennium. Nonetheless, we estimate the additional 
first biennium revenues to operate the pool of aircraft to be approximately $2 million greater than the NDDOT 
currently recognizes on its current aircraft. This revenue would be intended to cover the actual operating costs of the 
additional aircraft as well as depreciation and reserves :for high cost repair/replacement. The DOT would not initially 
have a revenue source to cover major repairs/replacements. Funds for this purpose would be accumulated over 
time through the charging of reserves for major repairs/replacements and depreciation charges. Therefore, for the 

I i 



first biennium, NDDOT would need an additional revenue source to cover the estimated major repairs/replacements 
of $500,000 that might occur in the 1 st biennium. Such revenue source is not covered in the revenue identified in 
Part 1 A  above. 

,. 
B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, fine item, and 

fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. . 
· 

. " 
It is very difficult to accurately estimate the initial biennium expenditures associated with a central aircraft 
management system until we have accumulated actual operating data for a biennium. Nonetheless, we estimate the 
additional, "out of pocket" expenditures to operate the additional aircraft not currently operated by NDDOT to be 
approximately $1 .75 million as shown on the attached schedule. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. · 

The NO DOT will require an addition to its existing appropriation in the amount of $1 .75 million to cover the additional 
costs of operating the aircraft pool : · 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 0 1 /09/201 3  

I i 



1 3 . 0083. 07005 
Title. 1 0000 

u �z -
Prepared by the Legislative Counci l  staff for U)\ :..... � 
Representative Kempenich . \� 

Apri l 1 9 , 201 3 

PROPOSED AME N DMENTS TO REENG ROSSED HOUSE BI LL NO. 1 033 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1 666 of the House Journal 
and page 1 262 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bi l l  No. 1 033 be amended 
as fol lows: 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2, replace "sale" with "d isposition" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3,  after "approval" insert " ;  to provide for a report to the sixty-fourth leg islative 
assembly" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 6 , replace "Each" with "Un less waived by the department. each" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 7 , remove "wh ich m ust be based upon" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 8 , remove "the actual cost of operating the a ircraft" 

Page 2, l ine 1 ,  replace "SALE OR DISPOSAL" with "DISPOSITION" 

Page 2 ,  l ine 2 ,  remove "sel l  or" 

Page 2, l ine 2, after the third "of' insert ",  by sale or trade,"  

Page 2 ,  l ine 4, replace "The" with " If the airplanes are sold ,  the" 

Page 2, l ine 4, remove "or d isposal" 

Page 2 ,  replace l i nes 8 th rough 1 6  with:  

"SECTION 4. LEGIS LATIVE I NTENT - NORTH DAKOTA STATE U NIVERSITY 
AI RP LAN E LEAS E - REP ORT TO SIXTY-FOU RTH LEG ISLATIVE ASSE M B LY. I t  is 
the intent of the sixty-third legis lative assembly that before J une 30,  20 1 7 , North 
Dakota state un iversity d iscontinue the lease entered by the university for a K ingAir 
B200 airplane and that North Dakota state un iversity provide a report to the 
appropriations com mittees of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly regarding the status 
of its KingAir B200 airplane lease and efforts to uti l ize other air transportation services."  

Renumber accord ingly 

Page No. 1 1 3 . 0083 . 07005 



201 3 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 

Committee: House Transportation 

Bi l l/Resolution No. HB 1 033 ------------------

Date: 04/1 8/1 3 & 04/1 9/1 3 

Roll Cal l Vote #: 

as (re) engrossed 

Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments 
D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments 
[8J SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as fol lows 

�Senate Amendments o@J page(s) _1:..:::6.::..:66::...__ ____________ __ 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a 
new committee be appointed 

((Re) Engrossed) HB 1 033 was placed on the Seventh order 

of business on the calendar 

Motion Made by: Senator Dever 

Vote Count Yes: 6 

Seconded by: Senator Schaible 

No: 0 Absent: 0 ------ ----- ------

House Carrier Rep. Kempenich Senate Carrier Senator Schaible 

LC Number 1 3 . 0083 07005 of amendment --------------���� -��-------------

LC Number of engrossment -------------------

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 



Com Conference Committee Report 
April 22, 2013 8:48am 

Module ID: h_cfcomrep_71_006 

Insert LC: 13.0083.07005 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1033, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Schaible, Dever, Marcel lais 

and Reps. Kempenich, Boe, Ruby) recommends that the SENATE RECEDE from 
the Senate amendments as printed on HJ page 1666, adopt amendments as 
follows, and place H B  1 033 on the Seventh order: 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1 666 of the House Journal 
and page 1 262 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bil l No. 1 033 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, replace "sale" with "disposition" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3,  after "approval" insert "; to provide for a report to the sixty-fourth legislative 
assembly" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 6, replace "Each" with "Unless waived by the department. each" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 7, remove "which must be based upon" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 8, remove "the actual cost of operating the aircraft" 

Page 2 ,  l ine 1 ,  replace "SALE OR DISPOSAL" with "DISPOSITION" 

Page 2, l ine 2 ,  remove "sell or" 

Page 2, l ine 2, after the third "of' insert " ,  by sale or trade," 

Page 2 ,  l ine 4 ,  replace "The" with " If the airplanes are sold, the" 

Page 2, l ine 4, remove "or disposal" 

Page 2, replace l ines 8 through 1 6  with: 

"SECTION 4. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - NORTH DAKOTA STATE 
UNIVERSITY AIRPLANE LEASE - REPORT TO SIXTY-FOURTH LEGISLATIVE 
ASSEMBLY. It is the intent of the sixty-third legislative assembly that before June 30, 
201 7, North Dakota state un iversity discontinue the lease entered by the un iversity 
for a KingAir 8200 airplane and that North Dakota state un iversity provide a report to 
the appropriations committees of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly regard ing the 
status of its KingAir 8200 airplane lease and efforts to util ize other air transportation 
services." 

Renumber accord ingly 

Reengrossed HB 1 033 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 

( 1 )  DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_cfcomrep_71_006 
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:# 1  --

G OVERN MENT S E RVIC ES C O M M ITTE E  
The Government Services Committee was assigned 

the following responsibil ities: . 
• A study of the use of state-owned airplanes 

pursuant to Section 1 3  of 201 1  House Bi l l  
No. 1 0 1 2. The study was to include a review of 
airplanes owned by state agencies, the 
justification for owning each airplane, the 
frequency of use of each airplane, and the 
feasibi l ity and desirabil ity of requiring state-owned 
airplanes to be managed by Fleet Services. The 
study was amended by the Legislative 
Management to exclude state-owned airplanes 
operated by the University of North Dakota (UND) 
School of  Aviation. 

• A study of options for relocating the H ighway 
Patrol training academy pursuant to Section 5 of 
201 1 House Bi l l  No. 1 0 1 1 .  The study was to 
include a review of options for relocating the 
train ing academy, options for relocating the 
emergency operations vehicle training course, 
and options for constructing a H ighway Patrol 
shooting range. 

• Approve any agreements between a North Dakota 
state entity and the state of South Dakota to form 
a bistate authority pursuant to North Dakota 
Century Code Section 54-40-01 . 

The Chairman of the Legislative Management also 
assigned the committee the following budget-related duties: 

1 .  Monitor the status of state revenues and 
expenditures for the 201 1 -1 3 biennium. 

2. Receive input from major state agencies 
regarding the status of their budgets and 
changes in federal funds. 

3 .  Receive information from state agencies 
regarding estimated cost-to-continue items for 
the 201 3-1 5 bienn ium. 

4. Receive the Ju ly 20 1 2  revised 201 1 - 1 3  biennium 
and the prel iminary 201 3-1 5 biennium general 
fund revenue forecasts. 

5. Review projected revenues, expenditures, and 
fund balances of major state funds. 

6 .  Identify and prioritize potential one-time funding 
items for the 20 1 3-1 5 biennium. 

7 .  Discuss possible legislative initiatives affecting 
the budget, including i nitiatives to return excess 
revenues to taxpayers. 

8. Identify key budget issues for the 
201 3  legislative session. 

9 .  Determine, in consultation with the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMS),  a sustainable 
level of spending for the 201 3-1 5 biennium. 

1 0 . As appropriate, make recommendations to the 
Legislative Management. 

Committee members were Representatives Jeff 
Delzer (Chairman) ,  Duane DeKrey, Glen Froseth, Ed 
Gruchalla, Matthew M. Klein ,  Curtiss Kreun ,  Bob 
Martinson, Lisa Meier, Phi l l ip Muel ler, Todd Porter, 
David S .  R ust, Vicky Steiner, Blair Thoreson, Don 
Vigesaa, and Alon Wieland and Senators Ron Carl isle, 

Lonnie J. Laffen, Gary A. Lee, David O'Connell, J im 
Roers, and Donald Schaible. 

The committee submitted this report to the Legislative 
Management at the biennial meeting of the Legislative 
Management in November 20 1 2. The Legislative 
Management accepted the report for submission to the 
63rd Legislative Assembly. 

STUDY OF THE USE OF 
STATE-OWNE D  AIRPLANES 

The Government Services Committee was assigned 
a study of the use of state-owned airplanes pursuant to 
Section 1 3  of 201 1  House B i l l  No. 101 2. The study was 
to include a review of airplanes owned by state 
agencies, the justification for owning each a irplane, the 
frequency of use of each airplane, and the feasibility and 
desirability of requiring state-owned airplanes to be 
managed by Fleet Services. The study was amended by 
the Legislative Management to exclude state-owned 
airplanes operated by the U N D  School of Aviation. 

F leet Services 
Section 24-02-03.3  requ i res the Department of 

Transportation to operate a central vehicle management 
system (Fleet Services) to regulate the operation ,  
maintenance, and management of al l  motor vehicles 
owned or leased by the state. Each state agency that 
util izes a vehicle from Fleet Services pays a fee to Fleet 
Services for the cost of the vehicle, including operating 
costs. The fee is based on the estimated costs of 
acquiring and maintaining the vehicle. Fleet Services 
currently manages approximately 3,200 vehicles. 

Previous Studies 
The 1 98 1 -82 Leqislative Audit and Fiscal Review 

Committee studied the uti l ization of aircraft by state 
agencies and the feasibi l ity of establishing a state 
aircraft pool .  The committee adopted a resolution that 
recommended the establ ishment of a state aircraft pool .  
However, the resolution was not approved by the 
Legislative Assembly in 1 983. 

State-Owned Ai rplanes 
Excluding the North Dakota Un iversity System, five 

state agencies own a total of eight ai rplanes. The table 
below details the ownership of airplanes by state 
agencies, including the purpose of ownership: 

Agency Ai rcraft Purpose 
Department of 1 998 Beechcraft- Passenger 
Transportation Raytheon King Air transportation 

Department of 1 977 Piper Cheyenn e  Passenger 
Transportation transportation 

Department of 1 975 Cessna Engineering 
Transportation Skymaster photography 

North Dakota 2008 Cessna 206 Airport inspections 
Aeronautics and construction 
Commission 



n 
Champion Scout 
2006 Cessna 1 82 

2007 Cessna 206 

Wild 

Enforcement 

Enforcement 
1 965 Beechcraft Baron Enforcement 

The U niversity of North Dakota owns 72 aircraft and 
the U N O  Aerospace Foundation owns an additional 
56 aircraft which are used primarily for flight training 
purposes and occasionally for passenger transportation. 
North Dakota State University ( N DSU) does not own any 
aircraft but leases a King Air 8200 airplane from the 
NDSU Development Foundation for passenger 
transportation purposes. 

Department of Transportation Airplanes 
The committee received information regarding the 

three airplanes operated by the Department of 
Transportation. The committee learned the department 
has four  permanent employees to provide air service 
which includes three pi lots and a maintenance manager. 
The department also has a temporary employee to 
provide aircraft scheduling services and several 
temporary part-time pi lots avai lable as needed. The 
following schedu le provides information regarding 
aircraft owned by the department: 

Purchase Passenger Fl i  ht Hours 

Aircraft Price Ca aci 2008 2009 201 0 
1 975 $99,283 One pilot, one 1 42 1 91 403 
Cessna passenger (also 
Skymaster contains 

photography 
equipment) 

1 977 Piper $438,433 Two pilots, five 1 90 1 1 0 1 33 
Cheyenne passengers 
1 998 $3,901 ,377 Two pilots, 288 216  242 
Beechcraft- seven 
Raytheon passengers 
Kin Air 

The committee learned the department provides air 
transportation service to several state agencies, 
including the Governor's office. The department charges 
other agencies a fee for providing air transportation 
services. The fees are used to recover costs relating to 
the operation of the aircraft. The committee received the 
fol lowing schedu le deta il ing the current rates charged to 
other agencies for air service: 

Aircraft Rate Per Hour 
1 975 Cessna Skymaster $41 3  
1 977 Piper Cheyenne $923 
1 998 Beechcraft-Raytheon King Air $995 

The committee received information regarding the 
number of Department of Transportation flights during 
state fiscal year 201 1 ,  including the number of 
passengers on the flights and passenger fees collected. 
The fol lowing schedule summarizes passenger fl ights 
utilizing the department's passenger airplanes: 

Flight Information - State Fiscal Year 201 1  
(July 1 2010  - June 30, 201 1 )  

1 998 
King Air 1 977 Piper 

B200 C heyenne 
Number of trips 19 1  57 
Flight hours 276.4 86.7 
Total passengers 753 1 55 
Total fees collected $374, 1 91 $1 1 1 , 523 
AveraQe fees collected per passenger $496.93 $7 1 9. 5 1  

Highway Patrol Airplane 
The committee learned the Highway Patrol owns a 

2007 Cessna 206 which is primarily used for search and 
rescue operations, assisting in  criminal apprehension, 
traffic-related duties, and AMBER Alert functions. The 
plane was purchased for $429,000 with approximately 
$35,000 of the funding provided from state sources and 
$394,000 provided from federal asset forfeiture funds. 
The airplane is equipped with forward looking infrared 
(FLIR) equipment to assist in search missions. 

The following schedule details the fl ight hours of the 
airplane for state fiscal years 2009 through 201 1 :  

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 
2009 201 0 201 1 

F liaht hours 236 1 43 1 56 

The committee learned the Highway Patrol p i lots are 
also ground troopers. The troopers that serve as pi lots 
do not receive any additional pay related to thei r pi lot 
duties. 

Game and Fish Department Airplanes 
The committee received information regarding 

airplanes owned by the Game and Fish Department. 
The department owns a 2006 American Champion Scout 
which is used for research purposes, such as big game 
surveys. The department purchased the airplane for 
$ 1 81 , 1 86 .  The department also owns a 
2006 Cessna 1 82 which was purchased for $375,000 
and is used for law enforcement purposes and search 
and rescue missions. 

The following schedule provides information 
regarding the fl ight hours of each department a irplane 
for state fiscal years 2009 through 201 1 :  

Game and Fish Department Airplane FliQht H ours 
Fiscal F iscal Fiscal 
Year Year Year 
2009 201 0 201 1 

2006 American Champion Scout 437.5 41 8.6 533.5 
2006 Cessna 1 82 192.3 2 1 9.6 2 1 6.3 

The committee learned the department has a pi lot 
who also performs airplane maintenance duties on 
Game and Fish Department airplanes. 

North Dakota Aeronautics Com m ission A irplane 
The committee received information regard ing the 

ai rplane owned by the North Dakota Aeronautics 
Commission. The commission purchased a 
2008 Cessna 206 airplane for $560,000 in 
September 20 1 1 .  The airplane is used primari ly for 



airport safety inspections and passenger transportation 
and is estimated to be used 200 fl ight hours per year. 

The committee learned the current airplane owned by 
the commission was purchased to replace a 
1 980 Cessna Skymaster. The 1 980 Cessna Skymaster 
was purchased in 1 987 for $83,500 and was sold in 
201 1 for $1 09,600. 

Attorney General's Office Airp lane 
The committee received information regarding the 

airplane owned by the Attorney General's office. The 
office owns a 1 965 Beechcraft Baron airplane which has 
two engines and can transport four passengers. The 
airplane is used for transporting evidence, transporting 
law enforcement agents and emergency personnel, 
survei l lance, and for other various purposes. The plane 
has been used for a total of 1 25 hours during the past 
three years. 

The committee learned the Attorney General's office 
obtained the 1 965 Beechcraft Baron airplane at no cost 
through a federal Department of Defense program. 
Permission is needed from the federal government to 
sell the airplane, but the state could retain the proceeds 
from the sale. 

North Dakota State U niversity Airplane 
The committee learned N DSU does not own any 

airplanes but leases a King Air B200 airplane from the 
N DSU Development Foundation. The N DSU 
Development Foundation purchased the airplane for 
$2,348,000 in June 2007. North Dakota State University 
began leasing the airplane in July 2007, and the 
university makes quarterly lease payments of $80,730. 
The lease continues until July 201 7, and the university 
can purchase the ai rcraft for $1 at the end of the lease. 

The university uses non-general fund revenues to 
pay for airplane operating costs which may consist of 
i nterest income, indirect cost recoveries, transfers from 
department local funds, and revenues received under 
the North Dakota/Minnesota tu ition reciprocity 

3 
agreement. The current insurance policy on the airplane 
provides for a l iabi l ity coverage l imit of $ 1 00 mil l ion and 
a physical damage l imit of $2 mi l l ion. The current 
annual premium amount for the insurance policy is 
$1 8 ,395. 

The airplane is used primarily to transport un iversity 
personnel to other University System faci l ities located 
across the state. From March 1 ,  201 1 ,  to March 2 ,  
201 2 , 55  percent of the passengers on  the university's 
airplane were campus personnel. The remaining 
passengers were nonuniversity personnel, including 
members of the State Board of H igher Education and 
personnel from other institutions. 

The committee learned the university has entered an 
agreement with the Fargo Jet Center to sublease the 
university's airplane at a fee of $660 per hour. The 
agreement provides that the Fargo Jet Center pay fuel 
and other variable costs when using the airplane. From 
November 201 1 through June 201 2, the Fargo Jet 
Center used the airplane 86. 9  hours and provided total 
payments of $57, 354 to the university. 

The committee learned the un iversity has its airplane 
for sale. As of August 1 ,  201 2 , the payoff amount for the 
remaining loan on the airplane was $1 ,31 2,624. The 
committee discussed options to authorize the 
Department of Transportation to purchase the 
un iversity's airplane for use in  a state airplane pool .  The 
plane could be used as an additional passenger 
transportation airplane or to replace an older passenger 
airplane owned by the department. 

Airplane Expenses 
The committee learned airplane expenses vary 

significantly between similar a irplanes due to the 
intended use of the airplane and airplane fl ight hours. 
Airplane expenses also vary significantly between years 
due to timing of certai n  expenses, such as major repairs 
or special ai rcraft uses. The committee reviewed the 
following information regarding state fiscal year 201 1 
expenses of state-owned a ircraft: 

Summary of Fiscal Year 201 1 Airplane Expenses 
North 

Dakota 
Aeronautics Attorney Game and Highway 
Commission General Fish Department Patrol N DSU Department of Transportation 

2006 
2008 1 965 American 2006 2007 1 991 1 975 1 977 1 998 

Cessna 206 Beechcraft Champion Cessna Cessna King Air Cessna Piper King Air  
(Estimated)1 Baron Scout 1 82 206 8200 Sky master Cheyenne 8200 

Total flight hours 200.00 21 .60 533.50 2 1 6.30 1 56.00 69.00 4 1 4. 1 0  94.50 283.00 

Variable costs $ 1 9, 1 00.00 $4,883.00 $51 ,699.00 $31 ' 1 43.00 $20,223.00 $87,099.33 $ 1 1 4 ,259.00 $48,385 $ 1 55,071 .00 

Variable cost per $95.50 $226.06 $96 . 9 1  $ 1 43.98 $ 1 29.63 $ 1 ,262. 3 1  $275.92 $51 2.01 $547.95 

flight hour 
Fixed costs $ 1 5,421 .00 $8,928.00 $79,2 1 3.00 $35,803.00 $34,679.00 $ 1 40,27 1 .28 $ 1 96,605.00 $ 1 66,043.00 $280,251 .00 

F ixed costs per $77. 1 1  $4 1 3.33 $ 1 48.48 $ 1 65.52 $222.30 $2,032.92 $474.78 $ 1 ,757.07 $990.29 

fliqht hour 
Funding $7,533.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,928.00 $0.00 $ 1 9 ,458.00 $ 1 0, 962.00 $50,343.00 

allocated to 
reserve accounts 
Reserve account $37.67 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38.00 $0.00 $46.99 $ 1 1 6 .00 $ 1 77.89 

allocation per 
hour 
Total costs, $42,054.00 $ 1 3,81 1 .00 $ 1 30,91 2.00 $66,946.00 $60,830.00 $227, 370.61 $330,322.00 $225,390 $485,665.00 

excluding 
degreciation 



North 
Dakota 

Aeronautics Attorney 
Commission General 

1 965 

$42,054.00 

$21 0.27 

Game and 
Fish 

2006 
2006 

H ighway 
Patrol 

2007 

$80 , 1 35.00 

$51 3.69 

NDSU rtment of Trans 

1 975 1 998 
King Air 

8200 
$ 1 ,7 1 6. 1 3  

The amounts listed are based o n  estimated 

agency did not calculate depreciation on the airplane because the agency estimates the residual value of the aircraft to be greater than the 
purchase price. 

airplane was purchased in October 2010.  The amount shown does not reflect a full year of depreciation.  

Airplane Hangar Facil ities 
The committee learned some state-owned airplanes are housed in private hangars whi le other state-owned 

airplanes share hangar space. The committee received the following information regarding airplane hangars util ized 
by state agencies: 

North Dakota 
Aeronautics Attorney Game and Fish Highway Department of Department of 
Commission General Department Patrol NDSU Transportation Transportation 

Location of Bismarck Airport Bismarck Airport Bismarck Airport Bismarck Airport Fargo Airport Bismarck Airport Bismarck Airport 
hangar 
Hangar owner Bismarck Aero Bismarck Aero Fargo Jet Center Fargo Jet Center Fargo Jet Center City of Bismarck Bismarck Aero 

Center Center Center 
Private or shared Shared Shared Shared2 Shared2 Shared Private Shared 
hangar 
Airplane(s) 2008 Cessna 206 1 965 Beechcraft 2006 American 2007 Cessna 206 1 991  Beechcraft 1 998 Beechcraft 1 975 Cessna 
stored in hangar Baron Champion Scout, King Air B200 King Air B200, Skymaster 

2006 Cessna 1 82 1 977 Piper 
Cheyenne 

Fiscal year 201 1 $4,7301 $3,260 $7,275 $5,820 $ 1 1 ,940 $25,003 $5,000 
lease costs 
Fiscal year 201 1 6,544 2 , 1 1 9  
utilities cost 
Total fiscal year $4,730 $3,260 $1 3 ,819 $7,939 $1 1 ,940 $25,003 $5,000 
201 1 costs 
1The North Dakota Aeronautics Commission obtained the Cessna 206 airplane in September 201 1 .  The amount shown is an estimate based on the 

hangar lease rate for the previous airplane owned by the commission. 
2The Game and Fish Department and Highway Patrol jointly lease an aircraft hangar which is used to store airplanes owned by each agency. The 

hangar is also used by the Game and Fish Department piloUmechanic to perform maintenance on the department's aircraft. 

Recommendations 
The committee recommends House Bi l l  No.  1 033 to 

create a central aircraft management system for state
owned or state-leased aircraft operated by executive 

, branch state agencies, excluding the office of the 
Adjutant General and entities under the control of the 
State Board of H igher Education. The bill requires the 
Director of the Department of Transportation to operate 
the central aircraft management system and creates a 
special fund in  the state treasury for proceeds related to 
the operation of the system. The bil l also requires the 

agencies subject to the central management system to 
transfer ownership of all state-owned aircraft to the 
Department of Transportation on July 1 ,  201 3 .  

STUDY OF OPTIONS TO RELOCATE THE 
HIGHWAY PATROL TRAINING ACADEMY 

The Government Services Committee was assigned 
a study of options for relocating the Highway Patrol 
training academy pursuant to Section 5 of 201 1 House 
Bi l l  No. 1 01 1 .  The study was to include a review of 
options for relocating the training academy, options for 



From: Larry Taborsky, Director, North Dakota Aeronautics Commission 

To: Legislative Committee members 

Re: HB 1033 Proposed state aircraft pool 

Good morning, M r. Chairman and members of the comm ittee. My name is Larry Taborsky, and my title 

is Director of the North Dakota Aeronautics Commission. Thank you for the chance to speak today o n  

such an im portant topic. I am strongly opposed to having o u r  agency a ircraft put into a pool run by 

another agency. There are safety, efficiency, and financial concerns with this proposal .  I submit the 

fol lowing additional information: 

-Ou r  Cessna 206 is a util ity a ircraft. While not as comfortable or  capable as some a ircraft, it is un iquely 

su ited to increase the effectiveness of the comm ission. It isn't wel l  su ited for an a ircraft pool for 

passenger use. At no additional cost to the state, it is avai lable for emergencies as a state asset. 

-The aircraft was purchased with special funds and federal fu nds, enabl ing the comm ission to condu ct 

safety inspections of the state's 89 airports, and the FAA pays the com mission $650 per a irport 

inspection. It is my u nderstanding that, since the Aeronautics Commission purchased this aircraft with 

appropriated special fu nds, the special fund wil l  have to be reimbu rsed for the purchase cost of 

$585,000 if the a i rcraft was transferred to another agency. 

-The cost of insurance for our ai rcraft will increase. Aeronautics receives a d iscounted pol icy because of 

the insurance on the two state-owned airports p lus our  m odern, simple a ircraft. The greater the m ix of 

a ircraft types and the older the aircraft to be insured, the fewer u nder-writers who are wil l ing to take o n  

the pol icy, a n d  the higher the cost to cover the ai rcraft. 

-There is nothing to be gained by adding an additional layer of government (the system isn't broken. )  

The previous a i rcraft, a Cessna Skymaster, was operated effectively for 30 years. This airplane i s  ru n 

well with no additional staffing. 

- The Aeronautics a i rcraft is used sufficiently to be cost-effective. The annual  use ( 150 hrs/year) keeps 

costs down ($242/hr, including replacement costs.) 

- The loss of oversight by the agency and pilots who fly the aircraft is a safety concern. The loss of d i rect 

control of the a i rcraft by its only user means that some aspects of its operation wil l  be handled by 

someone else. The pi lot-in-command has greater confidence and awareness from being in charge of a l l  

aspects of an a ircraft o peration, increasing the safety. 

-For FAA and legal pu rposes, the operational control of the a ircraft becomes more ambiguous (who 

d ispatches the a ircraft and certifies that it is a i rworthy.) 

-At the Aeronautics Comm ission, aircraft decisions are made by a chain of command that u nderstands 

aviation. 



In summary, there is nothing to be gained and quite a bit to be lost if our aircraft is put in a pool. If the 

aircraft pool concept continues, I respectful ly request that the Aeronautics Commission aircraft be 

exclu ded. 



• 

• 

• 

Testimony - House Bi l l 1 033 
House Transportation Committee 

S u bmitted by 
James P rochnia k, N D H P  

January 1 0 , 20 1 3  

Good m orning,  M r. Chairman, and members of the House Transportat ion Committee. M y  n a m e  
is  James Prochniak, Superintendent o f  t h e  North Dakota Highway Patro l .  I 'm here today to 
testify against H B  1 033, Central Aircraft Management System .  

A s  t h e  Central Aircraft Management d iscussions m oved through i nterim com mittee, I provided 
test imony about the use of the N DHP's a ircraft. Specifically, I shared how the primary fun ct ion  
of  our a ircraft is to provide in it ial, quick response to  state, county, and local public safety 
e ntities. We provide assistance i n  crim inal apprehension,  search and rescue operations, traffic 
related deta i ls ,  and Amber a lert detai ls.  I a lso included photos (which you can view today) a bout 
the special ized equipment we have instal led in  this a i rcraft. 

As the i nterim committee learned abo ut the use and q uick accessibi l ity needed for our a i rcraft, 
an exception was considered for our agency. 

Upon reading the final draft version,  sole use of the a ircraft is  addressed. However, Sect ion 2 of 
the draft requ i res the title to be transferred which vio lates our  Equitable Working Agreement  and 
Certification with the Department of Justice and the Department of Treasury. This agreem e nt 
was entered into with our  Federal partners as the a ircraft was purchased through Federal a sset 
forfeiture funds and Homeland Security funds. 

The Equitable Working Ag reement m ust be signed annual ly by the g overnor and 
superintendent. As indicated in  copies I 've shared with you, Sections 3, 4 ,  and 5 stipulate the 
shared a sset shal l  be used for law enforcement purposes. Furtherm ore, any transfer m u st be 
verified through the Department of Justice or Treasury and the receiving agency m ust be a 
federal s haring program recipient and have a current Equitable Sharing Agreement and 
Certification o n  file . Lastly, fai lure to comply with this agreement subjects the recipient agency to 
sanct ions.  

I 've a lways said that law enforcement is  too large of a task for any one agency to handle. 
Jeopardizing our relationship with our  federal partners under DOJ (FBI , DEA, ATF,  and I C E )  is 
not an option that serves in  the best interest of our agency or our citizens .  

I respectfu l ly request the H ighway Patrol be removed from the lang uage of this b i l l .  

This concludes my testimony. I 'd be g lad to answer any questions . 
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E q u ita ble Shari ng 

A g reement a n d  

Certification 

OMB Number 1 1 23-001 1 
Expires 7-3 1-201 1 

0 Police Department 0 Sheriff's Office QTask Force (Co m plete Table A, page 2) 
0 District Attorney 0 Other (specify) Highway Patrol 

Agen cy Name: North Dakota Highway Patrol 

NCJC/ORI/Tracking N u mber: NDNHPOOOO -----------------------------------------------
Street Address : 600 E Boulevard Avenue Dept 504 

City: Bismarck State: ND Zip : 58505 

Contact Na m e :  Captain David A .  Kleppe 

C ontact Phone: 70 1 -328-4346 Conta ct Fax: 70 1 -328- 1 7 1 7  ---------------------------
Contact ewmai l :  dk.leppe@nd .gov 

--���--�-----------------------------------------------

0 
0 

0 
0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

New Participant: 

Existing Participant: 

Read the Equitable Sharing Agreement (page - 1 )  and sign the Affidavit (page -1 ) 
Complete the Annual Certification Report, read the Equitable Sharing Agreement 
( page -1 ), and sign the Affidavit (page - 1 )  

Change in Administration: Changes to the Agency head and/or Governing Body head. Read the Equitable 
Sharing Agreement (page -1 ) and sign the Affidavit (page -1  ). 

Amended Form : Revise the Annual Certification Report, read the Eq u itable Shari ng Agreeme nt (page 
- 1 ) , and sign the Affidavit (page -1 ) .  

A n n ual  Certification Report 

Summary of Equitable Sharing Activity 

Fiscal Year End (mmlddlyyyy) 06/30/2008 

Beginning Equitable Sharing Fund Balance (must match 
Ending Equitable Sharing Fund Balance from prior FY) 

Federal Sharing Funds Received 

Federal Sharing Funds Received from Other Law Enforcement 
Agencies and Task Forces (complete Table B, page - 1 )  
Other Income 

Interest Income Accrued 

(0 check if non-interest-bearing account) 

Total Equitable Sharing Funds (total of lines 1 - 5) 

Federal Sharing Funds Spent (total of lines a - n  below) 

Ending Balance (subtract line 7 from l ine 6) 

Page 1 of S 

Justice 

Funds 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

Treasury 

Funds 

$0.00 

$344,695 .00 

$344,695.00 

$344,695 .00 

$0 .00 

August 2008 
Version 1 .2 



Summary of Shared Monies Spent 

a Total spent on salaries for new, temporary, not-to-exceed 

one year, employees 

b Total spent on overtime 

c Total spent on informant and "buy money" 

d T olaf spent on travel and training 

e Total spent on communications and computers 

f Total spent on firearms and weapons 

g Total spent on body armor and protective gear 

h Total spent on electronic surveillance equipment 

j Total spent on building and improvements 

j T1 spent on other law enforcement expenses (complete 
T; ble C ,  page - 1 )  

k 
Total transfers to other state and local law enforcement 
agencies (complete Table D, page - 1 )  

I T1 1 5% Expenditures in Support of Community-based 
nllJ!:IICIIII;:, (complete Table E, page -1 ) 

m 
Total 25% Windfall Transfers to Other Government Agencies 
(complete Table F, page -1)  

n Total spent on matching grants (complete Table G, page - 1 )  

Miscellaneous Data 

0 Agency's budget for current fiscal year 

p Jurisdiction's budget for current fiscal year 

q Appraised Value of Other Assets Received 

able A: Members of Task Force 

Agency Name Address 

·able B: Equitable Sharing Funds Received from other Agenc ies 

Transferrin g Agency Name, City ,  and State 

Agency Name 

Agency Address 

Total 

Page 2 of. S 

Justice Funds Treas ury Funds 

$344,695 .00 

$0.00 $344,695.00 

$ 1 9,627,000.00 

$ 1 9,627,000.00 

I $0.00 

Justice Funds Treasury Funds 

August 2008 
Version 1.2 
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•le C: Other Law Enforcement Expenses 

Description of Expense 

Purchase of Aircraft 

Table D: Equitable Sharing Funds Transferred to Other Agencies 

Receiving Agency Name, City, and State 

Agency Name 

Agency Address 

Table E :  1 5% Expenditures in Support of Community-based Programs 

Recipient 

fable F: 25% Windfall Transfers to Other Government Agencies 

Recipient 

Matching Grant Name 

·ab l e  H: C ivil Rights C ases 

Name of Case Type of Discrimination Alleged 

D Race D. Color D 

D Disability 0 Age D 

Pape1work Reduction Act Notice 

Justice Funds Treasury Funds 

$344,695.00 

Justice F unds Treasury Funds 

Justice Funds Treasury Funds 

Justice Funds Treasury Funds 

Justice Funds Treasury Funds 

Status 

National D Gender 
Origin 0 Settled 

Other 
0 Pending 

• 

Under the Paperwork Reduction Act, a person is not required to respond to a co l lection of information unless i t  
displays a valid O M B  control number. W e  try to create accurate and easily understood fom1s that impose the least 

possible burden on you to complete. The estimated average time to complete this fonn is 30 m in utes. I f  you h ave 
comments regarding the accuracy of this estimate, or suggestions for mak ing this fom1 simpler, please write to the 

Asset Forfeiture and Money Laundering Section, Program Unit, 1 400 New York Avenue, N . W.,  Second Floor, 
Washington, DC 20005 .  

Page 3 of 5  August 2008 
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Equ itable S haring Ag ree ment 

This Federal Equitable Sharing Agreement, entered into among ( 1 )  the Federal Government, (2) the above-stated law 
enforcement agency ("Agency"), and (3) the governing body, sets forth the requirements for participation in the 
federal equitable sharing program and the restrictions upon the use of federally forfeited cash, property, proceeds, 
and any i nterest earned thereon, which are equitably shared with participating law enforcement agencies. By its 
signatures, the Agency agrees that it will be bound by the statutes and guidelines that regulate shared assets and the 
fol lowing requirements for participation in the federal equitable sharing program. Receipt of the signed Equitable 
Sharing Agreement and Certification (this "Document") is a prerequisite to receiving any equitably shared cash, 
property, or proceeds. 

1 .  Submission. This Document must be submitted to aca.submit@usdoj.gov within 60 days of the end o f  the 
Agency's fiscal year. This Document must be submitted electronically with the Affidavit/Signature page (page - 1 )  
submitted b y  fax. This will constitute submission t o  the Department o f  Justice and the Department o f  Treasury. 

2. Signatories. This agreement must be signed by the head of the Agency and the head of the governing body. 
Examples o f  Agency heads include police chief, sheriff, director, commissioner, superintendent, administrator, 
chairperson, secretary, city attorney, county attorney, district attorney, prosecuting attorney, state attorney, 
commonwealth attorney, and attorney generaL Examples of governing body heads include city manager, mayor, city 
council chairperson, county executive, county council chairperson, director, secretary, administrator, commissioner, 
and governor. 

3. Uses. Any shared asset shall be used for law enforcement purposes i n  accordance with the statutes and 
g uidelines t h at govern the federal equitable sharing program as set forth in the current edition of the Department of 
Justice's Guide to Equitable Sharing (Justice Guide). and the Department of the Treasury's Guide to Equitable 
Sharing for Foreign Countries and Federal, State, and Local Law Enforcement Agencies (Treasury Guide). 

4. Transfers. Before the Agency transfers cash, property, or proceeds to other state or local law enforcement 
agencies, it must first verify with the Department of Justice o r  the Department of Treasury. depending on the source 
of the funds,  that the receiving agency is a federal equitable sharing program participant and has a current Equitable 
Sharing Agreement and Certification on tile. 

5. I ntern a l  Controls. The Agency agrees to account separately for federal equitable sharing funds received from 
the Department of Justice and the Department of the Treasury. Funds from state and local forfeitures and other 
sources must not be commingled with federal equitable sharing funds. The Agency shall establish a separate 
revenue account or accounting code for state. local. Department of Justice, and Department of the Treasury forfeiture 
funds. Interest income generated must be accounted for in the appropriate federal forfeiture fund account. 

The Agency agrees that such accounting will be subject to the standard accounting requirements and practices 
employed for other public monies as supplemented by requirements set forth in t h e  current edition of the Justice 
Guide and the Treasury Guide. 

The misuse or misapplication of shared resources or the supplantation of existing resources with shared assets is 
prohibited. Failure to comply with any provision of this agreement shall subject the recipient agency to the sanctions 
stipulated in the current edition of the Justice or Treasury Guides, depending on the source of the funds/property. 

6. Aud it Report. Audits will be conducted as provided by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1 996 and OMS 
Circular A-1 33. The Department of Justice and Department of the Treasury reserve the right to conduct periodic 
random audits. 

Page 4 of S August 2008 
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Affidavi-t 

Under penalty o f  perjury, the undersigned officials certify that they have read and understand their obligations under the 

Equitable Sharing Agreement and that the information submitted in conjunction with this Document is an accurate 
accounting of funds received and spent by the Agency under the Justice and/or Treasury Guides during the reporting period 
and that the recipient Agency is in compliance with the National Code of Professional Conduct for Asset Forfeiture. 

The undersigned certify that the recipient agency is in compliance with the nondiscrimination requirements of the following 
laws and their Department of Justice implementing regulations: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d e t  
seq.), Title I X  o f  the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1 681 et seq.), Section 504 o f  the Rehabilitation Act o f  1 973 
(29 U.S.C. § 794), and the Age Discrimination Act of 1 975 (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq .), which prohibit discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, national origin, disability, or age in any federally assisted program or activity, or on the basis of sex in  any 
federally assisted education program or activity. 

D u ring the past fiscal year, has the Agency been part of any proceed ings 
a lleg ing d iscrimination by the Agency? 0 Yes 0 No 

If you a nswered yes, complete Ta ble H. Please d isclose ( 1 )  all  p roceedings 
pen d i n g  before any court or administrative agency ,  (2)  any nondiscrimination 
laws the Agency has been found in violation of, and (3) any settlement 
a g reements the Agency has entered into d uring the last fiscal year . 

Agency Head Governing Body Head 

Signature: 

Name: Mark A. Nelson 

Title: Superintendent 

Date: 8 / 25 / 08 Date: 8 / 2 5 / 08 

F i nal Instructi o n s :  

Step 1 :  S a v e  th is fi le using the two b uttons below and e-mail  the saved XML file as a n  attac h ment 
to aca.s u b m it@usdoj .gov. 

Step 2: Fax a s i gned copy of TH IS PAGE ONLY to (202) 61 6-1 344. 

Note : The Age n cy will n ot be in compliance u ntil the e-mail  and the fax of this page a re received. 

. 
·; . . 

.·. 
-

. � . . ·. . 
. 
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Eq u itable Sharing 

Ag reem ent and 

Certification 

Expires 9-30-20 1 4  

0 Police Department 0 Sheriffs Office 0 Task Force (Complete Table A, page2) 
0 Prosecutor's Office @ Other (specify) _H_i_gh_w_

ay_P_a t_r_ol 
_______ 

_ 

Agency Name: North D akota Highway Patrol 

NCIC/ORI/Tracking Number: I N I D I N I H I P I 0 I 0 I 0 I 0 I , 
Street Address: 600 E Boulevard A venue Dept.  504 

City: Bismarck State: ND Zip: 58505-0240 

Contact: Title: M ajor First: David Last:  Kleppe 
-�----------- ------------------

Contact: Phone: 70 1 -328-4346 E- mail: dkleppe@nd.gov 
-------------------

Same as Preparer: First: D avid Last : Kleppe 
� ------------------------ --�--------------------------

Contact Preparer: Phone: 70 1 -328-4346 E-mail :  dkleppe@nd.gov 

1 

2 

Last F iscal Year End: 06/30/20 1 2  Agency Current Fiscal Year Budget: $23,3 2 5 ,235.00 

0 New P a rticipant: Read the Equ itable Sharing Agreement (page 4) and s ign the Affidavit (page 5) 

@ Existin g  Pa rticipant: 
Complete the Annua l  Certification Report, read the Equ itable Shar ing Agreement ( page 4), 

and sign the Affidavit (page 5) 

0 Amended Form: Revise the A n n ual  Certification Report, read the Equitable Shar ing Ag reement (page 4), 

and sign the Affidavit (page 5). 

A n n ua l  Certification Repo rt 
Summary of Equita ble S haring Activity Justice Funds

1 

1 
Beg i nn ing Equitable Sharing F u n d  Ba lance (must match 

End ing Equ itable Sharing F und Ba lance from prior FY) $2 , 1 57.29 

2 F edera l Sharing Funds Received $0.00 

3 
Federa l Sharing Funds Received from Other Law Enforcement 

Agenc ies a nd Task Forces (complete  Table B, page 2) 

4 Other I ncome 

5 Interest Income Accrued 
Non-Interest Bearing ® 

Interest Bearing 0 

6 Total Equitable Sharing Funds (total of l ines 1 - 5) $2, 1 57.29 

7 Federa l Sharing Funds Spent (tota l of l i nes a - m  below) $0.00 

8 End ing Balance (difference between l ine 7 and l ine  6) $2, 1 57.29 

Justice Agencies are: FBI ,  DEA, ATF, U SPIS, U SDA, DCIS, DSS, and FDA.  

Treasury Agencies are: IRS,  ICE, CBP, USSS,  and USCG. 

Page 1 of 5 

2 
Treasury Funds 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

September 201 1 
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S ummary of Shared Monies Spent J ustice Funds Treasury F u n d s  

a 
Total s pent on sala ries for new, temporary, not-to-exceed 
one year employees Refer to § VI I I.A.2 .a.3 of the Justice Guide 

• 
b Tota l  spent on overtime 

c Tota l  spent on i n formants, "buy money," and rewards 

d Total spent on t ravel and tra in ing 

e Tota l  spent on communications and computers 

f Tota l  spent on weapons and protective gear 

g Total  spent on electronic surveil lance equi pment 

h Tota l  spent on bui ld ings and improvements 

i 
Tota l  t ransfers to other state and local law enforcement 
agencies (complete Table C. pag e  2) 

j Tota l  spent on other law enforcement expenses (complete 
Table D, page 3) 

Total Expenditures in  Support of Community-based Programs · ' ·  :: ·. ' ' '· ' 
k 

.. • . 
(com p l ete Table E, page 3) 

.· . .  , ·. " '  

I 
Tota l  Windfal l  Transfers to Other Government Agencies 
(co mplete Table F, page 3) 

m Tota l  spent on match ing g rants (complete Table G, page 3) 

n Total $0.00 $0.00 • 
0 Did your agency receive non-cash assets? 0 Yes @ No If yes, complete Table H, page 3 .  

Please fi l l  out t h e  following tables, if applicable. 

Table A: Members of Task Force 
Agency N a m e  NCIC/ORI!Tracking N u mber 

Ill I I I I I I I I II 
Table 8: Eq uita b l e  Sharing F u nds Received from other Agencies 

Tota l  the  amount t ransferred to each agency on separate l ines 
Tra n sferr i n g  Agency N ame, City, and State 

Agency Name: J 
NCIC/ORI!frac king Number: I I I I I I I I 

Table C: Equitable Sharing Funds Tra nsferred to Other Agencies 

Total t h e  amo u n t  transferred to each agency on separate l ines 
and State 

J ustice Funds 

I I 101 
Justice Funds 

Agency Name: L---------��==��==��==��==�==:
---------� � 

NCIC/ORI!fracking Number: I L___j 
Page 2 of 5 

Treas ury F u n d s  

I 
Trea sury F u n d s  
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Table 0: Other law Enforcement Expenses • Description of Expense 

II 
Ta ble E: Expenditures in Su pport of Commun ity-based Programs 

Refer to § VI I I .A. l .m and Appendix C of the Justice Guide 

Recipient 

II 
Table F: Windfal l  Transfers to Other Government Agencies 

Refer to § VII I .A. l .n of the Jus tice Guide and pp. 25-26 of the Treasury Guide 

Recipient 

Table G :  Match i n g  Grants 

Refer to § VI I I .A. l .h of the Justice Guide and p.  22 of the Treasury Guide 

Matching Grant Name 

lable H :  Other N o n-Cash Assets Received 

Source 

J u<tice 0 II T'e""'Y 0 

Description of Asset 

Table 1 :  Civil  R ights Cases 

Name of C a s e  

0 Race 

J ustice Funds Tre a s u ry Funds 

II ill II 
Justice Funds 

II 
Justice Funds Treas u ry F u n d s  

ill II 
Justice Funds Treas u ry Funds 

II ill II 

Type of Discrimination Alleged 

0 Color O 
Nationa l jo G d 0 . . en er  

n g t n  

0 Disabi l ity 0 Age 0 Other 

Paperwork Reduction Act Notice 

U nder the  Paperwork Reduction Act, a person i s  not required to respond to a collection of i n formation 
u nless i t  d isplays a val id OMB control n u m ber. We try to create accurate and easily understood forms 
that  i m pose the least possible burden on you t o  complete. The estim a ted average t ime to complet e t h i s  
form is 30 m i n utes. I f  you have comments regarding t h e  accuracy o f  t h i s  estimate, or  suggest i o n s  for 
making t hi s  form simpler, please write to the Asset Forfeiture and Money Laundering Sectio n ,  
Program Operations U n it,  1 400 New York A venue,  N.W.,  Tenth Floor, Washington, D C  20005. 
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Equitable Sharing Agreement • 
Th is  Federa l  E q u ita ble Sharing Agreement, entered i nto among ( 1 )  the Federal Government, (2) the a bove-stated law 
enforcement a g e ncy ("Agency"}, and (3)  the governing body, sets forth the requ i rements for partici pat ion i n  the 

fed era l equita b l e  shari n g  program and the restrictions upon the use of federa l ly forfeited cash, property, p roceeds, 

and any i nterest earned thereon, wh ich a re equitably shared with part ic ipa t i n g  law enforcement agenc ies. By its 
s ignatures, the Agency agrees that it wi l l  be bound by the statutes and g u idel i nes that regulate shared a s sets a n d  t h e  

fol lowin g  requ i rements for part ic ipation in  the federal equ itable sharing program.  Receipt o f  t h e  s igned E q u itable 

Shar ing Agreement a n d  Certification (this  "Document") is a prerequ isite to receiving a ny equitably sha re d  cash,  

property, or  proceeds. 

1 .  Subm ission. This Document must be submitted to aca.submit@usdoj.gov within 60 days of the end of  t h e  

Agency's fiscal  year. This Document must be subm itted electronica l ly with t h e  Affidavit/Signature page (page 5)  
subm itted b y  fax. Th is  wi l l  constitute subm ission t o  the Department o f  Justice and t h e  Department of Treasu ry. 

2. Signatories. T h i s  agreement must be signed by the head of the Agency a n d  the head of the govern i n g  body. 

Exam ples of Agency heads include police ch ief, sheriff, d i rector, commissioner, superintendent, a d m i n istrator, 

chai rperson, secretary, city attorney, county attorney, d istrict attorney, prosecuting attorney, state attorney, 

commonwealth attorney, and attorney genera l .  The govern ing body's head i s  the person who a l locates fun d s  o r  

a p p roves t h e  b u d get for t h e  Agency. Exa m ples o f  governing body heads i nclude city manager, mayor, c ity coun c i l  

chai rperson, cou nty executive, cou nty counc i l  chairperson, d i rector, secreta ry, administrator, comm iss ioner, a n d  

govern or. 

3. Uses. Any s h a red asset shall  be used for law enforcement pu rposes in accorda nce with the statutes a n d  g u id e l i n. 
that govern t h e  federa l  Equitable Sharing Progra m  as set forth in the current edit ion of the Depa rtment of J u st ice's 

Guide to Equitable Sharing for State and Local Law Enforcemen t (Justice Guide), and the Department of the T reasury's 

Guide to Equitable Sharing for Foreign Coun tries and Federal, State, and Local Law Enforcement A gencies (Treasury Guide). 

4. Tra nsfers. Before the Agency transfers cash, property, or proceeds to other state or local law enforcement 

agencies, it must fi rst verify with the Department of Justice or the Department of Treasury, depend i n g  on the source 

of the fu n ds, that the receiving agency is a federal Equitable Sharing Program part ic ipant and has a c u rrent E q u itable 

Shar ing Agreement a n d  Cert ification on fi le. 

5. I ntern a l  Controls. The Agency agrees to account separately for federal equitable sharing fu nds received from t h e  

Depa rtment of J u st ice a n d  the Department o f  t h e  Treasu ry. F u n d s  from state a n d  local forfeitu res and o t h e r  s o u rces 

must n ot be com m i ng led with federal equ itable sharing funds. The Agency shal l  establ ish a separate reven u e  

accou n t  o r  acco u nt i n g  code for state, local, Depa rtment o f  Justice, and Depart ment o f  t h e  Treas u ry forfe it u re fu nds .  

I nterest i ncome g e n e rated must be accounted for in  the appropriate federal forfeitu re fu nd account. 

The Agency ag rees t hat such accou nting wi l l  be subject to the standard accounting req u i rements and practices 

em ployed for ot h e r  public monies as supplemented by req uirements set forth in  the cu rrent ed ition of the Jus tice 

Guide a n d  the Treasury Guide, includ ing the requ i rement in the Justice Guide to mainta i n  relevant documents a n d  

records for five years. 

The m is u se or m is a p plication of shared resources or the supplantation of exist i n g  resources with share d  a ssets is  

p ro h i bited.  Fa i l u re to comply with any provis ion of th is  agreement shall  subject the rec ipient agency t o  the sanctions 
st ipu lated in the c urrent edit ion of the Justice or Treasury Guides, depending o n  the source of the fun d s/property. • 
6. Audit Report. A u d its wi l l  be conducted as p rovided by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1 996 a n d  OMB 
Circu l a r  A- 1 33 .  The Depart ment of Justice and Department of the Treasury reserve the r ight t o  conduct periodic 

ra ndom a udits.  
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Affidavit - Existing Pa rticipant 
U nder pena lty of perj u ry, the undersigned officials certify that they have read a n d  u nderstand their obligations under 

t h e  Equitable Sharing Agreement and that the i nformation submitted in conj u n ction with this Document i s  an a ccurate 

accounting of funds received and spent by the Agency under the Justice and/or Treasury Guides during the report ing 

period and that the recipient Agency is in  compl iance with the Nationa l  Code of Professional Conduct for Asset Forfeiture. 

The u ndersig ned certify that the recipient Agency is in  compliance with the nondiscrimination requirements of the 

fol lowing laws and their  Department of Justice implementing reg ulations: Title V I  of the Civil Rights Act of 1 964 (42 U.S. C .  

§ 2000d e t  seq.), Title IX of the Education Amendments of  1 972 (20 U.S. C. § 1 68 1  et seq.), Section 504 of  the Rehabi l itation 

Act of 1 973 (29 U.S.C. § 794), and the Age Discrimination Act of 1 975 (42 U.S.C. § 6 1 0 1  et seq.), which prohibit 

discr imination on the basis of race, color, national origin, disabil ity, or age in any federa l ly  assisted program o r  act ivity, or 

o n  the basis of sex in a ny federal ly  assisted education program or activity. The Agency agrees that it wi l l  comply  with a l l  

federal  statutes and regulations permitting federa l i nvestigators access t o  records a n d  any other sources of i nformation a s  

m a y  b e  necessary t o  determine compliance with civi l rights a n d  other a ppl icable statutes and regu lations. 

During the past fiscal year: (1 ) has any court or administrative agency issued any find ing, 
judgment, or determination that the Agency d iscriminated aga inst any person or group in  
violation of any of the federal  civil rights statutes l isted above; or (2 )  has the Agency e ntered 
into any settlement agreement with respect to any complaint fi led with a court or 
admin istrative agency al leging that the Agency discriminated against any person or group in 
vio lation of any of the federal  civil rights statutes l isted above? O Yes (!) N o  
I f  you answered yes to  the above question, complete Table I 

Agency Head 
See 11 2 on page /:; j/ 
s;gn,twe 

WI t�_;:js Name: J am0P�(K�ak 
Title: Superintendent 

Date: 

r l 

Governi n g  Body Head 
See � 2 on page 

Signature: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Subscribe to Equitable Sharing Wire: 
T h e  Equitable Sharing Wire i s  an electronic newsletter t h a t  �=====================l 
g ives you important, substantive, information regarding 

Equitable Sharing policies, practices, and procedures. 

Final  Instructions: 
Step 1 :  C l i ck to save for you r  record s 
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TESTI M O NY BEFORE T H E  

GOV E R N M E N T  S ERVI C E S  C O M M ITTEE 

ON STUDY OF THE U S E  OF STATE-OWN E D  A I R P LANES 

S U M MARY 

BY DALLAS C ARLSO N ,  D I R E CTOR 

BUREAU OF C R I M I NAL I NVESTI GATION 

O F F I C E  O F  ATTO R N EY G EN E RA L  

DECEM BER 1 5, 201 1 

The Office of Attorney General obtained a T -42A 1 965 Beechcraft Barron i n  1 993 

at  no  cost th rough a Counter Drug Program at the US Department of Defense. 

The in it ial five years of ownership required that this plane be l imited to d rug  

enforcement efforts. After the initia l  five years of  ownership ,  the airp lane became 

ava i lab le for other law enforcement functions. 

• T -42A 1 965 Beechcraft Barron 

• Acqu is ition Date: March 1 993 

• I n itia l Cost: $0 

• Cost per hour to operate: $425 

• Total hours used in the past three years: 1 25 

• Special ized equipment included : Pol ice radio equ ipped with necessary 

programming to communicate with other loca l ,  state, and federa l  law 

enforcement agencies 
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J U STIF ICATION 

The Office of Attorney General  received a T -42A 1 965 Beechcraft Barron in  1 993 

at no cost throug h  a Cou nter Drug Program at the US Department of Defense. 

The in it ial five years of ownership req uired the airplane be used primari ly for d rug 

enfo rcement efforts. After the in it ial five years of ownership,  the airpla n e  became 

available for othe r  law enforcement fu nctions. 

C u rrently, this a i rp lane is used for m issions such as tra nsporting evidence 

(usual ly i n  h igh p riority cases such as homicides where D NA may be needed to 

identify a suspect) , survei l la nce, tra nsporting agents to conduct interviews out of 

state, searches for m issing persons, photog raphy of crime scenes, tra nsporting 

personnel to and from meetings, monitoring flood activity b y  the Department of 

Emergency Services personnel ,  and transporting agents to assist out  of their 

assigned area when time is essential (Gibbs case in Val ley C ity) . 

The common denom inator for most of these uses is t ime. We can not control 

whe n  a serious crime wil l  be com mitted , or when someone will  go miss ing.  In 

these types of cases, time is vita l to a positive outcome, and we are tru ly 

rea ctive. H aving to sched ule the use of an a irplane would h inder some 

investigations,  such as a successfu l search for a lost person , and could  s everely 

h inder our obl igation to provide effective assistance to local law enforce m ent. 
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The avai labi l ity of this aircraft to not only BCI , but to the she riffs and pol ice 

departments in the state , is a valuable law enforcement tool .  Because l o ca l  law 

e nforcement agencies do not have the resou rces some state agencies h ave , the 

state is  rel ied upon to assist with special ized equ ipment such as this a irc raft. By 

statute ,  BCI  is a n  assisting agency, and we need to prepare a nd eq uip o u rse lves 

to meet that responsibil ity. 

Approval to d ispose of or transfer this a ircraft wou ld have to come fro m  the 

Department of Defense Law Enforcement Support Office. 

EQUIPMENT 

The o n ly p iece of special ized equ ipment BCI  has added to th is airp la ne i s  a 

p ol ice rad io.  Th is rad io is equ ipped with the necessa ry programmi ng to be able 

to com m u n icate with a l l  other state, local ,  and federal law enforcement agencies 

in North Dakota . 

P E R  HOUR COST TO OPERATE 

An example of the cost per hour to operate is: A rou nd trip from Bismarck to 

G rand Forks is a two-hour fl ight.  Fuel use is approximately 28 gallons per h our. 

At $6 per gal lon,  this eq uals $336 for the rou nd trip ,  or $168 per hour. Driving  

540 m iles at $ . 5 1  per mi le  wou ld cost $275,  p lus possibly a motel roo m  and 
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add it ional  meal per d iem. Total cost per hour to operate the a i rp lan e  (fuel ,  

i nsu ran ce, hanger rental ,  annual  inspection/repairs) is $425 per hour. 

USEAGE 

This  plane has been used a total of 1 25 hours by Attorney General staff in the 

past three years .  (NOTE: The a i rcraft was out of service for five m onths for 

repa ir after a bird strike.) 
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UN ITED STATES OF AME R ICA 
DEPA R T M E N T  O F  T R A NSPORTATI ON ""''"L •v••"•" "•"'""'"•"•• 

AI RC RAFT B I L L  O F  SAL E  
FO R A N D  I N  C O N S I D ERATION O F $ TH E 
U N D E R S I G N E D  OWN E R (S) OF T H E  FULL L E G A L  
A N D  B E N E F I C I A L  TITLE O F  THE A I R C R A FT 
C R I B E D  AS F O LLOWS: 

UNITED STATES N REGISTRATION NUMBER AlR���F��ANU FAC�fRtERB& MODEL 
6 �echcra larro n  AIRCRAFT SERIAL No. 

65-12723 

DES· 

DOES T H I S  3rd DAY O F  May 1 9 93 
H E R EBY SELL, G RANT, T R A N S F E R  A N D  

( ( ( 

FORM APPROVED 

OMS NO. 2120·0042 

DEL.I V E R  AL.L. R I G HTS, TITLE, A N D I N T E R ESTS Do Not Write In This Bloc><. 
I N  A N D  TO SUCH A I RC R A FT U NTO: FOR FAA USE ONLY 

!NA M E  A N D  A D D R ESS 
(IP JNDlVIDUAL(sJ , C:.IVC LAST NAM E ,  JPIRST HAM il ,  AND MIOOL.S: INITIAL.) 

North Da kota Atto rney Gen e ra 1 '  s Offi ce/ 
a: B u re a u  o f  Cri m i n a l  I nv e s ti ga ti o n  ( BC I ) 
w en 
<t 
::r: (.) 
a: 
::> Q.. 

D EALE R C E RTI FICATE N U M B E R  

A N D  TO EXECUTO RS, A D M I N I S T R ATORS, A N D  ASS I G N S  TO HAVE A N D  TO H O L. D  
S I N G U L.AR L.Y T H E  S A I D  A I R C R A FT F O R EV E R ,  AN D W A R RANTS THE TITLE T H E R E O F .  

I N  TESTI M O N Y  WHE R EO F  H A V E  SET H A N D  A N D sEAt.. THis 3 oAY oF MaJ9 93  
N A M E  (S) O F  SELLE R S I G N ATU R E  (S) TI TL.E 

(TYPitD OR PRINT&D) { I N  I N K )  ( t F  B; X I!: C UTI£.0 ( T Y P IE D  OR P'RINT&: D )  
P' O R  CQ•OW N !!: R SH ffll' o A L L  MUST 

S I G N . )  

a: w ...1 ...1 w en 

AC·KNOWLECG M E NT (NOT R II Q U J R K D  F O R  P U R P O S II: S  O P"  F AA R E C O R D I N G :  HQWIEV II: R t  MAY ae R IE O U I R I!t O  

B Y  S..O C A t.. l,. A W  F O R V A LIDITY 0 ... T.H I: I N S T R U M E N T . )  

ORIGINAL: TO FAA 
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*U . S .  GPO : 1988-5 63-204 

FORM APPROVED 
OMB NO. 2120-0029 
EXP. DATE 10/31184 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA DEPARTMENT O F  TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION-MIKE MONRONEY AERONAUTICAL CENTER 

AIRCRAFt REGISTRATION APPLICATION CERT. ISSUE DATE 
UNITED STATES N REGISTRATION NUMBER 

AIRCRAFT MANUFACTURER & MODEL 

1965 Beechc ra ft Ba rro n 
AIRCRAFT SERIAL No. 

65-12723 FOR FAA USE ONLY 
TYPE OF REGISTRATION (Check one box) 

0 1. Individual 0 2. Partnership 0 3. Cofporation 0 4. Co-owner �5. Gov·t. 0 8. Foreign.owned 
Corporation 

NAME OF APPLICANT (Person(s) shown on evidence of ownership. If individual. give last name, first name, and 
middle initial.) 

e North Dakota Atto rney Gen e ra l ' s  Offi ce/ 
B u reau o f  Cri mi na l  I nv e s t i gati o n  ( BC I ) 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: ( 7 0 1 ) 2 2 1 - 6 180 
ADDRESS (Permanent mailing address for first applicant listed.) 

Number and street: P . O .  Box 1054 
Rural Route: P.O. Box: 
CITY STATE ZIP CODE 

B i sma rc k North Dakota 58502 
0 CHECK HERE IF YOU ARE ONLY REPORTING A CHANGE O F  ADDRESS 

ATTENTION! Read the following statement before signing this application. 

A false or dishonest answer to any question in this application may be grounds for punishment by fine and I or 
imorisonment (U.S. Code, Title 1 8. Sec. 1001). e . 

CERTI FICATION, 
1/WE CERTIFY: 

(1 )  That the above aircraft is owned by the undersigned applicant, who is a citizen (including corporations) 
of the United States. 

(For voting trust, give name of trustee: 

CHECK QNE A§! APPROPRIATE; 

a. 0 A resident alien, with alien registration (Form 1·151 or Form 1·551) No. 

b. 0 A foreign-owned corporation organized and doing business under the laws of (st�te or possession) 
• and said aircraft is based and primarily used in the United Stales. Records 

ol lllght hours are available lor inspection at 

(2) That the aircraft is not registered under the laws ol any foreign country; and (3) That legal evidence of ownership is attached or has been filed with the Federal Aviation Administration. 

NOTE: If executed for co-ownership all applicants must sign. Use reverse side if necessary. 

TYPE OR PAINT NAME BELOW SIGNATURE " 
TITLE DATE 

f!l l- . 

), or: 

�f�-� � rn � D i rector 05/03/93 :> z  
u.. ::= :z  o z -
}- 0 0  
� � !M  
0.. () (!)  
J: :iiii 
u a.. w i:j � lll 

iSIGNATURE � 
SIGNATURE 

TITLE DATE 

TITLE DATE 

NOTE: Pending receipt of the Certificate of Aircraft Registration. the aircraft' may be operated for a period not 
in excess of 90 days, during which time the PINK copy of this application must be carried in the air· 
craft. 

. . AC FORM 8050 1 (1 ·83) (0052 00-628-9005) 

... . 

f 



IN REPLY 
REFER TO J-372 

·················----- · · ·- - - - _ _ _  --------- - · · - ______ ___ B.CtEilE.COP._Y. _ _ _  - �----· .. 

IF THIS MESSAGE IS GREEN 
PlEASE RETURN THIS PAPERWOf 

D E F E N S E  L O G I S T I C S  A G E N C Y TO BCI INFORMATION PROCESS IN  
H E A D Q U A RT E R S  

8725 J O H N  J .  K I N G MA N  R O A D  

FORT B E LVO I R ,  VI R G I N I A 22060-6 2 2 1 

DEC 1 6 2005 

MEMORANDUM FOR EXCESS PROPERTY PROGRAM STATE. COORDINATORS AND 
LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES (LEAs) 

SUBJECT: Policy and Procedure for the Sale or Trade of Aircraft or Aircraft Parts Received 
Under Title 1 0  USC, Sedion 2576a, Excess personal property; sale or donation for 
law enforcement activities 

l .  Purpose: To provide policy and procedures for the Defense Logistics Agency (DLA) Law 
Enforcement Support Office (LESO) to approve or disapprove the sale or trade of aircraft or 
aircraft parts received by LEAs on or before September 30, 1 996. This Memorandum 
supersedes the prior Memorandum "Criteria for the Sale or Trade of Aircraft or Aircraft Parts 
Received through the 1 208 Program," d ated April 1 5, 2005. 

2 .  Scope: This policy applies t o  all Federal , State and Local LEAs that were enrolled in the 
1 208 Program and are now enrolled in the 1 033 Program. 

3 .  Background: The excess personal property program for law enforcement activities was 
established by Section 1 208 of the National Defense Authorization Act for 1 990-91 and 
codified at Title w· usC, SeGtion 2576a. It was amended in 1 996. Section 2576a now 
authorizes the transfer of excess Department of Defense (DOD) personal property to federal 
and state agencies for use in counter-drug activities and counter-terrorism activities. The 
excess personal property program initially was operated by Regional Logistical Support 

. Offices before being centralized at the DLA Headquarters, Fort B elvoir, Virginia in 
June 1 995 . 

5 .  Procedures: The State Coordinator must ensure compliance with the following procedures 
when requesting sale, trade or transfer of aircraft or aircraft parts to any recipients other than 
another LEA, DOD Agency or Entity: 

A. The prospective buyer or trade recipient is responsible for completing the DLA Form 
1 822 (End User Certificate), providing a copy of the recipient's drivers license and 

Fedeml R&eycfing Program G Printed on Recycled Paper 



-'! _..,...,... _.;...,.. '-• -�:.... ".: ..,� ....... -�...,._.,; ... , ·""'···-·: .. ·-·. ,. .... -·=---�-· ----·-·=-·--�----- �----.... .......... ;_., ----··· ...... -�-- ·----------·----· -·-----·--·. -·· ..... -. -

submitting it to the LEA. If the DLA Form 1 82 2  is completed on behalf of a 
· corporation or business, the person executing the DLA 1 822 must submit a copy of 

the authorization to s ign documents on behalf of the business or corporation with the 
completed form. The DLA Form 1 822 must be completed with all requested 
information, legJble. Instructions on how to complete the form are located at 
https://demi l .osd.mil .  

B. The LEA submits a written request endorsed by the Chief Executive Official to the 
S tate Coordinator. The written request includes : 

1 .  The DLA Form 1 822 with a copy of the recipient's drivers license and 
authority to sign for the corporation or business when appropriate. 

2 .  The proposed disposition of the the aircraft o r  aircraft parts (i.e. sale, auction 
or trade). 

3 .  Statement o f  flight hours and maintenance for the duration o f  the LEA 
possession (if applicable). 

4. Status of the aircraft (whether it is flyable or non-flyable, if applicable) 
5 .  Photographs o f  the aircraft - interior and exterior. 

C. The State Coordinator recommends in writing approval or disapproval of the 
proposed sale, auction or trade transaction. 

D. The State Coordinator is responsible for collecting all required documentation, 
including but not limited to the completed DLA Form 1 822, Chief Executive 
Official's endorsement, State Coordinator's written recommendation and submission 
of the complete packet to the LESO. 

E. The LESO will send the DLA Form 1 822, copy of the LEAs request and a copy o f  the 
recipient's drivers license to the Trade Security Controls Assessment Office 
(TSCAO) for an assessment of the prospective buyer or trade recipient. 

1 .  Key factors in the TSCAO assessment are whether the prospective buyer or 
trade recipient. is  a U.S. Citizen, a Legal US. Resident or a company 
incorporated to do business in · the U.S. ;  the subject of an indictment for or 
conviction for violating any U.S. criminal laws governing export of Munitions 
List Items and Commerce Control List Items (which includes aircraft and 
aircraft parts) are ineligible to contract with or receive a license or other 
approval from any agency of the U.S. Government 

2. The TSCAO assessment is not an approval or disapproval of the sale, auction 
or trade. It can however result in a recommendation to the LESO to 
disapprove the proposed sale or trade based on the legal status of the · 
prospective buyer or trade recipient. 

2 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE B I LL NO. 1 033 

Page 1 ,  after l i ne 1 5, insert: 

"c. The office of attorney general with respect to a ircraft received either by 
federal grant of surplus property or by civil forfeiture as a resu lt of criminal 
activity." 

Renumber according ly 



HOUSE TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 

Testimony on HB 1 033 
Kim Molesworth 

ND Game and Fish Department 
January 1 0, 20 1 3  

I am testifying today in opposition to HB 1 033 .  

This bill requires the ND Game and Fish Department (NDGFD) to  transfer ownership of  our 
aircraft to the Department of Transportation (DOT). The bill also allows the director of DOT to 
enter an agreement with the game and fish department, highway patrol, and aeronautics 
commission regarding the exclusive use of specialized aircraft operated by these agencies. 

The NDGFD owns two aircraft. Both aircraft were purchased with game and fish l icense funds 
and Wildlife and Sport Fish Restoration Program federal funds from the U.S.  Fish and Wildlife 
Service (USFWS). If the bill stays as written, it would be considered a diversion of federal funds 
per 50 CFR 80. 1 0. The attached letter from the USFWS states, " . .  .it is our opinion that transfer 
of ownership and control of the NDGFD owned aircraft to the ND Department of Transportation 
would constitute a diversion of hunting and fishing license revenues per the regulations . . .  This 
would render the NDGFD ineligible for further participation in the benefits of the Pittman
Robertson Wildlife Restoration Act Program and the Dingell-Johnson Sport Fish Restoration Act 
Program . . .  ". See attached letter. 

The department would lose approximately $20 million of federal funds from USFWS per 
biennium which amounts to approximately 37% of our total revenue. 

The NDGFD aircraft are: an American Champion 8GCBC (Scout) and a Ce.ssna T 1 82T. Both 
are used extensively by the NDGFD, but for different purposes. 

American Champion 8GCBC (Scout) 

• The ' Scout' is used for mission specific purposes such as flying big game surveys and 
telemetry work, i .e. ,  locating radio collared animals for research purposes .  It is designed 
to fly slow and low, which is required for survey work. The type of plane used needs to 
have the maneuverability for survey work that larger planes, e.g., Cessna 1 82, do not 
have. It is a special use aircraft which provides the capability for 1 )  short field high 
performance take offs and landings; 2) off airport operations; 3) two place tandem seats 
for best visibility for pilot and biologist; 4) large (tundra) tires for items 1 & 2 as well as 
safety; 5) retractable snow skis for winter operations; and 6) telemetry equipment for 
tracking radio collared wildlife. 

• Survey flights such as those for mule deer and antelope can be difficult to schedule since 
they are time specific from year to year and dependent on weather, e.g., snow on the 



ground, good visibility, and fair wind conditions. There is generally a short window of 
opportunity to schedule the surveys and the entire survey area of the state must be flown 
at the same time of the year. 

Cessna T l 82T 

• The primary role of the Cessna 1 82 is for game and fish enforcement work but also 
serves as support for other law enforcement entities on a statewide basis. Aerial 
surveillance has shown great value in enforcement of game and fish laws as well as other 
enforcement and emergency purposes. The plane is occasionally used as a transport 
when needed for other Game and Fish Department purposes, e.g. flying department staff 
to meetings when driving is less cost effective and time is critical. 

• Availability is critical when missions are ' spur of the moment' and not scheduled. When 
enforcement personnel receive a call to fly a night mission for illegal night hunting they 
need to respond immediately or the opportunity is likely lost. 

• Night flights are a common occurrence and the plane needs to be equipped for this. While 
also an important feature for daytime flying it is even more critical during night flights 
that special equipment on the plane is in place. A traffic avoidance system (Avidyne 
Traffic Advisory System) allows the pilot to focus attention on searching the ground for 
the intended purpose of the flight, e.g., illegal night hunting, while the system provides 
warning when another aircraft approaches too closely. 

• Emergency response for search and rescue, air assistance for criminal escapees, crimes in 
progress, and state/federal disaster emergency responses occur at times that are difficult 
to predict. 

We have a pilot who is also a mechanic and provides a large amount of maintenance on our 
aircraft as part of his job function. We know our flight schedules and can make sure the plane 
overhaul is performed during known down times so it doesn't interfere with flights critical to our 
operations. 

I respectfully request the ND Game and Fish Department be excluded from this bill. 

This concludes my testimony. I'd be happy to answer any questions. 



IN REPLY REFER TO 
FWS/R6/WSFR 

United States Department of the I nterior 

FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE 
Mountain-Prairie Region 

MAI LING A DDRESS: 
Post Office Box 25486 
Denver Federal Center 
Denver, Colorado 80225-0486 

STREET LOCATION : 
1 34 Union Blvd. 
Lakewood, Colorado 80228- 1 807 

Kim Molesworth, Chief 
Administrative Services Division 
Nmth Dakota Game and Fish Department 
1 00 N. Bismarck Expressway 
Bismarck, North Dakota 5 850 1 

Dear Ms. Molesworth : 

This responds to your email dated October 1 6, 20 1 2, requesting our views regarding a draft bill, 
" Relating to the creation of a central aircraft management system for state-owned or state-leased 
aircraft . . .  " (see enclosure). If enacted, the ownership and control ofNorth Dakota Game and 
Fish Department (NDGFD) owned aircraft would be transferred to the North Dakota Department 
of Transportation. 

Wildlife and Sport Fish Restoration Program federal regulations that apply to this situation 
include the following: 

50 CFR 80. 1 0  - "States acting through their fish and wildlife agencies are eligible for 
benefits of the Acts only if they pass and maintain legislation that: 

(c) Requires that revenue from hunting and fishing l icenses be: 

( 1 )  Controlled only by the State fish and wildlife agency; and 

(2) Used only for administration of the State fish and wildlife agency, 
which includes only the functions required to manage the agency and the 
fish- and wildlife-related resources for which the agency has authority 
under State law. " 

50 CFR 80.20 - "Hunting and fishing license revenue includes : 

(b) Real or personal property acquired with license revenue . . .  " 



Kim Molesworth 

50 CFR 80.2 1 - "The Director may declare a State to be in diversion if it violates the 
requirements of § 80 . 1 0  by diverting license revenue from the control of its fish and 
wi ldl ife agency to purposes other than the agency's administration. The State is then 
inel igible to receive benefits under the relevant Act from the date the Director signs the 

· declaration until the State resolves the diversion . . .  " 

Section 2 of the proposed bill - TRANSFER OF STATE-OWNED OR STATE-LEASED 
AIRCRAFT - states:  "The title or other documents representing ownership of aircraft owned or 
leased by a state agency subject to chapter 2-05 . 1  must be transferred to the director of the 
department of transportation on July 1 ,  20 1 3 ." 

2 

I t  is our understanding that the NGFGD purchased the two aircrafts with license revenues. If so 
and the bill became law, it is our opinion that transfer of ownership and control of the NDGFD
owned aircraft to the North Dakota Department of Transportation would constitute a diversion of 
hunting and fishing license revenues per the regulations above. This would render the NDGFD 
ineligible for further participation in the benefits of the Pittman-Robertson Wildlife Restoration 
Act Program and the Dingell-Johnson Sport Fish Restoration Act Program until resolution of the 
diversion issue. As you know, NDGFD received over $9 million from the Wildlife and Sport 
Fish Restoration Program in Federal Fiscal Year 20 1 2. 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed bill .  Please keep us informed as to 
its progress and any changes that may be proposed. Also, please contact me or Steve Jose, 
Grants Fiscal Officer, at any time for further assistance with this matter at (303) 236-44 1 1 or 
(303) 236-7394, respectively. 

Enclosure 

Sincerely, 

David McGillivary 
Chief, Wildlife and Sport Fish 
Restoration Program 



Position on Aircraft Pool Bill 

We respectful ly request that the Aircraft Pool Bill passed by the Government Services Committee be 

amended to include the North Dakota Aeronautics Commission ( N DAC) as an excluded entity under 

Section 1, subsection 4 of the Bill and delete any further references to the N DAC in the Bil l .  1 

}.> The N DAC aircraft is used for the furtherance of the Commission's mission: 

"To serve the public by providing economic and technical assistance 

for the aviation community while ensuring the safe and cost effective 

advancement of aviation In North Dakota". 

}.> The N DAC aircraft is used to inspect the 80+ public use a irports in the state in accordance with 

FAA regulations, attend local airport board meetings and is considered a revenue neutral asset 

for the Commission. It is used in the conduct of the NDAC's mission, not as a busi ness for NDAC. 

}.> N DAC's aircraft was purchased with"special funds" that are derived from aviation fuel tax 

collections that were accumulated over several years. This "special  fund" will  need to be 

reimbursed if the N DAC aircraft were to be transferred to another state agency. 

)i> Due to the fact that the aircraft was not purchased with general funds, this proposed 

transaction will create an unnecessary administrative burden by requiring the N DAC to transfer 

its a ircraft to the North Dakota Department ofTransportation ( NDDOT), and N DDOT requesting 

an a ppropriation from general funds to reimburse the N DAC's special fund, grant the NDAC 

exclusive use of the aircraft but require the scheduling of its use through a N DDOT dispatcher 

and pay an hourly fee for its use to be deposited in a replacement fund at N DDOT does not 

appear to accommodate efficiency or a more responsible replacement cost funding method. 

}.> The aircraft and associated expenses are reflected in our budget for tracking purposes for 

maintena nce, and annual training requirements for Federal Aviation Adm i nistration ( FAA) 

compliance regulations. 

)i> NDAC's aircraft does not possess any "specialized equipment" on board, therefore it is not 

considered to be a "special use'� aircraft for the Commission. 

}.> NDAC does not possess an FAA FAR Part 119 or 135 operating certificate to a l low us to fly 

i ndividuals for compensation or hire with our aircraft. 

For the a bove mentioned reasons, the N DAC feels it would be an unnecessary administrative a nd 

financial burden to include the aircraft in the proposed state aircraft pool. N DAC aircraft is used for the 

sole purpose of conducting the Aeronautics' mission on behalf of the state of North Dakota. 

9v:ttd�;� 
North Dakota Aeronautics Commission 

P.O. Box 5020 • Bismarck, NO 58502 • 2301 University Drive, Bldg. 22 • Tel: 701 .328.9650 • Fa x :  701 .328.9656 
E - m a i l :  ndaero@nd.gov • Web: www.nd.gov/ndaero 

7 



1 3 . 0083. 05002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Ruby 

January 1 8 , 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDM ENTS TO HOUSE B ILL NO. 1 033 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "A B I LL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for a n  Act to require 
authorization of the purchase or lease of a ircraft; to provide for the use of department 
of transportation airplanes; to provide for the sale of a irplanes; and to provide an 
a ppropriation.  

BE IT E N ACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEM BLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

S ECTION 1 .  

Authorization t o  purchase or lease aircraft - Legislative assembly or 
budget section approval .  

_$ 

A state agency or other entity of state government may not purchase or lease 
an aircraft without specific authorization from the legislative assem bly or the budget 
section of the legislative management if the legislative assembly is not in  session.  This 
section d oes not apply to a ircraft purchased or leased by the office of the adjutant 
genera l  or the un iversity of North Dakota school of aviation. 

S ECTION 2. 

Use of department of transportation airplanes. 

Upon request. the department of transportation shal l  provide air  transportation 
services to other state agencies. Each agency using air transportation services from 
the department shal l  pay a user charge determined by the department of transportation 
which m ust be based upon the actual cost of operating the a i rcraft. The department 
shal l  give pri ority to requests for air transportation services from the attorney general's 
office when the request is for law enforcement purposes. The d irector of the 
department of transportation shal l  al low employees of other state agencies to operate 
the department's a i rplanes for official pu rposes if the employee i s  properly l icensed and 
tra ined to operate the requested airplane. 

S ECTION 3.  SALE O R  DIS POSAL O F  DEPARTM ENT O F  
TRANSPORTATION AI RPLANES. The director of the depart m e nt of transportation 
shal l  sel l  or  d ispose of the department's 1 977 piper cheyenne a irplane and the 
department's 1 975 cessna skymaster a i rplane. The proceeds from the sale or  d isposal 
of the a i rplanes must be used for replacement airplane purchases as provided in  
section 6 of  this Act. After June 30 ,  201 4 ,  the department may n ot use any funds 
appropriated by the leg islative assembly to maintain or operate the department's 1 977 
piper cheyenne airplane or the department's 1 975 cessna skymaster airplane. 

S ECTION 4. DIS POSAL OF ATTORNEY G E N E RAL'S O FFICE AIRPLAN E .  
The attorney general's office shal l  sell or dispose of  the office's 1 965 beechcraft baron 
airplane. The proceeds from the sale of the airplane must be retai ned by the attorney 
general 's office and used i n  accordance with the agreement entered into by the office 
to obta in  the airplane.  After June 30, 20 1 4 ,  the office may not use any funds 
appropriated by the legislative assembly to maintain or operate the airplane. 

Page No.  1 



S ECTION 5. NORTH DAKOTA STATE U NIVERSITY AIRPLANE. After 
J u ne 30, 2 0 1 4, North Dakota state university may not use any funds appropriated by 
the legislative assembly, including funds from continu ing appro priations authorized by 
the legislative assembly, for the purpose of leasing an airplane.  

SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION - DE PARTM ENT OF TRANSPORTATION -
A IRPLANE REPLAC EMENT. There is appropriated out of any moneys i n  the general  
fund i n  the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $4, 500,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the departme nt of transportation for the 
p u rpose of p urchasing replacement airplanes for the department's airplane fleet, for the 
b iennium beginn ing July 1 ,  201 3 , and ending June 30, 201 5.  The appropriatio n  
provided i n  this section must b e  reduced by  an amount equal t o  the total proceeds 
received from the sale or disposal of department airplanes as provided in section 3 of 
th is  Act. The funding provided in this section is considered a one-time funding item."  

Renumber accordingly 
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G OVERN M E NT SERVICES COMMITTEE 
The Government Services Committee was assigned 

he following responsibi l ities: 
• A study of the use of state-owned ai rplanes 

pursuant to Section 1 3  of 20 1 1  House Bi l l  
No. 1 0 1 2. The study was to include a review of 
ai rplanes owned by state agencies, the 
justification for owning each airplane, the 
frequency of use of each airplane, and the 
feasibi l ity and desirability of requiring state-owned 
ai rplanes to be managed by Fleet Services. The 
study was amended by the Legislative 
Management to exclude state-owned ai rplanes 
operated by the University of North Dakota (UNO) 
School of Aviation. 

• A study of options for relocating the Highway 
Patrol tra in ing academy pursuant to Section 5 of 
201 1 House B i l l  No. 1 01 1 .  The study was to 
include a review of options for relocating the 
training academy, options for relocating the 
emergency operations vehicle training course, 
and options for constructing a H ighway Patrol 
shooting range. 

• Approve any agreements between a North Dakota 
state entity and the state of South Dakota to form 
a bistate authority pursuant to North Dakota 
Century Code Section 54-40-01 .  

The Chairman of the Legislative Management also 
:Jssigned the committee the following budget-related duties: 

1 .  Monitor the status of state revenues and 
expenditures for the 20 1 1 -1 3 biennium. 

2. Receive input from major state agencies 
regarding the status of their budgets and 
changes in federal funds. 

3. Receive information from state agencies 
regarding estimated cost-to-continue items for 
the 201 3-1 5 biennium. 

4. Receive the Ju ly 201 2  revised 201 1 -1 3  biennium 
and the prel iminary 201 3-1 5 biennium general 
fund revenue forecasts. 

5. Review projected revenues, expenditures, and 
fund balances of major state funds. 

6 .  Identify and prioritize potential one-time funding 
items for the 201 3-1 5 biennium. 

7 .  Discuss possible legislative initiatives affecting 
the budget, including initiatives to return excess 
revenues to taxpayers. 

8. Identify key budget issues for the 
20 1 3  leg islative session. 

9. Determine, in consu ltation with the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB),  a sustainable 
level of spending for the 201 3-1 5 biennium. 

1 0. As appropriate, make recommendations to the 
Legislative Management. 

Committee members were Representatives Jeff 
· Delzer (Chairman) ,  Duane DeKrey, Glen Froseth, Ed 
Gruchalla, Matthew M. Klein, Curtiss Kreun, Bob 
Martinson, Lisa Meier, Phi l l ip Mueller, Todd Porter, 
David S .  Rust, Vicky Steiner, Blair Thoreson, Don 
Vigesaa, and Alan Wieland and Senators Ron Carlisle, 

Lonnie J. Laffen, Gary A Lee, David O'Connel l ,  J im 
Roers, and Donald Schaible. 

The committee submitted this report to the Leg islative 
Management at the biennial meeting of the Legislative 
Management in November 201 2. The Legislative 
Management accepted the report for submission to the 
63rd Legislative Assembly. 

STUDY OF THE USE OF 
STATE-OWNED AIRPLANES 

The Government Services Committee was assigned 
a study of the use of state-owned ai rplanes pursuant to 
Section 1 3  of 20 1 1  House Bi l l  No. 1 0 1 2. The study was 
to include a review of airplanes owned by state 
agencies, the justification for owning each a irplane, the 
frequency of use of each airplane, and the feasibi l ity and 
desirabil ity of requir ing state-owned airplanes to be 
managed by Fleet Services. The study was amended by 
the Legislative Management to exclude state-owned 
ai rplanes operated by the UNO School of Aviation. 

Fleet Services 
Section 24-02-03.3 requires the Department of 

Transportation to operate a central vehicle management 
system (Fleet Services) to regulate the operation,  
maintenance, and management of al l  motor vehicles 
owned or leased by the state. Each state agency that 
util izes a vehicle from Fleet Services pays a fee to Fleet 
Services for the cost of the vehicle, including operating 
costs. The fee is based on the estimated costs of 
acqu iring and maintaining the vehicle. Fleet Services 
currently manages approximately 3,200 vehicles. 

Previous Studies 
The 1 98 1 -82 Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review 

Committee studied the util ization of aircraft by state 
agencies and the feasibi l ity of establ ishing a state 
aircraft pool .  The committee adopted a resolution that 
recommended the establishment of a state aircraft pool .  
However, the resolution was not approved by the 
Legislative Assembly in 1 983. 

State-Owned Airplanes 
Excluding the North Dakota University System, five 

state agencies own a total of eight ai rplanes. The table 
below details the ownership of airplanes by state 
agencies, including the purpose of ownership: 

Agency_ Aircraft Purpose 
Department of 1 998 Beechcraft- Passenger 
Transportation Raytheon King Air transportation 
Department of 1 977 Piper Cheyenne Passenger 
Transportation transportation 
Department of 1 975 Cessna Engineering 
Transportation Skymaster photography 
North Dakota 2008 Cessna 206 Airport inspections 
Aeronautics and construction 
Commission 



Aqencv Aircraft Purpose 
Game and Fish 2006 American Wildl ife surveys 
Department Champion Scout 
Game and Fish 2006 Cessna 1 82 Enforcement 
Department 

H ighway Patrol 2007 Cessna 206 Enforcement 
Attorney General 1 965 Beechcraft Baron Enforcement 

The University of North Dakota owns 72 aircraft and 
the UNO Aerospace Foundation owns an additional 
56 aircraft which are used primarily for flight tra in ing 
purposes and occasionally for passenger transportation. 
North Dakota State Un iversity (NDSU) does not own any 
aircraft but leases a King Air 8200 airplane from the 
NDSU Development Foundation for passenger 
transportation purposes. 

Department of Transportation Airplanes 
The committee received information regard ing the 

three airplanes operated by the Department of 
Transportation.  The committee learned the department 
has four  permanent employees to provide air service 
which i ncludes three pi lots and a maintenance manager. 
The department also has a temporary employee to 
provide aircraft schedul ing services and several 
temporary part-time pilots available as needed. The 
following schedule provides information regarding 
aircraft owned by the department: 

Purchase Passenger F l i:Jht Hours 

Ai rcraft Price Capacity 2008 2009 201 0 
1 975 $99,283 One pilot, one 1 42 1 91 403 
Cessna passenger (also 
Skymaster contains 

photography 
equipment) 

1 977 Piper $438,433 Two pilots, five 1 90 1 1 0 1 33 
Cheyenne passengers 

1 998 $3,901 ,377 Two pilots, 288 2 1 6  242 
Beechcraft- seven 
Raytheon passengers 
King Air 

The committee learned the department provides air 
transportation service to several state agencies, 
including the Governor's office. The department charges 
other agencies a fee for providing air transportation 
services. The fees are used to recover costs relating to 
the operation of the a ircraft. The committee received the 
following schedu le detai l ing the current rates charged to 
other agencies for air service: 

Aircraft Rate Per Hour 
1 975 Cessna Skymaster $4 1 3  
1 977 Piper Cheyenne $923 
1 998 Beechcraft-Raytheon King Air $995 

The committee received information regard ing the 
number of Department of Transportation flights during 
state fiscal year 201 1 ,  including the number of 
passengers on the flights and passenger fees collected . 
The following schedule summarizes passenger flights 
util izing the department's passenger airplanes: 

Flight Information - State Fiscal Year 201 1 
(J uly 1 ,  201 0 - June 30, 201 1 )  

1998 
King Air 1 977 p 

8200 C heyE 
Number of trips 1 91 � ·  
Flight hours 276.4 86. 7  
Total passengers 753 1 55 
Total fees collected $374, 1 91 $1 1 1 ,523 
Average fees collected per passenger $496.93 $7 1 9 . 5 1  

H ighway Patrol Ai rplane 
The committee learned the Highway Patrol owns a 

2007 Cessna 206 which is primarily used for search and 
rescue operations, assisting in criminal apprehension,  
traffic-related duties, and AM BER Alert functions. The 
plane was purchased for $429, 000 with approximately 
$35,000 of the funding provided from state sources and 
$394,000 provided from federal asset forfeiture funds. 
The airplane is equ ipped with forward looking infrared 
(FUR) equipment to assist in search missions. 

The following schedule detai ls the fl ight hours of the 
airplane for state fiscal years 2009 through 201 1 :  

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 
2009 201 0 201 1 

Fl ight hours 236 1 43 1 56 

The committee learned the Highway Patrol pilots are 
also ground troopers. The troopers that serve as pi lots 
do not receive any additional pay related to thei r pi lot 
duties. 

Game and Fish Departme nt Airplanes 
The committee received information regard ing 

ai rplanes owned by the Game and Fish Department. 
The department owns a 2006 American Champion Scout 
which is used for research purposes, such as big game 
surveys. The department purchased the airplane for 
$ 1 81 , 1 86.  The department also owns a 
2006 Cessna 1 82 which was purchased for $375,000 
and is used for law enforcement purposes and search 
and rescue missions. 

The following schedule provides information 
regarding the fl ight hours of each department airplane 
for state fiscal years 2009 through 201 1 :  

Game and Fish Department Airplane Fl iqht Hours 
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal 
Year Year Year 
2009 201 0 201 1 

2006 American Champion Scout 437.5 4 1 8 . 6 533 .5 
2006 Cessna 1 82 1 92.3 2 1 9.6 2 1 6.3 

The committee learned the department has a pi lot 
who also performs a i rplane maintenance duties on 
Game and Fish Department airplanes. 

North Dakota Aeronautics Commission A i rplane 
The committee received information regarding 

airplane owned by the North Dakota AeronaL 
Commission. The commission purchased a 

2008 Cessna 206 ai rplane for $560,000 in 
September 201 1 .  The airplane is used primarily for 



airport safety inspections and passenger transportation 
and is estimated to be used 200 flight hours per year. 

The committee learned the current airplane owned by 
the commission was purchased to replace a 
1 980 Cessna Sky master. The 1 980 Cessna Sky master 
was purchased in 1 987 for $83, 500 and was sold in  
201 1 for $1 09 ,600. 

Attorney General's Office Airplane 
The committee received information regarding the 

airplane owned by the Attorney General's office. The 
office owns a 1 965 Beechcraft Baron airplane which has 
two engines and can transport four passengers. The 
airplane is used for transporting evidence, transporting 
law enforcement agents and emergency personnel, 
survei l lance, and for other various purposes. The plane 
has been used for a total of 1 25 hours during the past 
three years. 

The committee learned the Attorney General's office 
obtained the 1 965 Beechcraft Baron airplane at no cost 
through a federal Department of Defense program. 
Permission is needed from the federal government to 
sel l  the airplane, but the state could retain the proceeds 
from the sale. 

North Dakota State U niversity A i rplane 
The committee learned N DSU does not own any 

airplanes but leases a King Air B200 airplane from the 
NDSU Development Foundation. The N DSU . 
Development Foundation purchased the airplane for 
$2 ,348,000 in June 2007. North Dakota State University 
began leasing the airplane in July 2007, and the 
un iversity makes quarterly lease payments of $80,730. 
The lease continues until Ju ly 201 7,  and the university 
can purchase the aircraft for $ 1  at the end of the lease. 

The un iversity uses non-general fund revenues to 
pay for ai rplane operating costs which may consist of 
interest income, indirect cost recoveries, transfers from 
department local funds, and revenues received under 
the North Dakota/Minnesota tuition reciprocity 

agreement. The current insurance policy on the ai rplane 
provides for a l iabi l ity coverage l imit of $ 1 00 mil l ion and 
a physical damage l i mit of $2 mil l ion. The current 
annual premium amount for the insurance policy is 
$1 8 ,395. 

The airplane is used primarily to transport university 
personnel to other University System facil ities located 
across the state. From March 1 ,  201 1 ,  to March 2, 
201 2, 55 percent of the passengers on the university's 
airplane were campus personnel. The remaining 
passengers were nonuniversity personnel, including 
members of the State Board of Higher Education and 
personnel from other institutions. 

The committee learned the university has entered an 
agreement with the Fargo Jet Center to sublease the 
un iversity's airplane at a fee of $660 per hour. The 
agreement provides that the Fargo Jet Center pay fuel 
and other variable costs when using the airplane. From 
November 201 1 through June 201 2, the Fargo Jet 
Center used the airplane 86. 9  hours and provided total 
payments of $57,354 to the university. 

The committee learned the un iversity has its airplane 
for sale. As of August 1 ,  201 2, the payoff amount for the 
remaining loan on the airplane was $1 ,3 1 2,624. The 
committee discussed options to authorize the 
Department of Transportation to purchase the 
un iversity's airplane for use in  a state airplane pool. The 
plane could be used as an additional passenger 
transportation airplane or to replace an older passenger 
airplane owned by the department. 

Airplane Expenses 
The committee learned airplane expenses vary 

significantly between similar airplanes due to the 
intended use of the airplane and airplane fl ight hours. 
Airplane expenses also vary significantly between years 
due to timing of certain expenses, such as major repairs 
or special aircraft uses. The committee reviewed the 
following information regarding state fiscal year 201 1 
expenses of state-owned aircraft: 

Summarv of Fiscal Year 201 1 Airolane Expenses 
North 

Dakota 
Aeronautics Attorney Game and Highway 
Commission General Fish De artment Patrol NDSU Department of Transportation 

2006 
2008 1 965 American 2006 2007 1 991 1 975 1 977 1 998 

Cessna 206 Beech craft Champion Cessna Cessna King Air Cessna Piper King Air 
(Estimated)1 Baron Scout 1 82 206 8200 Skvmaster Cheyenne 8200 

Total flight hours 200.00 2 1 .60 533.50 2 1 6.30 1 56.00 69.00 4 1 4 . 1 0  94.50 283.00 

Variable costs $ 1 9 , 1 00.00 $4,883.00 $51 ,699.00 $31 ' 1 43.00 $20,223.00 $87,099.33 $1 14 ,259.00 $48,385 $ 1 55,071 .00 

Variable cost per $95.50 $226.06 $96.91  $ 1 43.98 $ 1 29.63 $1 ,262.3 1  $275.92 $51 2.01 $547.95 
flight hour 
Fixed costs $ 1 5,421 .00 $8,928.00 $79, 2 1 3.00 $35,803.00 $34,679.00 $ 1 40,27 1 .28 $1 96,605.00 $1 66,043.00 $280,251 .00 

Fixed costs per $77 . 1 1 $41 3. 33 $ 1 48.48 $ 1 65.52 $222.30 $2,032.92 $474.78 $1 ,757.07 $990.29 
flight hour 
Funding $7, 533.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,928.00 $0.00 $1 9,458.00 $1 0,962.00 $50,343.00 
allocated to 
reserve accounts 
Reserve account $37.67 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38.00 $0.00 $46.99 $1 1 6 .00 $1 77.89 
'.lllocation per 
,lOUr 
Total costs, $42,054.00 $ 1 3 ,8 1 1 .00 $ 1 30,91 2.00 $66,946.00 $60,830.00 $227,370.61 $330,322.00 $225,390 $485,665.00 
excluding 
depreciation 



Summary of Fiscal Year 201 1 Airplane Expenses 
North 

Dakota 
Aeronautics Attorney Game and Highway 
Commission General Fish Department Patrol NDSU Department of Transportatior 

2006 
2008 1 965 American 2006 2007 1 991 1 975 1 977 1 998 

Cessna 206 Beechcraft Champion Cessna Cessna King Air Cessna Piper King Air 
(Estimated) 1 Baron Scout 1 82 206 8200 Skymaster Cheyenne 8200 

Total costs per $21 0.27 $639.40 $245.38 $309.51  $389.94 $3,295.23 $797.69 $2,385.08 $ 1 , 7 1 6. 1 3  

hour, excluding 
depreciation 
Depreciation $0.00

2 $4,666.00 $ 1 8 , 1 1 9 .00 $4,687.00
3 $ 1 9,305.00 $1 64,360.00 $O.oo

• $43,225.00 $69,833.00 

cost 
Depreciation $0.00 $21 6.02 $33.96 $21 .67 $ 1 23.75 $2,382.03 $0.00 $457.41 $246.76 
cost per hour 
Total costs, $42,054.00 $1 8,477.00 $ 1 49,031 .00 $71 ,633.00 $80, 1 35.00 $391 ,730.61 $330,322.00 $268 ,6 1 5  $555,498.00 
including 
depreciation 
Total per hour $21 0.27 $855.42 $279.35 $331 . 1 7  $51 3.69 $5,677.26 $797.69 $2,842.49 $1 ,962.89 
costs, including 
depreciation 
1The North Dakota Aeronautics Commission purchased the Cessna 206 airplane in September 201 1 .  The amounts listed are based on estimated 

flight hours and expenses for fiscal year 20 1 2. 
�The agency did not calculate depreciation on the airplane because the agency estimates the residual value of the aircraft to be greater than the 

purchase price. 
3The airplan e  was purchased in October 2010.  The amount  shown does not reflect a full year of  depreciation. 
4The airplane has been fully depreciated. 

Airplane Ha ngar Facil ities 
The committee learned some state-owned airplanes are housed in private hangars while other state-owned 

airplanes share hangar space. The committee received the fol lowing information regarding ai rplane hangars util ized 
by state agencies : 

North Dakota 
Aeronautics Attorney Game and Fish Highway Department of Departmer.  
Commission General Department Patrol NDSU Transportation Transportation 

Location of Bismarck Airport Bismarck Airport B ismarck Airport Bismarck Airport Fargo Airport Bismarck Airport Bismarck Airport 
hangar 
Hangar owner Bismarck Aero Bismarck Aero Fargo Jet Center Fargo Jet Center Fargo Jet Center City of Bismarck Bismarck Aero 

Center Center Center 
Private or shared Shared Shared Shared2 Shared2 Shared Private Shared 
hangar 
Airplane(s) 2008 Cessna 206 1 965 Beechcraft 2006 American 2007 Cessna 206 1 99 1  Beechcraft 1 998 Beechcraft 1 975 Cessna 
stored in hangar Baron Champion Scout. King Air B200 King Air B200, Skymaster 

2006 Cessna 1 82 1 977 Piper 
Cheyenne 

Fiscal year 201 1 $4,730
1 

$3,260 $7,275 $5,820 $ 1 1 ,940 $25,003 $5,000 
lease costs 
Fiscal year 201 1 6,544 2 , 1 1 9  

utilities cost 

Total fiscal year $4,730 $3,260 $1 3 , 8 1 9 $7,939 $ 1 1 ,940 $25,003 $5,000 

201 1 costs 
1The North Dakota Aeronautics Commission obtained the Cessna 206 airplane in September 201 1 .  The amount shown is an estimate based o n  the 

hangar lease rate for the previous airplane owned by the commission. 
2The Game and Fish Department and Highway Patrol jointly lease an a ircraft hangar which is used to store airplanes owned by each agency. The 

hangar is also used by the Game and Fish Department pilot/mechanic to perform maintenance on the department's aircraft. 

Recommendations 
The committee recommends House Bi l l  No. 1 033 to 

create a central aircraft management system for state
owned or state-leased aircraft operated by executive 
branch state agencies, excluding the office of the 
Adjutant General and entities under the control of the 
State Board of H igher Education. The bi l l  requires the 
Director of the Department of Transportation to operate 
the central aircraft management system and creates a 
special fund in the state treasury for proceeds related to 
the operation of the system. The bi l l  also requires the 

agencies subject to the central management system to 
transfer ownership of all state-owned aircraft to the 
Department of Transportation on July 1 ,  201 3. 

STUDY OF OPTIONS TO RELOCATE THE 

HIG HWAY PATROL TRA I N I N G  ACADEM' 
The Government Services Committee was assi!; 

a study of options for relocating the H ighway Patru1 
train ing academy pursuant to Section 5 of 201 1 House 
Bi l l  No. 1 01 1 . The study was to include a review of 
options for relocating the training academy, options for 
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/l-� # 2.  

ADN FEATLJRED AIRCRAFT BROADCAST .Aircraft Dealer Networ1<: 
FindAircraft.com 

2002 Grand Caravan 

Serial Number: 2088-0982 

Registration Number: N800JG 

Price: $ 1 ,595,000 

Airframe Total Time: 1 ,922 Hours 

Engine: 1 ,922 TSN I 227 SHS 

Prop: 227 

Avionics: 

Garmin I King S i lver Crown 

Comms Dual Garmin GNS-530W 

Navs 

ADF 

DME 

Transponder 

Radar 

Flight Director 

HSI  

Autopi lot 

Long Range Nav 

Dual Garmin GNS-530W 

King KR-87 

King KN-63 

King KT-70 

King RDR-2000 on KM D-850 

King KFC-225 

King Kl-825 EHSI 

King KFC-225 w/ Yaw Damper 

King KLN-94 

htto://www.findaircraft.com/featured/eastwest/02caravan.html 3/1 4/20 1 3  
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2007 Beechcraft King Air C90GT (For Sale) 

Summary Info 

Year: 2007 
Manufacturer: Beech craft 

Model: King Air C90GT 
Price: $1 ,980,000.00 

Location: Germany 
Condition: Used 

Serial Number: 1 800 
Registration Number: N37200 
Airframe Total Time: 735 

Engine Times: N/A 
Prop Times: N/A 
Flight Rules: IFR 

Item Description 

2007 King Air C90GT; TT:735 h;No damage History, all times hangared;Maintenance at 
Beech Service Center. 

· 

Avionics 

Collins APS-65H Automatic Flight Control System with 2-tube EFIS-84, Garmin GPS-400 w/GAD-
42 Adapter & Shadin ADC-2000, Collins ADF-60A, CVR, Collins VHF-22, Collins DME-42, Collins 
APC-65H, ·collins TDR-94, Honeywell KMH-820, Collins ADS�65; Collins EFD-84, Honeywell KMD . •  
-.850 Multifunctiondisplay, Collins AL T-1000, Artex ELT C406-2, Crew quick Donning Masks, 

· 
Maintenance at Beech Sei"Vice Center, last Phase 1 - 4  (24 months inspection)'01/2012; 6 year 
Inspection (gear, props) 01/2013 

· 

Interior 

6 Passenger Seating in Beige Leather: 4 rotatable Club Seats, brown Carpet forward Cabin :J· 
Partition w/Door, Cabinet with Ice Chest and Liquid Dispenser� ati Cabin Partition w/Silding Pane

_ 
Is, __ : 

fw facing belted toilet · · · · · ' 
. . . .  . . . . . •·. . .  . 

Exterior 

White and Brown coloured with Blue and Golden Brown Stripes and Blue Top Tail 

Equipment 

forward Cabin Partitionw/Door, Cabinet with Ice .Chest and .Liquid. Dispenser, aft Cabin Partition . .  
wiSiiding Panels, fw facing toilet - electric 

' 

Remarks 

No damage History, Only one Owner since new, all times hangared, Maintenance at Beech• 
Service Center 

Contact Information 

Seller: Bas Busln�Jss Aviation Services Gmbh 
Phone 1: 00497 4039140466 
Phone 2: NIA 

Fax: 0049-7403-91 40467 
Email: Contact This Seller 

Contact: Detlef W. Keinath 
Address: Roemerstrasse 27 

D-78655 Dunningen 

Miscellaneous Information 

Special Attributes 
None 

Fractional ownership Amount: N/A 
· Paint Year: N/A 
Interior Year; : N/A 

. . . · Number of S�ats: 8 

.. ·�
o
,
ts;��-���h'J'��f:�i·:�ri:�::�; -��� � ;' :(; t ! :•: 

:Englne.3: N/A 

' i ; . 

httn://www.trade-a-nlane.com/detail/TurboProo/2007/Beechcraft/King+Air+C90GT/1 5944 . . .  3/1 4/201 3  



Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
1 0 : 1 5  a.m.,  March 1 4, 201 3 

Missouri River Room 

North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Dave Leftwich, Deputy Director for Business Support 

HB1 033 

M r. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Dave Leftwich and I 
am the Deputy Director for Business Support for the North Dakota Department of 
Transportation (DOT) . 

The DOT would l ike to provide the fol lowing information for the Committee's 
consideration. This bil l  appears to be attempting to start an aircraft fleet by 
requ i ring the DOT to charge all parties its costs. The n umber of a ircraft is too 
small  to operate as a fleet, especially since State agencies can decide to use or 
not use the aircrafts . If a major repair is needed , the fleet would need 
supplemental income. The b i l l  does not p rovide seed money or add itional  
funding for aircraft maintenance to start a fleet concept other than what is in  the 
DOT budget. 

I n  Section 2 it states; "Each agency using air transportation services from the 
department shall pay a user charge determined by the department of 
transportation which must be based upon the actual cost of operating the 
a i rcraft. "  If other agencies are flying with the DOT for meetings at the request of 
the DOT or in support of the DOT, the DOT does not charge those agencies. 
The DOT would l ike to propose the attached amendment to al low the DOT 
flexibi lity in who gets charged for the fl ight time. 

If you have any question , I ' l l  be happy to respond to them. 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE B ILL NO.  1 033 

Page 1 ,  l ine 16 ,  after the period insert "Un less waived by the department," 

Page 1 ,  line 16 ,  rep lace "Each" with "each" 

Renumber accordingly. 
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Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

I ntroduced by 

Legislative Management 

(Government Services Committee) 

H O U S E  BILL N O .  1 033 

1 A BILL for an Act to provide for the creation of a central aircraft management system for 

2 state-owned or state-leased a ircraft and to create a central a i rcraft management fund; and to 

3 provide for the transfer of a ircraft to the central a ircraft management system .  

4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY O F  NORTH DAKOTA: 

5 SECTION 1 .  
6 Defin itions. 

7 As used in this chapter unless the context otherwise requires: 

8 .L "Aircraft" means an a irplane or a helicopter. 

9 2... "Department" means the department of transportation.  

1 0 3.  "Director" means the d i rector of the department of transportation  or the d irector's 

1 1  designee. 

1 2  4. "State agency" means an agency. board. bureau. commission. department. institution, 

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

office. or any other entity of the executive branch of state government. excluding: 

.a.. The office of the adjutant general; and 

b., Entities u nder the control of the state board of h igher education.  

1 6  Central a ircraft management system for state-owned aircraft. 

1 7  .L The d i rector shal l  establish within the department a central aircraft management 

1 8  

1 9  

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

system to regulate the operation. maintenance. and m anagement of all aircraft owned 

or leased by the state for use by state agencies subject to th is chapter. The d irector 

shal l  provide a uniform method of record ing and reporting the uti l ization, aircraft hours. 

and other costs of operating the ai rcraft. The director, within legis lative authorizations. 

may employ personnel necessary to carry out the duties prescribed by this Act. The 

director shal l  advise the director of the office of management and budget regarding the 

need to acquire or dispose of system aircraft. 

Page No. 1 1 3. 0083.05000 



Sixty-third 
Legislative Assembly 

1 2 .  Every state agency must use the central aircraft management system for air-related 

2 transportation or other aircraft operations. However. a state agency may authorize an 

3 officer or  employee to use a private passenger airplane pursuant to section 54-06-09 

4 or a commercia l  a i r  service. Upon agreement between a state agency and the director. 

5 the d irector may purchase or lease special ized a ircraft for use by the agency that 

6 meets specifications set by the agency. The d i rector shall enter agreements with the 

7 highway patrol. aeronautics commission. and game and fish department regarding the 

8 exclusive use of special ized aircraft operated by these agencie s. 

9 User charges - I ncidental revenues. 

1 0 Each agency using the central aircraft m anagement system shal l  pay a user charge to the 

1 1  director. The di rector shal l  determine the user charge which must be base d  upon the actual cost 

1 2  of operating the aircraft. including applicable pilot costs and other operational  costs. 

1 3  depreciation costs. and estimated a ircraft replacement costs. The user charges and any 

1 4  proceeds from insurance claims. aircraft sales. commercial refunds or rebates. or similarly 

1 5  derived proceeds must be remitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the central aircraft 

1 6  management fund.  

1 7  Central a ircraft management fund. 

1 8  The central aircraft management fund is a special  fund in  the state treasury. Moneys in the 

1 9  fund are available. subject to legislative appropriations. to the department of transportation for 

20 expenses related to the operation of the central aircraft management system .  

2 1  SECTIO N  2. TRANSFER O F  STATE-OWNED O R  STATE-LEASED A I RCRAFT. The title or 

22 other documents representing ownership of aircraft owned or leased by a state agency subject 

23 to section 1 of th is  Act m ust be transferred to the d irector of  the department of  transportation on 

24 Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 3. 
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Bill/Resolution N o . :  HB 1 033 

FISCAL N OTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

1 2/1 9/201 2  

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d · r  r ·  t d  d t l  eve s an appropna 1ons an ICipa e un er curren 

2011-20 1 3  Biennium 

aw. 
201 3-2015 Biennium 

General F u nd Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $2,000,000 

Expenditures $1 ,750,000 

Appropriations $1 ,750,000 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other F u nds 

$2,000,000 

$ 1 , 750,000 

$ 1 , 750,000 

1 B. County, city, school d istrict and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

201 1 -2013 Biennium 2013-201 5 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Towns h i ps 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summa ry: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This b il l  would create a central aircraft management system under the NO Department of Transportatio n .  

B .  Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description o f  the sections o f  the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Under this bil l ,  the central a ircraft management system would be operated on an actua l  cost basis whereby users 
would be billed at a rate based on the actual operating and pilot costs, as well as depreciation and estimated a ircraft 
replacement costs. Accord ingly, NO DOT would need additional appropriation sufficient to cover the related costs. 
The excess of revenue over expenditures represents depreciation and reserves for high cost repairs/replacements. 
This excess would be spent in later years as the aircraft pool incurs costs to replace a ircraft and make major, high 
cost repairs to the aircraft. Note : The revenue and expenditure figures represent only the central aircraft pool. They 
do not represent the impact on agencies using the pool .  The agencies using the pool s h ould see an increase in 
expenditures for the fees they pay to the aircraft pool and a decrease in expenditures for aircraft operating costs that 
will now be covered by the pool. This fiscal note is based on the assumption that the a ircraft currently used by the 
affected agencies would contin u e  to be operated by the a ircraft pool. The assumptions do not incl ude near term 
replacement of any aircraft. If it becomes necessary to replace aircraft in the near term , the costs would be 
significantly greater than presented in this fiscal note. 

3. State fiscal effect detai l :  For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

It is very d ifficult to accurately estimate the initial biennium revenues associated with a central aircraft management 
system u ntil we have accum ulated actual operating data for a biennium. Nonetheless, we estimate the additional 
first bien nium revenues to operate the pool of a ircraft to be approximately $2 mill ion greater than the NDDOT 
currently recognizes on its current aircraft. This revenue would be intended to cover th e actual operating costs of the 
additional aircraft as well as depreciation and reserves for high cost repair/replacement .  The DOT would not initially 
have a revenue source to cover major repairs/replacements. Funds for this purpose would be accumulated over 
time through the charging of reserves for major repairs/replacements and depreciation charges. Therefore, for the 



first biennium, NO DOT would need an additional revenue source to cover the estimated major repairs/replacements 
of $500,000 that might occur in the 1 st biennium. Such revenue source is not covered in the revenue identified in 
Part 1A above. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

It is very d ifficult to accurately estimate the initial bienn ium expenditures associated with a central aircraft 
management system until we have accumulated actual operating data for a biennium. Nonetheless, we estimate the 
additional, "out of pocket" expenditures to operate the additional aircraft not currently operated by NO DOT to be 
approximately $1 .75 million as shown on the attac�ed schedule. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

The NO DOT will require an addition to its existing appropriation in the amount of $1 .75 million to cover the additional 
costs of operating the a ircraft pool 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 01/09/201 3  



HB1033 
Estimated Additiona l  1st Biennium Costs to Operate Aircraft Pool 

J anuary 9, 2013 

Salaries - Temporary sa laries and additional overtime 

Additional  travel costs 

Additional  tra ini ng costs 

Softwa re, charts, manuals  

Fuel 

I nsura n ce 

Repairs 

Licenses a n d  miscel laneous fees 

Hangar Rental 

1st biennium initial startup major repairs/replacements 

Total 

Prepared by NDDOT Financial Management Divsion 
January 9, 2013 

$ 300,000 

43,000 

50,000 

7,000 

200,000 

60,000 

500,000 

20,000 

70,000 

500,000 

$ 1,750,000 



March 28, 20 1 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO 1 033. 

Page 1,  line 1 6, after the period insert "Unless waived by the department, 11 

Page 1 ,  line 1 6, replae 11Each11 with "each11 

Page 2, remove lines 8 through 1 2  

Renumber accordingly 
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GOVERN MENT S ERVICES COMM ITTEE 
The Government Services Committee was assigned 

,the following responsibilities: 
' 

• A study of the use of state-owned ai rplanes 
pursuant to Section 1 3  of 201 1 House Bi l l  
No.  1 0 1 2. The study was to i nclude a review of 
a irplanes owned by state agencies, the 
justification for owning each airplane, the 
frequency of use of each airplane, and the 
feasibi l i ty and desirability of requ iring state-owned 
airplanes to be managed by Fleet Services. The 
study was amended by the Legislative 
Management to exclude state-owned airplanes 
operated by the University of North Dakota (UNO) 
School of  Aviation .  

• A study  of  options for relocating the Highway 
Patrol train ing academy pursuant to Section 5 of 
201 1 House Bi l l  No. 1 01 1 .  The study was to 
i nclude a review of options for relocating the 
tra in ing academy, options for relocating the 
emergency operations veh icle training course, 
and options for constructing a Highway Patrol 
shooting range. 

• Approve any agreements between a North Dakota 
state entity and the state of South Dakota to form 
a bistate authority pursuant to North Dakota 
Century Code Section 54-40-01 .  

The Chairman of the Legislative Management also 
assigned the committee the following budget-related duties: ) 1 .  Mon itor the status of state revenues and � expenditures for the 201 1 - 1 3  biennium. 

2. Receive input from major state agencies 
regarding the status of their budgets and 
changes in federal funds. 

3. Receive information from state agencies 
regarding estimated cost-to-continue items for 
the 201 3-1 5 biennium. 

4. Receive the July 201 2  revised 201 1 - 1 3 bienn ium 
and the preliminary 201 3-1 5 biennium general 
fund revenue forecasts. 

5. Review projected revenues, expenditures, and 
fund balances of major state funds. 

6. Identify and prioritize potential one-time funding 
items for the 201 3-1 5 biennium. 

7 .  D iscuss possible legislative in itiatives affecting 
the budget, including initiatives to return excess 
reven ues to taxpayers. 

8. Identify key budget issues for the 
20 1 3  legislative session. 

9. Determine, in consultation with the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) ,  a sustainable 
level of spending for the 201 3-1 5 biennium. 

1 0. As appropriate, make recommendations to the 
Legislative Management. 

Committee members were Representatives Jeff 
\ Delzer (Chairman), Duane DeKrey, Glen Froseth, Ed 

/ Gruchalla, Matthew M. Klein, Curtiss Kreun, Bob 
____.- Martinson ,  Lisa Meier, Phil l ip Mueller, Todd Porter, 

David S. Rust, Vicky Steiner, Blair Thoreson , Don 
Vigesaa, and Alan Wieland and Senators Ron Carlisle, 

Lonnie J. Laffen, Gary A. Lee, David O'Connell ,  J im 
Roers, and Donald Schaible. 

The committee submitted this report to the Legislative 
Management at the biennial meeting of the Legislative 
Management in November 2012 .  The Legislative 
Management accepted the report for submission to the 
63rd Legislative Assembly. 

STUDY OF THE USE OF 
STATE-OWNED A IRPLANES 

The Government Services Committee was assigned 
a study of the use of state-owned airplanes pursuant to 
Section 1 3  of 201 1 House Bi l l  No. 1 0 1 2. The study was 
to i nclude a review of airplanes owned by state 
agencies, the justification for owning each airplane, the 
frequency of use of each a irplane, and the feasibi lity and 
desirability of req uiring state-owned airplanes to be 
managed by Fleet Services. The study was amended by 
the Legislative Management to exclude state-owned 
airplanes operated by the UNO School of Aviation. 

Fleet Services 
Section 24-02-03.3  requires the Department of 

Transportation to operate a central vehicle management 
system (Fleet Services) to regulate the operation ,  
maintenance, and management of al l  motor vehicles 
owned or leased by the state. Each state agency that 
util izes a vehicle from Fleet Services pays a fee to Fleet 
Services for the cost of the vehicle, including operating 
costs. The fee is based on the estimated costs of 
acquiri ng and maintaining the vehicle. Fleet Services 
currently manages approximately 3 ,200 vehicles. 

Previous Studies 
The 1 981 -82 Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review 

Committee studied the uti l ization of aircraft by state 
agencies and the feasibi l ity of establ ishing a state 
aircraft pool .  The committee adopted a resolution that 
recommended the establishment of a state aircraft pool. 
However, the resolution was not approved by the 
Legislative Assembly in 1 983. 

State-Owned A i rplanes 
Excluding the North Dakota Un iversity System, five 

state agencies own a total of eight airplanes. The table 
below details the ownership of a irplanes by state 
agencies, including the purpose of ownership: 

Agen� Aircraft Purpose 
Department of 1 998 Beechcraft- Passenger 
Transportation Raytheon King Air transportation 

Department of 1 977 Piper Cheyenne Passenger 
Transportation transportation 

Department of 1 975 Cessna Engineering 
Transportation Skymaster photography 

North Dakota 2008 Cessna 206 Airport inspections 
Aeronautics and construction 
Commission 

j_ 



Aqencv Aircraft Purpose 
Game and Fish 2006 American Wildlife surveys 
Department Champion Scout 
Game and Fish 2006 Cessna 1 82 Enforcement 
Department 

Highway Patrol 2007 Cessna 206 Enforcement 

Attorney General 1 965 Beechcraft Baron Enforcement 

The University of North Dakota owns 72 aircraft and 
the UNO Aerospace Foundation owns an additional 
56 aircraft which are used primarily for fl ight training 
purposes and occasionally for passenger transportation. 
North Dakota State University (NDSU) does not own any 
aircraft but leases a King Air 8200 airplane from the 
N DSU Development Foundation for passenger 
transportation purposes. 

Department of Transportation Airplanes 
The committee received information regarding the 

three airplanes operated by the Department of 
Transportation. The committee learned the department 
has four permanent employees to provide air service 
which includes three pilots and a maintenance manager. 
The department also has a temporary employee to 
provide aircraft scheduling services and several 
temporary part-time pilots available as needed. The 
following schedu le provides information regarding 
aircraft owned by the department: 

Purchase Passenger Fli �ht Hours 

Aircraft Price Capacity 2008 2009 201 0 
1 975 $99,283 One pilot, one 1 42 1 91 403 
Cessna passenger (also 
Skymaster contains 

photography 
equipment) 

1 977 Piper $438,433 Two pilots, five 1 90 1 1 0  1 33 
Cheyenne passengers 

1 998 $3,901 ,377 Two pilots, 288 2 1 6  242 
Beech craft- seven 
Raytheon passengers 
KinQ Air 

The committee learned the department provides air 
transportation service to several state agencies, 
including the Governor's office. The department charges 
other agencies a fee for providing air transportation 
services. The fees are used to recover costs relating to 
the operation of the aircraft. The committee received the 
fol lowing schedule detailing the current rates charged to 
other agencies for air service: 

Aircraft Rate Per Hour 
1 975 Cessna Skymaster $41 3  
1 977 Piper Cheyenne $923 
1 998 Beechcraft-Raytheon KinQ Air $995 

The committee received information regarding the 
number of Department of Transportation flights during 
state fiscal year 201 1 ,  including the number of 
passengers on the flights and passenger fees collected. 
The following schedule summarizes passenger flights 
uti l izing the department's passenger airplanes: 

Fl ight Information - State Fiscal Year 201 1  
(July 1 ,  2010  - June 30, 201 1 )  

1 998 
King Air 1 977 p·  

B200 C hevt 
Number of trips 1 91 
Flight hours 276.4 86.7 
Total passengers 753 1 55 
Total fees collected $374, 1 91 $ 1 1 1 ,523 
Average fees collected jl_er _l)_asse1!9_er $496.93 $7 1 9.51 

Highway Patrol Airplane 
The committee learned the Highway Patrol owns a 

2007 Cessna 206 which is primarily used for search and 
rescue operations, assisting in criminal apprehension, 
traffic-related duties, and AMBER Alert functions. The 
plane was purchased for $429,000 with approximately 
$35,000 of the funding provided from state sources and 
$394,000 provided from federal asset forfeiture funds. 
The airplane is equipped with forward looking i nfrared 
(FL IR)  equ ipment to assist in search missions. 

The following schedule detai ls the fl ight hours of the 
ai rplane for state fiscal years 2009 through 201 1 :  

Fiscal Year F iscal Year F iscal Year 
2009 201 0 201 1 

Flight hours 236 1 43 1 56 

The committee learned the Highway Patrol pi lots are 
also ground troopers. The troopers that serve as pi lots 
do not receive any additional pay related to their pilot 
duties. 

Game and Fish Department A irplanes 
The committee received information regarding 

airplanes owned by the Game and Fish Department. 
The department owns a 2006 American Champion Scout 
which is used for research purposes, such as big game 
surveys. The department purchased the airplane for 
$ 1 8 1 , 1 86.  The department also owns a 
2006 Cessna 1 82 which was purchased for $375,000 
and is used for law enforcement purposes and search 
and rescue missions. 

The following schedule provides information 
regarding the flight hours of each department ai rplane 
for state fiscal years 2009 through 201 1 :  

Game and Fish Department Airplane Fl ight Hours 
F iscal Fiscal Fiscal 
Year Year Year 
2009 201 0 201 1 

2006 American Champion Scout 437. 5  4 1 8.6 533.5 
2006 Cessna 182 1 92.3 2 1 9.6 21 6.3 

The committee learned the department has a pi lot 
who also performs airplane maintenance duties on 
Game and Fish Department airplanes. 

North Dakota Aerona utics Commission A i rplanA 
The committee received information regarding 

ai rplane owned by the North Dakota AeronaL. 
Commission. The commission purchased a 
2008 Cessna 206 airplane for $ 560, 000 in 
September 20 1 1 .  The airplane is used primarily for 

? 



airport safety i nspections and passenger transportation 
and is estimated to be used 200 fl ight hours per year. 

The committee learned the current airplane owned by 
the commission was purchased to replace a 
i1 980 Cessna Skymaster. The 1 980 Cessna Skymaster 
was purchased in 1 987 for $83,500 and was sold i n  
201 1 for $ 1 09,600. 

Attorney General's Office Airplane 
The committee received information regarding the 

airplane owned by the Attorney General's office. The 
office owns a 1 965 Beechcraft Baron airplane which has 
two engines and can transport four passengers. The 
airplane is used for transporting evidence, transporting 
law enforcement agents and emergency personnel, 
survei l lance, and for other various purposes. The plane 
has been used for a total of 1 25 hours during the past 
three years. 

The committee learned the Attorney General's office 
obtained the 1 965 Beechcraft Baron airplane at no cost 
through a federal Department of Defense program. 
Permission is needed from the federal government to 
sell the a irplane, but the state could retain the proceeds 
from the sale. 

N orth Dakota State U niversity Airplane 
The committee learned NDSU does not own any 

airplanes but leases a King Air B200 airplane from the 
NDSU Development Foundation.  The NDSU 
Development Foundation purchased the airplane for 

/ �2,348, 000 in June 2007. North Dakota State University 
egan leasing the airplane in July 2007, and the 

un iversity makes quarterly lease payments of $80,730. 
The lease continues until Ju ly 201 7 ,  and the un iversity 
can purchase the aircraft for $1 at the end of the lease. 

The university uses non-general fund revenues to 
pay for airplane operating costs which may consist of 
interest i ncome, i ndirect cost recoveries, transfers from 
department local funds, and revenues received under 
the North Dakota/Minnesota tuition reciprocity 

agreement. The current insura nce policy on the airplane 
provides for a l iabi lity coverage l imit of $ 1 00 mi l l ion and 
a physical damage l imit of $2 mil l ion. The current 
annual premium amount for the insurance policy is 
$1 8 ,395. 

The airplane is  used primari ly  to transport u niversity 
personnel to other Un iversity System faci l ities located 
across the state. From March 1 ,  201 1 ,  to March 2 ,  
2012 ,  55 percent of  the passengers on the un iversity's 
airplane were campus personnel .  The remaining 
passengers were nonuniversity personnel ,  i ncluding 
members of the State Board of H igher Education and 
personnel from other institutions. 

The committee learned the un iversity has entered an 
agreement with the Fargo Jet Center to sublease the 
university's airplane at a fee of $660 per hour. The 
agreement provides that the Fargo Jet Center pay fuel 
and other variable costs when using the a irplane. From 
November 201 1 through June  201 2 ,  the Fargo Jet 
Center used the airplane 86.9 hours and provided total 
payments of $57,354 to the university. 

The committee learned the u n iversity has its airplane 
for sale. As of August 1 ,  201 2, the payoff amount for the 
remaining loan on the airplane was $ 1 , 3 1 2 ,624. The 
committee discussed options to authorize the 
Department of Transportation to purchase the 
university's airplane for use in a state airplane pool. The 
plane could be used as an additional passenger 
transportation airplane or to replace an older passenger 
airplane owned by the department. 

A i rplane Expenses 
The committee learned a irplane expenses vary 

significantly between similar a irplanes due to the 
intended use of the a irplane and airplane fl ight hours. 
Airplane expenses also vary sign ificantly between years 
due to timing of certain expenses, such as major repairs 
or special aircraft uses. The committee reviewed the 
fol lowing i nformation regard ing state fiscal year 201 1 
expenses of state-owned aircraft: 

Summarv of Fiscal Year 201 1 Airolane Expenses 
North 

Dakota 
Aeronautics Attorney Game and Highway 
Commission General Fish Department Patrol NDSU Department of Transportation 

2006 
2008 1 965 American 2006 2007 1 991 1 975 1 977 1 998 

Cessna 206 Beechcraft Champion Cessna Cessna King Air Cessna Piper King Air 
(Estimatedl1 Baron Scout 1 82 206 8200 Sky master Cheyenne 8200 

Total flight hours 200.00 2 1 .60 533.50 2 1 6.30 1 56.00 69.00 4 1 4. 1 0  94.50 283.00 

Variable costs $ 1 9, 1 00.00 $4,883.00 $51 ,699.00 $31 , 1 43.00 $20.223.00 $87,099.33 $ 1 14,259.00 $48,385 $ 1 55,071 .00 

Variable cost per $95.50 $226.06 $96.91 $ 1 43.98 $ 1 29.63 $ 1 ,262.31 $275.92 $5 1 2. 0 1  $547.95 

flight hour 
Fixed costs $ 1 5.42 1 .00 $8,928.00 $79,21 3.00 $35,803.00 $34,679.00 $ 1 40,271 .28 $ 1 96,605.00 $ 1 66,043.00 $280,251 .00 

Fixed costs per $77. 1 1  $41 3 .33 $1 48.48 $ 1 65.52 $222.30 $2,032.92 $474.78 $ 1 , 757.07 $990.29 
flight hour 
Funding $7,533.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5.928.00 $0.00 $1 9,458.00 $ 1 0 , 96 2 . 00 $50,343.00 
allocated to 
reserve accounts 
Reserve account $37.67 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38.00 $0.00 $46.99 $ 1 1 6.00 $1 77.89 

allocation per 
/ hour 

Total costs. $42,054.00 $ 1 3,81 1 .00 $1 30, 9 1 2.00 $66,946.00 $60,830.00 $227,370.61 $330,322.00 $225,390 $485,665.00 

excluding 
depreciation 



Summary of Fiscal Year 201 1 Airplane Expenses 
North 

Dakota 
Aeronautics Attorney Game and Highway 
Commission General Fish De a rtment Patrol NDSU Department of Transportatior 

2006 
2008 1 965 American 2006 2007 1 991 1 975 1 977 1 998 

Cessna 206 Beechcraft Champion Cessna Cessna King Air Cessna Piper King Air 
(Estimated)' Baron Scout 182 206 B200 Skymaster Cheyenne B200 

Total costs per $21 0.27 $639.40 $245.38 $309.51 $389.94 $3,295.23 $797.69 $2,385.08 $ 1 , 7 1 6 . 1 3  

hour, excluding 
depreciation 
Depreciation $0.002 $4,666.00 $ 1 8, 1 1 9 .00 $4,687.003 $ 1 9,305.00 $ 1 64,360.00 $O.oo• $43,225.00 $69,833.00 

cost 
Depreciation $0.00 $21 6.02 $33.96 $21 .67 $ 1 23.75 $2,382.03 $0.00 $457.41 $246.76 

cost per hour 
Total costs, $42,054.00 $ 1 8,477.00 $ 1 49,031 .00 $71 ,633.00 $80, 1 35.00 $391 ,730.61 $330,322.00 $268,61 5  $555,498.00 

including 
depreciation 
Total per hour $21 0.27 $855.42 $279.35 $33 1 . 1 7  $51 3.69 $5,677.26 $797.69 $2,842.49 $ 1 ,962. 89 

costs, including 
depreciation 
1The North Dakota Aeronautics Commission purchased the Cessna 206 airplane in September 201 1 .  The amounts listed are based on estimated 
flight hours and expenses for fiscal year 20 1 2 .  

2The agency d id not calculate depreciation on the airplane because the agency estimates the residual value of  the aircraft to be greater than the 
purchase price. 

�he airplane was purchased in October 2010.  The amount shown does not reflect a full year of depreciation. 
4The airplane has been fully depreciated . 

A i rplane Hangar Faci l ities 
The committee learned some state-owned airplanes are housed in private hangars while other state-owned 

airplanes share hangar space. The committee received the following information regard ing airplane hangars uti l ized 
by state agencies: 

North Dakota '1 
Aeronautics Attorney Game and Fish Highway Department of Departm. 
Commission General Department Patrol NDSU Transportation Trans porta •. J, 1 

Location of Bismarck Airport Bismarck Airport Bismarck Airport Bismarck Airport Fargo Airport Bismarck Airport Bismarck Airport 
hangar 
Hangar owner Bismarck Aero Bismarck Aero Fargo Jet Center Fargo Jet Center Fargo Jet Center City of Bismarck Bismarck Aero 

Center Center Center 
Private or shared Shared Shared Shared2 Shared2 Shared Private Shared 
hangar 
Airplane(s) 2008 Cessna 206 1 965 Beechcraft 2006 American 2007 Cessna 206 1 99 1  Beechcraft 1 998 Beechcraft 1 975 Cessna 
stored in hangar Baron Champio·n Scout. King Air B200 King Air B200, Skymaster 

2006 Cessna 1 82 1 977 Piper 
Cheyenne 

Fiscal year 201 1 $4,730
1 

$3,260 $7,275 $5,820 $1 1 ,940 $25,003 $5,000 

lease costs 
Fiscal year 201 1  6, 544 2, 1 1 9  

utilities cost 
Total fiscal year $4,730 $3,260 $ 1 3, 8 1 9  $7,939 $1 1 ,940 $25,003 $5,000 

201 1 costs 

1The North Dakota Aeronautics Commission obtained the Cessna 206 airplane in September 201 1 .  The amount shown is an estimate based o n  the 
hangar lease rate for the previous airplane owned by the commission. 

2The Game and Fish Department and Highway Patrol jointly lease an aircraft hangar which is used to store airplanes owned by each agency. The 
hangar is also used by the Game and Fish Department piloUmechanic to perform maintenance on the department's aircraft. 

Recommendations 
The committee recommends House Bill No. 1 033 to 

create a central aircraft management system for state
owned or state-leased aircraft operated by executive 
branch state agencies, excluding the office of the 
Adjutant General and entities under the control of the 
State Board of Higher Education. The bi l l  requires the 
D irector of the Department of Transportation to operate 
the central aircraft management system and creates a 
special fund in the state treasury for proceeds related to 
the operation of the system. The bil l also requ ires the 

agencies subject to the central management system to 
transfer ownership of al l  state-owned ai rcraft to the 
Department of Transportation on July 1 ,  201 3. 

STUDY OF OPTIONS TO RELOCATE THE 
HIGHWAY PATROL TRA INING ACADEIV 

The Government Services Committee was assig1 
a study of options for relocating the H ighway Patrol 
train ing academy pursuant to Section 5 of 201 1 House 
Bi l l  No. 1 01 1 . The study was to include a review of 
options for relocating the tra in ing academy, options for 
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M r. Cha i r  a n d  m e m be rs of the co m m ittee, my n a m e  is  J i m  M i l le r, P resid ent a nd 

CEO of the N DS U  Deve lopment Foundatio n .  I a m  here th is  morn i ng to speak to 

H o u se B i l l 1033.  

F ro m  a h isto rica l pe rspect ive, N o rth Da kota State U n ivers ity's expe rie nce w ith a 

u n ive rsity p l a ne d ates back to the m id 1970's when the Joe Tho m pson fa m i ly of 

G rafton gifted a Cessna a i rcraft to the N DS U  Deve lopment Fou ndation to fa c i l itate 

a n d  exped ite travel for u n ivers ity events by the u n iversity's a d m i n istrat ion a n d  

fa cu lty. 

I a ssu med my position in 1982 a n d  was a benefic ia ry of t ravel in that p la ne, 

whether it was to atte nd an Ag Day at the H etti nger Expe r i ment Station,  a n  

a l u m n i  eve nt i n  Wishek o r  a major donor event i n  M i n n e a po l i s .  I n  a l most a l l  of 

those i n sta nces a n d m a ny other  travel expe riences, the p lane was fu l l  to ca pa city. 

The cost saving of h otels, mea l s  a nd t ime was s ign ifica nt.  

S i nce the Tho m pson gift, the U n ive rs ity has  had access to two other  p l a nes 

i n c l u d i ng the cu rrent K i ng Air 200, wh ich was pu rcha sed in 2007 . 

Fol lowi ng legis l ative d i rectives, th is  p l a n e  was l i sted fo r sa le  wo rldwide beg i n n i ng 

May 1 6, 20 1 2 .  The p l a n e  was ta ken off the m a r ket o n  October 4, 2012.  D u ri ng 

that t i m e, we rece ived one written offe r to p u rchase wh ich was resci nded two 

d ays afte r it was rece ived . No reason fo r the te rm i n ation of the sa le agree ment 

was give n .  

H o use B i l l 1033, s pec ifica l ly Section 4 ma nd ates that, "Afte r J u n e  30, 20 14, N DS U  

may n ot u s e  a ny fu nds a p p ropriated b y  t h e  legis lative assem bly, i ncl u d i ng fu nds 

fro m cont i n u i ng a p p ropriat ions a uthorized by the l egis lative a ssem bly, for the 

p u rpose of  leas ing a n  a i rp lane."  

I ' m  not s u re how the i m posed date was a rrived at, but a s  I 'm s u re you know, the 

resa l e  m a rket for u sed a i rcraft is very soft, a n d a s  a resu lt, the i m posed date 

beco mes p roble matic.  

This  issue is  not fo r a lack  of try ing to se l l  the p l a n e .  N o r  i s  it one of not 

u nd e rsta n d i ng the i ntent of d iscussions that have lead u p  to t h i s  decis io n .  The 

message has been received . Rather, it i s  the st i p u lation of a p re-d ete rm i ned sa l e  

d ate i n  a very soft p l a ne re-sa le economy. 



Let us  assu me that des pite o u r  best atte m pts to se l l  the p l a n e  we a re 

u n s u ccessfu l a n d  we st i l l  have it i n  o u r  possession on J u ly 1, 2014. Section 4 

m a nd ates that lease payme nts fro m the U n ive rsity wou ld sto p .  The o n ly recou rse 

for the Fou ndation wo u ld be to assume those lease payme nts at the expense of 

a c a d e m i c  a n d  stu dent p rogra ms that the Fou ndation provides fu n d i ng fo r.  Th is  is 

the rea l ity of the situati o n .  

I w o u l d  l i ke t o  p ropose two options for you r co ns ideratio n :  T h e  fi rst wou l d  b e  to 

a me n d  Section 4 a s  it now reads to the fo l lowi ng. "Afte r J u ne 30, 20 16, or u p  to 

the d ate of sa l e, w h ichever occu rs fi rst, North Da kota State U n ivers ity may not 

use a ny fu nds a p p ropriated by the legis lative a sse m bly, i n c l u d i ng fu nds from 

cont i n u i ng a p p ropriat ions a utho rized by the legis lative assem bly, for the pu rpose 

of leas ing a n  a i rp l a n e . "  

I n  tu rn, the Deve lopment Fou ndation wo u ld m a ke every effort poss i b l e  t o  se l l  the 

p lane prior to that date.  Clea rly th is  option is  i n  o u r  m utu a l  i nte rest. It wou l d  

sati sfy yo u r  i nte nt, a n d  give the Deve lopment Fou ndation s o m e  b reat h i ng room 

g ive n the cu rrent re-sa le  ma rket. 

The State cou ld fi nd itse lf in the same situation a s  we a re in with res pect to the 

ma nd ated sa le  in  Section 3 of House B i l l 1033 rega rd ing the 1977 P i p e r  Cheye n n e 

a n d  the 1975 Cessna S kymaster. 

The second co ns ideration wou ld be for the Depa rtment of Tra nsportation,  a s  

out l i ned i n  Section 5 of House B i l l 1033, to p u rcha se, a t  a fa i r  ma rket p rice a s  

dete r m i ned by a p pra isa l t h e  N DS U  King A i r  a s  a re p lace m e nt a i rp l a n e  fo r the 

d e p a rtme nt' s a i rp l a n e fleet. This  a me n d m e nt wou ld i n s u re the state is  buying a 

we l l  ma i nta i ned pla n e  for its fleet at a fa i r  a n d  rea so n a b l e  va l u e  a nd wou ld a ss u re 

that the u n ive rsity wo u ld sti l l  be a b l e  to c h a rte r the use of a p l a n e t h rough the 

Depa rtment of Tra nsportati o n .  

Tha n k  you fo r you r  co ns ideration of these options a s  fea s i b l e  a m e n d m e nts to 

H o u se B i l l 1033 as now writte n .  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1 033 

That the Senate receive the amendments as adopted on page 1 396 of the House 
Journal and pages 946 and 1 262 of the Senate Journal ,  and that reengrossed House 
Bi l l  No. 1 033 be amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, replace "sale" with "purchase" 

Page 2, l ine 1 ,  remove "SALE OR" 

Page 2 ,  l ine 2 ,  remove "director of the" 

Page 2, l ine 2, replace "transportation" with "transportation's" 

Page 2,  l ine 2 ,  remove "shall sell or d ispose of the" 

Page 2, line 3, remove the first "department's" 

Page 2, l ine 4, after "airplane" insert "shall be used in trade for the purchase of 
replacement airplanes as provided in Section 6 of this Act." 

Page 2 ,  l ine 4 ,  remove "The proceeds from the sale or d isposal of the airplanes must be 
remitted to the state" 

Page 2 ,  l ine 5, remove "treasurer for deposit in the genera l fund . "  

Renumber accord ingly. 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE B ILL  NO. 1 03 3  

That the Senate received the amendments as adopted o n  page 1 396 of the House 
Journa l  a nd pages 946 and 1 262 of the Senate Journal ,  and that reengrossed House 
B i l l  No .  1 033 be amended as fol lows: 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  rep lace "sale" with "disposition" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 6 ,  rep lace "Each" with "Un less waived by the department, each" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 7 , insert a period after "transportation" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 7 , remove "wh ich must be based upon" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 8 , remove "the actual cost of operating the a ircraft ." 

Page 2 ,  l i ne 1 ,  replace "SALE OR DISPOSAL" with "D I SPOSITION "  

Page 2 ,  l i ne 2 ,  remove "sell or" 

Page 2 ,  l i ne 2 ,  after "d ispose of" insert " ,  by sale or trade,"  

Page 2 ,  l i ne 4,  replace "The" with " If the a i rplanes are sold , the" 

Page 2, l i ne 4, remove "or d isposal" 

Renumber  accord ing ly .  



1 3 .0083.07000 SECOND ENGROS S M E NT 
Sixty-th ird 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

REENGROSSE D  H O U S E  BILL NO. 1 033 

I ntroduced by 

Legislative Management 

(Government Services Committee) 

1 A B I LL for an Act to require authorization of the purchase or lease of a i rcraft; to provide for the 

2 use of department of transportation a i rplanes; to provide for the sale of a i rplanes; to provide 

3 legislative intent; to provide for budget section approval ;  and to provide an appropriatio n .  

4 B E  IT ENACTED BY THE LEG ISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

5 SECTION 1 .  
6 Authorization to pu rchase or lease a ircraft - Legislative assem bly o r  budget section 

7 approval .  

8 A state agency or other entity of state government may not purchase or lease an a i rcraft 

9 without specific authorization from the legislative assembly or the budget section of the 

1 0  legis lative management if the legislative assembly is not i n  sessio n .  This section does n ot apply 

1 1  to a i rcraft purchased or leased by the office of the adjutant general or the u n iversity of North 

1 2  Dakota school of aviation .  

1 3  S ECTION 2. 
1 4  Use of depa rtment of transportation a i rplanes. 

1 5  Upon request. the department of transportation shall provide air transportation services to 

1 6  other state agencies. Each agency us ing air  transportation services from the department sha l l  

1 7  pay a user charge determined by the department of transportation which must be based upon 

1 8  the actual cost of operating the aircraft. The department sha l l  give priority to requests for a i r  

1 9  tra nsportation services from the attorney general's office when the request is for law 

20 enforcement pu rposes. The director of the department of transportation  sha l l  a l low employees 

2 1  o f  other state agencies to operate the department's airplanes for officia l  purposes if the 

22 employee is properly l icensed and has the proper rating and type endorsement to operate the 

23 requested airplane.  
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Sixty-th ird 
Leg islative Assembly 

1 S ECTI O N  3. SALE OR DISPOSAL OF DEPARTMENT O F  TRANSPORTATION 

2 A I R P LANES. The director of the department of transportation shal l  sel l  or d ispose of the 

3 department's 1 977 piper cheyenne a i rplane and the department's 1 975 cessna skym aster 

4 airplane.  The proceeds from the sale or d isposal of the a irplanes must be remitted to the state 

5 treas u rer for deposit in the general fund.  After June 30, 20 1 4 ,  the department may not use any 

6 fu nds appropriated by the legislative assembly to mainta in or operate the department's 1 977 

7 piper cheyen ne ai rplane or the department's 1 975 cessna skymaster a irp lane.  

8 SECTI O N  4. LEGISLATIVE I NTENT - DISPOSAL O F  ATTORNEY G E N ERAL'S O FFICE 

9 A I R P LANE. It is the intent of the sixty-third legislative assembly that the attorney general 's 

1 0 office shal l  d ispose of the office's 1 965 beechcraft baron airplane or transfer the title of the 

1 1  airplane to an el ig ible entity in accordance with the agreement entered by the office to o btain 

1 2  the a i rplane. 

1 3  SECTI O N  5. NORTH DAKOTA STATE UNIVERSITY AIRPLANE. After June 30 , 20 1 4 ,  

1 4  North Dakota state university may not use any funds appropriated by the leg islative assembly, 

1 5  i nc lud ing funds from contin u ing appropriations authorized by the legis lative assembly, for the 

1 6  p urpose of leasing an airplane. 

1 7  SECTION 6.  APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT O F  TRANSPO RTATIO N  - AI RPLANE 

1 8  R E P LACEMENT - BUDGET SECTION APPROVAL - ADVISORY C O MMITTEE. There is 

1 9  a ppropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise 

20 a ppropriated , the sum of $4 ,500,000,  or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the 

21 department of transportation for the purpose of purchasing replacement a i rp lanes for the 

22 department's airplane fleet, for the biennium beginn ing July 1 ,  20 1 3 , and end ing June 30, 201 5 .  

2 3  T h e  department o f  transportation must receive budget section  a pproval  pr ior t o  expending any 

24 funds  a ppropriated under this section in excess of $4 , 000,00 0 . The fund ing provided in this 

25 section is considered a one-time funding item. 

26 During the biennium beginning Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 3 , and ending J u ne 30,  20 1 5 , the department of 

27 transportation shal l  establ ish an airplane replacement advisory committee to advise the 

28 department of transportation regard ing the purchase of replacement a irp lanes autho rized under 

29 th is section. The members of the advisory committee include: 

30 1 .  The d irector of the department of transportation  or the d irector's designee who shal l  

31 serve as chairman;  
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1 2 .  The d i rector of  the aeronautics commission or  the d irector's designee; 

2 3.  The d i rector of  the office of  management and budget or  the director's design ee; and 

3 4.  Two members of  the legislative assembly appointed by  the chairman of  the legislative 

4 management. 

5 The committee shal l  meet at the call of the chairman.  The members of the committee who are 

6 members of the legislative assembly are entitled to receive compensation and expense 

7 reimbursement as provided u n der section 54-03-20 a nd reim bursement for mi leage as  provided 

8 by law for state officers. The legislative counci l  shal l  pay the compensation and expense 

9 reimbursement for the legislative members. 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council  staff for 
Representative Kem penich / Apri l 1 8 , 2o1 3 �r;r ct 

PROPOSE D AMENDMENTS TO REEN GROSSED HOUSE B I LL NO.  1 033 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1 396 of the House Journal 
and pages 1 262 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bi l l  No. 1 033 be amended 
as fol lows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3,  after "approval" insert ";  to provide for a report to the sixty-fourth legislative 
assembly" 

Page 2 ,  replace l ines 1 3  through 1 6  with :  

"SECTION 5. LEGISLATIVE I NTENT - NORTH DAKOTA STATE U NIVERSITY 
AI RPLANE L EASE - REPORT TO S IXTY-FOU RTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. It is 
the intent of the sixty-th ird legislative assembly that prior to June 30, 201 7 , North 
Dakota state un iversity d iscontinues the lease entered into by the un iversity for a 
KingAir B200 a irplane and that North Dakota state un iversity provide a report to the 
appro priations committees of the s ixty-fourth legislative assembly regard ing the status 
of its KingAir B200 airplane lease and efforts to uti l ize other air transportation services."  

Renum ber accord ing ly  
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Title .  

Prepared by the Leg islative Counci l staff for 
Representative Kempenich 

April 1 9, 201 3  

PROPOSED AMEN DMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO.  1 033 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1 396 of the House Journal 
and page 1 262 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 1 033 be amended 
as follows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, replace "sale" with "disposition" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3,  after "approval" insert "; to provide for a report to the sixty-fourth legislative 
assembly" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 6, replace "Each" with "Unless waived by the department, each" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 7 , remove "wh ich must be based upon" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 8, remove "the actual cost of operating the aircraft" 

Page 2, l ine 1 ,  replace "SALE OR DISPOSAL" with "DISPOSITION" 

Page 2, l ine 2 ,  remove "sel l  or'' 

Page 2, l ine 2, after the third "of' insert ", by sale or trade," 

Page 2,  l ine 4,  replace "The" with "If the airplanes are sold , the" 

Page 2, l ine 4,  remove "or disposal" 

Page 2,  replace l ines 8 through 1 6  with:  

"SECTION 4. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - NORTH DAKOTA STATE U NIVERSITY 
AI RPLANE LEASE - REPORT TO SIXTY-FOURTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. It is 
the i ntent of the sixty-third legislative assembly that before June 30, 201 7, North 
Dakota state un iversity d iscontinue the lease entered by the university for a KingAir 
B200 airplane and that North Dakota state university provide a report to the 
appropriations com mittees of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly regard ing the status 
of its KingAir B200 airplane lease and efforts to util ize other a ir  transportation services." 

Renumber accordingly 
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